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DRUG ABUSE IN THE-AMERICAN SCHOOL
SY‘STEM. 1982

. WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 27, 1982

US. SI.'NATE,
Suncouumn ON INVESTIGATIONS
AND GENERAL OVERSIGHT OF THE
ComMITTEE ON LABOR AND HUMAN RESBOURCES,
Washington, D.C.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:02 a.m., in room
4232, Dirksen Senate ice Building, Senator Paula Hawkins,
(chairman of the subcommittee) premdmim

Present: Senators Hawkins and Hum 'l{m .

Staff present: Jay Howell, chief counael Jenkins, staff 1nves-
tigator, Terri Parker, staff counsel, Lisa Demetree, professional
staff member, Constance Winter, staff assistant.

OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR HAwKINS

Senator Hawkins. I would like to welcome you here today. We
were waiting for Senator Humphrey, who is cochamnf this hear-
ing with me today, but he will be here shortly so we will proceed. 1
like to be prompt and I am sure every other Senator does, too. We
value your time and your interest.

We are meeting as the Subcommittee oh Inveetngatnons and Gen-
eral Oversight, and the hearing’s title is “Drug Abuse in the
American School System.” Dn'.]l%‘n and alcohol are a growing prob-
lem for young people teday e combination did not present a
problem for me or my fellow students when my generation was
growmg up. We had our own problems, but none as complicated or

estructive as this. These substances were not readily available in
the schools in our neighborhood or on our streets.

Young peo tgle have always, experienced insecurity, great needs,
curiosity, an pressure to challenge authonty These condiditions
last for a long time. My youngest daughter is 20 years old and
some of those are still present in her life. It was and remains
simply part of owmg up.

is eneratlon s growing pains, however, are experienced in an
atmosphere where drugs and alcohol are widely accepted. The con-
sequences for those wg!(’) stumble are far more severe. In today's

schools and communities, drugs, alcohol, and sometimes detention
centers are what await the curious and the confused. It is a natjon-
wide problem that we found in our investigation, issgxperienced in"
every city, in every state. The effects of drug and alcohol abuse are

1)
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_devastating. They threaten our educational system and they have
paralyzed the American family.

In the last 10 to 15 years, drug and alcohol use among school age
children has reached epidemic proportions. The problem is more
widespread in this country than in any other nation in the West-
ern World. While the dramatic rate of increase appears to be level-
ing off, I feel the condition remains critical.

According to a National Institute on Drugl Abuse [NIDA] survey
conducted in 1980, nearly two-thirds of this Nation’s high school se-
niors have used an illicit drug, and two in five have used an illicit
drug otherthan marihuana. To me these figures are alarming and
must be taken very seriously. Alcohol use among these students is
even more prevalent than marihuana use. The results of the NIDA
survey are conservative because it did not include the substantial
number of young people who do not reach their senior year in high
school. '

We discovered in our investigation that the problem starts before
high school. More than half of the marihuana smokers first tried it
between the ages of 11 and 15. Far more disturbing to me is that
an alarming number of these children have also used hard drugs
such as PCP, quaaludes, LSD, and the prescription types.

Too often we attempt to reach adult solutions, to what are pri-
marily young people’s problems. The threshold question that must
be asked here is: What can be done at home; in the school, and in
the court system, to prevent and cure drug and alcohol abuse
among juveniles?

It is essential that today’s discussion begin with testimony from
those who have lived this nightmare. When we initiated this inves-
tigation, we were uncertain that the cancer could effectively be
treated. Based upon what we have learned by interviewing dozens
of individuals—we now believe that there 18 a great reason for

hope.

‘ '%day. we are going to hear from those people who have. helped
rovide that hope through their efforts at the family, school, reha-
ilitation, and juvenile justice levels. Their testimony will demon-

strate that the battle can be won. We want this to be a positive

hearing. ‘

Our first witnesses will relate in shocking detail their experi-
ences with drugs, alcohol, and unlawful conduct. These young
people are all handsome and beautiful; they come from different
parts of the country; they have varied backgrounds. They are all on
the road back from serious bouts with drugs and alcohol. Their ac-
counts support the premise that no family is immune to this condi-
tion. In addition, they will surprise most of you by their recommen-
dation that the schools and the juvenile justice systems adopt a
tougher stance with young offenders.

The second panel is comprised of law enforcement and judicial
representatives who have been directly involved in juvenile drug-
and alcohol-reldted cases. These respected officials will discuss
their innovative judicial approaches and highlight students’ prob-
lems and needs from an insider’s perspective. :

Finally, we are going to hear from counselors, educators, and
parents who have devoted their lives to fighting this terrible prob-
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lem. They will emphasize that cooperation among parents, schools,
and juvenile justice systems is vital to a successful resolution.

The people in this country are looking to Congress for leadership
on issues like these that so deeply affect the fabric of American so-
ciety. I compliment my colleague, Senator Humphrey, for his work
in this area as chairman of the Subcommittee on Alcoholism and
Drug Abuse. .

Our responsibility is to focus national attention on this issue. To
that end, I have initiated a Senate drug caucus, designed to raise
the awareness of the Senate to the devastating effecta of drug
abuse and trafficking, and will also be introducing le%ialation next
week when the Senate reconvenes to deter drug distribution in and
around schools. - .

At this point we will receive for the record a statement by Sena-
tor Kennedy, the ranking~minority member of the subcommittee,
who was unable to be present for today’s hearing.

[The prepared statement of Senator Kennedy follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT oF SENATOR KENNEDY

"Senator KeNNEDY. Substance abuse is a growing National trage-
dy—tragic in that it accounts for the needless waste and destruc-
tion of hundreds of thousands of lives each yéar. ,

This insidious problem continues on the rise. The latest figures
on drug addiction and abuse are alarming. According to NIDA, the

ational Institute on Drug Abuse, an estima 22.56 million

mericans either abused, or were addicted to drugs in 1980. Of
that total, 67 percent, or 15 million, were between the ages of 12
and 26—4 miljion of them, children and adolescents of elementary
and junior and high school age. :

State and Federal drug treatment administrators warn that
heroin, cocaine, and amphetamine use continue to steadily in-
crease. Yet, this administration has chosen to cut Federal funding
of treatment programs. In the aggregate, total Federal funding for
alcohol and drug abuse programs went from $382.5 million in 1980
down to $224 million in 1982,

I find it difficult to believe that the current administration is
aware of and fully appreciates the disastrous effects of its cuts in
funding to treatment programs all across our Nation. Many of
_these programs are eithex?%reing forced to close, or to severely cur-
tail their services; waiting lists of those who seek treatment are.
getting longer and longer; many would-be patients are simply going
without treatment; and, according to program operators, these
crisis situations will become worse. .

New York Staté anticipates that it will be forced to abolish
3,000 treatment slots within the next year.

In my own State of Massachusetts, officials project that almost
1,000 drug abusers will go without treatment; and currently there
are approximately 500 individuals waiting for periods of as long as
6 months to be admitted to treatment programs.

A recent report from the City of Detroit indicates that 14 sub-
stance abuse treatment programs already have been shut down, re-
sulting in an estimated 2,600 fewer clients per month receiving
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substance abuse care and treatment than did a year ago,” and the
full impact of budget cuts is yet to be felt.

Partly in anticipation of Federal funding cuts, Dade County, Fla,

- which has one of the most serious substance abuse problems in the
Nation, closed its program last October, and treatment programs
for 600 hardcore drug addicts were abolished. As a former director
of the Dade County program recently observed to my staff, “We are
waiting forja timebomb to explode.” ,

From Chicago comes word that the only drug-free outpatient
treatment facility that had served 60 patients daily in the predomi-
.nantly black south side of the city was forced to shut its doors; and
it is estimated that the State of Illinois will lose more than 900
treatment slots as a result of cuts’in Federal funding.

Treatment programs in our Nation's Capital also are in trouble,
with young people having to wait in line for treatment they so des-
gzrntely need. Fifty-five young ple are waiting for admittance to

cond Genesis, a residential therapeutic community; and at RAP,
Inc., a similar facility, 100 are waiting to get in—some for as long
as a year. ' o

What is to become of the thousands of children and young adults
who are being denied treatment and a second chance for a decent
and productive life? The consequences are all too obvious -and un-
thinkable. At worst, many will continue lives of crime to support
their habits and more wil{ die from drug overdose and other relat-
ed causes. At best, others will return to yough detention centers,
jails, and prisons where there is no treatment and rehabilitation to
speak of and where they probably will bnly become more hardened
to their destructive way of life. Is this what the current administra-
tion and the 'peoYle of this Nation want? I think not.

The talk of belt-tightening and budget-balancing has no place in
America's crisis of substance abuse. Treatment is cost-effective. The
alternatives of imprisonment and hospitalization are both wasteful
and ineffective. The cost of substance abuse treatment is half that
of jailing and less than one-tenth that of hospitalization.

Therefore, 1 call upon this administration to readjust its prior-
ities and restore the badly needed funding so urgently needed for
substance abuse treatment. | also urge my ¢olleagues on this sub-
committee and on the Labor and Human Resources Committee to
join me in working for restoration of these fynds. The alternative
price in human suffering and lives is far igh to pay.

Senator ‘'HAwKINs. | want to give a special welcome to those at-
tractive and brave young people who are here today. We want you
to be relaxed. I cannot teﬁeyou how much I personally appreciate
your being willing to come forward and help us here today.

I had a hard time getting here myself, but this issue ig very, very
important to me. We are going to go down the line in order, start-
ibrdmg with Terry. Then we will hear from David, Penny, Ken, and

ike. ‘

We will start with Terry, since you are the smallest. They usual-

ly ’FiCk on the smallest one, right?

ERRY. Yes.

Senator HAwkiIns. How old were you when you first became in-
volved with drugs or alcohol? ' -




- 5
STATEMENT OF TERRY DAVID, PENNY, KEN AND MIKE, A
PANEL

Terry. | had my first drink when [ was in the sixth grade

Senator HAwkins.,Sixth grade?

Terry. Sixth™ grade. I was 11 years old. I guess about 3 ‘weeks
after that, I took my first drug, which was manhuana, I. smoked
some of that.

. Senatdr Hwams Where did you get your first drmk" Was it at
a party?

Trrry. What it was, it was a New Year's Eve dnd my parents
were going to a party and I ended up babysitting. And so my very
considerate mother went out and bought me and a girl friend a
couple of bottles of champagne, I guess feeling that it would do no
harm.

I whs not exposed to drinking at all and I did not know how, you
know, people drank, if they just sipped it or chugged it from a
bottle. So, just chugged from the bottle, because we thought
that that wouldJ be the easiest way to get drunk.

With pot, I first sinoked pot with my older sister.

Senator HAwkiNs. How old were you then?

Terry. I was 11, going into Iy first year of junior high school,
going into seventh grade

Senator HAwkins. Were you still experimenting with alcohol on

the side?

" Terrv. Yes; ‘what haEpened when I drank the champagne, to say
the least I got very sick, you know, but before I did, it was exciting

. and it was an adventure and it thrilled me, you know. It was some-
thing I wanted, so I guess on weekends I started drinking wnth my -
friends or people older than me.

Senator HAwkins. Where did you get the alcohol?

Terry. Stealing it from the house, stealing money from my par-
ents, going out in front of liquor stores and asking someone to go
in. L4

Senator HAwkiNs. Were these people older than you? You could
not go in, could you?

Terry. Right, right, bigger than me. .

Sler'x’at,or Hawkins. You got these people to purchase it for you
right?

TeRRY. Right.

Senator HAwkins. Then you would go to a friend’s house?

TerRy. Yes, or out in the woods, a park——anywhere, it did not
matter.

Senator HAwkiINs. And you started mnxmg it with marihuana?

TERRY. Yes.

Senator Hawkins. And you were still l_1u91: 11 at that point? I

want everybody to realize tgat you are still eleven years W

Terry. Right, right. Also, soon after that, I started takihg other
drugs. My mother had a history of migraine headaches and a
couple of neighbors did too, and they would take Percodan, and
Valium, and Tylenol 3 with codeine. I soon found out that if I
faked having these headaches, then I would get some of these pills,
too, and they were very freely handed out to me.

»
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Then I figured out if I could drink and smoke pot on top of all
this, I really caught a buzz. -

Senator HAwkins. What grade were you in at this age?

TerRY. About seventh grade.

Senator HAWKINS. What were the other children doing? What
:3&3’ the environment like at school? Was this something everybody

id?

Terry. Well, most seventh graders really do not start smoking
pot, and doing drugs, and drinking as often as I did. They did it
occasionally at a party or something, but I guess the ninth grad-
ers—I useci to hang around a lot of them and they did that. You
know, there were crowds in school and we would smoke pot in the ’
bathroom and that kind of stuff.

Senator HAwkiNs. At school?

TERRY, Yes. :

Senator HAwkiNs. Where did you get the drugs, other than out
of available prescription bottles?

Terry.-Well, also, | was babysitting and 1 had a couple of baetx
gitting jobs, and ple have liquor cabinets and thei have medi
cine cabinets, and I would just make myself right at home and go
in there and steal as much as I could."When I left there, or not
even when I left there, I would get high.

Senator HAWKINS. While you were babysitting? -

Ternry. Right.

Senator Hawxins. Do you think this i8 a common problem?

Terry. What, for people?

Senator HAwkins. For kids.

TERRY. Yes. .

Senator HAwKINS. I mean, they do examine medicine and liquor
cabinets of others while they are babysitting or visiting homes?

Terry. I am sure they do. I found out since I have been sober
that I am not different, you know. A lot of people do this.

Senator HAWKINS. Were the teachers aware when you went to
school that you had a drug problem?

Terry. Wellolet me see; in junior high school I did not get
caught verll of®n for doing anything related to alcohol and drugs.

Senator HAwKiNs. You confined it mainly to the weekends?

Terry. Yes; on the weekends and in school. See, we used to think
we were real slick and we were real cautious, you know. We would
go in the bathrooms. The teachers have their special bathrooms, I
guess, | assume, but they never came in there and caught us.

And we would go out for lunch and sneak off the property and go
get drunk. You know, toward the end of my drinking, I was drink-
ing daily—drinking in the morning, drinking in the afternoon; |
mean, all the time, and using drugs. [ was using a lot of quaaludes
and smoking & lot of pot.

I would come into school; I was in summer school at the time be-
cause | had failed from the use of alcohol and drugs during the
past year. I would lay out three chairs and put my butt in the
middle one and just pass right out. I did not go to sleep; I p
out because | was drunk. T

Senator HAwkins. In school?

Terry. At school. And the teacher’s reaction—I do not think
there was a reaction. Nobody ever said anything to me. They would

4
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always wake me up and tell me to go to the next class. I was ob-
noxious, you know; I had a very bad attitude toward school and,
like you were saying before, against wuthority. You know, I re-
belled from it.

If someone asked me a question in schoo would get upset.
“Why are you asking me,” you know. I thought people were pick-
ing on me; | was the onlly one in the world, in other words. go, I
guesa they felt better if I just went to sleep and left them alone,

ut nobody confronted me.

Senator HAwkiNs. How many grades did you sleep throligh? .

Terry. Oh, wow, I do not know; it varies. I know I slept through
all of summer school, and that was in the 10th grade, my sopho-
more year. And in ninth grade, I know I slept a lot. ‘

Senator HAwkINs. Did you get promoted to the next grade?

Terry. Barely, barely. v

Senator HAWKINS. A conditional promotion?

TerRrY. Right.

Senator HAwkINS. And this started when you were in seventh
grade, you said, and went on through high school?

TERRY. Yes.

Senator HAwkins. What grades of school did you finish? You are
still in school?

Terry. Yes; what happened is I got sober midterm of that
summer school year. 'S

Senator HAwkins. What grade was that, ninth?

Terry. That was my sophomore ;‘:nr, and [ went back to my reg-
ular high school last year for my junior year and 1 was not-the big
hit, you know. I wou{d not give out some of my drug connections,
80 people kind of gave me a hard time. ’I‘}le first day of school, I got
hit in the face by a friend, you know.

Senator HAwxkins. Because you would not——

TerRRrY. Give my quaalude connection to this person, because at
this time I had geen realizing that these things were killing me
and I did not want to, you know, give it to anyone else for them to
kill themselves. I had been told I was very lucky that, you know, I
survived so far.

People did not like me too much. You know, if I was not drinking
and doing drugs, they did not want me around; | threatened them.

Senator HAwkins. Did you sober up by yourself or did somebody
help you? .

ERRY. | started going to self-help groups meeting at night and 1
met a lot of people who were sober 1 day, 1 year, 10 years, 1 years.
My father and part of my family gave me a lot of support. My
mother rebelled against—she was full of d®gjal and she thought
that I just overdid it and that I did not have a problem and I just
needed to stop drinking. And I could not stop drinking; I did not
think I could, until I had people backing me up.

Senator HAwkins. This is a local organization that you wént to?

TrRRY. Yes.

Senator HAwkins. Your dad took you?

TeRrRY. Yes.
Senator Hawkins. Did he go with you?
TeRRY. Yes. o
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o 'Sénatot; HAwmr{xg.‘Yo_u needed that sgpport‘ to gef tl;ere, I imag-
J?ZERR\Y. I, needed sox’neor_'ie to hold‘ me up, teo. - n" - '
enator HAwKINS. What do you mean? .

~ started working, I guess, when I was 14, on and-off. . ., .

Terry. Right. I was—how can'I put it—wasted. I guess my last
drinking‘eg:perier'ice—like 1 said, I'was drinking daily. I was drink-
drinking or taking drugs. - . L

Senator HAwKINS. Did you hide it from your parents?

Terry. Yes; I hid it pretty well, and I would always play games,

. ing in the morning. I would wake up in the morning and start -

like, on my mother and stuff, like get tobacco out.of a cigarette and _°
put it in a‘box. She would come running out—"Look, pot in Terry’s .

room again,” you know. -’ o . o

. /Senator HAwKINS. Where did you hide the bottles of alcohel,

tinder the bed? , i o A .
TeRRY. In-my closet. - = . /

- Senator HAwWKINS. In your closet. ~ « T
TerRY. I wotld go opt and buy one- At this time, I was working. I

v

Senator Hawkins. What did you do?

" Tgrry. Well, when I was 14, I was telephone soliciting, and then

latdr on [ was a waitress and I would have mbney/in my pocket

every_single day and I could buy anything I wanted that day. I

wouid buy my drugs off the street and I would go to a liquor store =

" and send someone in to buy it for me because I usually knew

people of that age. - : . B
Senator HAWKINS. Wha{is your current situation?
Terry. My parents?, ' ’ B
Senator Hawxins. How old are your now? t

Terry. Oh, my current situation? I am 17. I have gone back to

.

that same high school and I have been sober about 19 months—19

months teday; oh, that is pretty neat. Well, anyhow——

Senator HawkiNns. Happy anniversary. , o

Terry. Yes, thank you. It is a big deal, you know; it is for me.

Senator HawkINs. You come back every year and see me and tell
me that, would you? . '

TerryY. OK, yes; another year, I hope so. :

But I still go to these special help groups—self-help.

Senator HAWKINS. Are they at night? IR :

Terry. At night, 8:30, and talk about my problems. I know a lot
of people who are sober that I can call on the phone. :

Senator HAwKINS. Are you accepted at school?

Terry. No, not at all. {have one friend in school—one friend—
and I go to a rather large high school.

Senator HAwKINs. How many students in your school?
. Terry. I guess about 1,500. T

Senator HAwKINS. Only one friend? L

Terry. There is a lot of drinking and a lot. of drugging going on.
Like, I could walk in the bathroom; I think one of the bathrooms is
a hotspot in the wintertime because it is a little cold outside. I
smell pot and people drinking. If I go out on the smoking court—I
was talking about this earlier. There is a 14-year-old boy at school

_ and he reminds me of me so much, and that is why it hurts, I

think.
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_ _He,is always drunk, or he has been smoking po{,\ and he can
“hardly walk; and all he wants to talk about is drugs and alcohol;
and he is failing school. That was me when I was that age, byt he
does not know, you_know. . ) _ . NI
- Like I'was talking earlier also, there is not one poster in~ mz -
school about drug abuse or alcohol: We have an alcoholism counse!
: or, I know, at our school. I ‘have'not seen him. w .
o ¢ genator Hawxkins. Does_your Bchool have an alcqholism counsel- ., .
) or* - - o . ) g ) ‘. N . C
,,r,“' % «  'TerRy. Yes; [ found that out; but I have nibt seen him.-There are
o#. > .~ " no places where people say, “Go get help.*When ! was. drinking ,
" ¢ and Fwas hurting bad, things in 'my life were deteriorating and 1»
wanted help, but T was too,proud to admit it af that time. A
*  But we had a drug program come in and theéy showed us ascoyple
of filnds-dfid told us not to dtink and not to drétg. They.didsnpt.say,
Aif you had this: problem already, where'fo go for *help. I was about
- . in tears, you know, wanting to réise my hand and ask these peonle,
' ¢ but all my peers were sitting around me and I'did"not ‘have it in
-. me todoit.. S R . . .
" Senator HawkiNs. How are y6uizparents today? Do they work
with you? I am sure they are proud of you. 4
Terry. Well, my parents separated when I was drinking and
they recently divorced. Me and my mother’s relationship is not
good at all. She likes to drink and I feel uncomfortable around—
you know, I can go and sit around people who are drinking, but
when they say: “Oh, this wine is good,” you know, about a hundred -
times in 5 minutes, it starts clicking4n my mind. :
~ She does not feel I have a problem: . and she does not accept me
2y . for who I am. But my father and my grandmother—and I have an
- uncle algo who I used to fight with when I was drinking—we are
all buddies, you know. We are friendsand I think I have gotten to
know mydhmily better, you know. I did not knéw them when I was
. drinklifpg, and 1 didipot care less about. them either, much less
myself, - e :

They support me. If I need a ride to a meeting, they will go along
with me or drop me off. We get along. When% haveé'a’problem, I
know I can sit down and I can talk to them, where before, when
you had a problem, I did not know you were supposed to talk about
it, No. 1. And No. 2, I did not know who to go to, you know, but

+#.;n0w | have everybody. ’

[y

. “Sgnator Hawkins. Have you talked to this little 14-year-old boy
ihatl?’ypgé-relate to? Have you spoken with him and helped him
ack? g, . T : ,
Terry. He “Bks me to go.out and get high with him, but it is
s hard for me to“jiltisit down. with all these people and say: “1 am -

sober; you know, this*¥where 1 went for help.” Drinking is not
good. You know, you héveé# great time being sober, you know,.
which I do, but they do not believe that, you know.. '
Senator HAWKINS. What would you tell us today? I know that
you address parent groups, telling.parents how to recognize this
problem, and you are very good at it. What advice would you like
to leave in this record for other young people and their parents?
What would you do if you were in their shoes? . :
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Terry. First of all, I think I would educate myself on drugs and
alcohol. You know, my mother did. not know anything'about it at
all, you Know» And miany parents that I have run into do not know
the first thing; you kmrow, they do not know what a pipe isthat you
smoke pot ofst of or anythmg like that. I think that is real impor-
tant. And .1 think teachers and school officials should also get edu-
Ccated. . -

1 was Speakmg at a parents’ group, I Buess, almost 1 year ago
and they had a sugn up there that said: “Fight peer pressure with
parent pressure,” and that really hit me somewhere. 1 like that,
you know, because I have worked with a lot of. parents. .

1 thmk that, you know, if my parents knew something about
drugs and alcohol-—-well see, like, when I was drinking, my parents
told me: “If you take LSD you are going to light yourself on fire or
jump off a+building.” And I said: “Oh, wow, I am never gomg to do
that stuff..

But .ther' ‘when my fnends started doing 1t they were not light- -
. ifig theniselves on fire or jumping out of\bulldings And I thought,
this is_pretty safe, and I did it, and I did it and I did it again, and
again. *And 1 still did not do that stuff and I thought that they

. wére lying to me.

I think that society as a wholequst looks at it as oh, my God, you
kthow,-you are going to do this aan that, because we hear all these
storiés. But they do not hear, I guess, the normal story toward it;
you know, people do not do this, but it does, you know, long-term
effects and it is insane, in my opinion. '

Senator HaAwkINs. You are a great example of one w‘ho has rec-
ognized her own problem and whose family has cooperated and
worked with you to overcome it.. I must commend you at such a
tender age for being a good disciple’and good teacher.

Do you plan to go to college when you graduate from high

- school?

Terry. I am in my senior year nght now and I am doing good in -
all my classes, except one, and I have to pass that one to get out of
school. But, see, I missed so many years drinking, and druggmg,_
and sleepmg in class, and skipping school that it is like a cram
course in 1 year and it has been real difficult.

But I plan to go to the community college in northern Vlrgmla
and take data processing, because I am taking a computer pro-
graming class right now. I think my life is shaping up and going in
order like other people’s do.

Senator Hawkins. Well, we surely do appreciate your. being w1th
us today and showing that it can be done. I think you exemplify
the hope that I spoke about in the opening statement. You are a

.great example that this problem can be recognized and treated

with love and togetherness; that, indeed, it can be overcome.

I am perplexed and bothered that yoy have no friends. That is
not common for someone your age, espec1ally someone as attractive
and friendly as you are. I am also very disturbed that teachers °
would allow you to sleep on three chairs for a 3-month class. It is
incomprehensible to me, but this is what we are here for today, to
hear from those that have expenenced it; the real professmnals in
this area. : o -

{
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The records I have read from other Senate hearings on this issue
“all involved somebody telling us how to solve the problem that has
not experienced it firsthand or actually been there and returned.
We really do thank you, Terry.

This is Senator Humphrey to my right. I have only asked Terry
questions 8o you may proceed with her.

Senator HumpHREY. Very well. Thank you, Madam Chairman. |
have an opening statement which I will simply submit for the
record. . .

[The statement referred to follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF SENATOR HUMPHREY

Senator HumPHREY. | apprectate the opportunity to cochair this
important hearing. As Mrs. Reagan has so appropriately stated:”
“This nation faces the danger of losing a whole generation of its
youth to drug abuse.”

- Statistics cOSmpiled by the Instltute for Social Research at the

University of Michigan indicate that 65 percent of all high school
seniors In the country report using some illicit drug other than
" marihuana. These figures indicate that the level of illicit drug use
among young Americans of high- school age is probably higher than
in any other industrialized nation in the world.

Illicit drug sales are estimated to be at least $64 billion annually.
I know it is unnecessary to tell the witnesses gathered here today
what this underground economy has done to this Nation’s children
and its school systems. These statistics, and more importantly the
young people they represent, cry out for action_ by all segments of
our saciety.

A common understanding of the seriousness and pervasiveness of
the problem, coupled with a commitment by government, families,
schools, and courts ,to pool their collective expertise and work to-
gether for a common goal, will go a long way toward addressmg
this societal malady.

Recently there have been some encouraging signs. The develop-
ment and rapid growth in the last few years of the parents’ move-
ment has begun to make an impact. According to the recent testi-
mony by Dr. Pollin, Director of the National Ingtitute on Drug
Abuse, there are indications that a gradual decrease in’ the per-
ceived peer acceptance of marihuana use in particuldgr is taking
place. However, a real reversal of the long-term trend toward drug
. and alcohol abuse will require a concerted effort by all the institu-

tions which have impact on our young, people: the family, the
- schools, and the courts,

I am pleased that these institutions are represented today, as are
young people who have been involved with alcohol and drug abuse
and have battled their way out of that abuse.

I will listen with great mterest to the testimony of each of the
witnesses here today. It is my sincere belief that recommendations
from the people who are personally involved in the education and
rehabilitation of our young people will be a significant factor in
formulating the most effective policies for addressing this problem.
I look forward to working with Senator Hawkins and my ether col-
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leagues in exploring and implementing these policies to address
this treacherous social problem.

Let me add in addition to that that I am delighted, as chairman -
“of the Subcommittee on Alcoholism and Drug Abuse, to cooperate
with your Subcommittee on Investigations to further broadcast the
truth about the devastating effect of alcehol and drug abuse on our
young people.

I assume, after speaking with Terr'ir‘, we are going to——

Senator HAwKINS. Go down; after Terry, we will have David.

f§I‘enat¢ar. HumpHREY. Very well, then, let me ask a few questions
of Terry. . :

Surely, young peogle follow different routes in falling into drug
and alcohol abuse, butr is there some common threa that runs
through these various avenues? What starts them out on the road
to abusing alcohol and drugs?

TeRRY. I really cannot tji for everybody.

Senator HUMPHREY. | understand.

Terry. But, for me, I think it was watching other people do it,
you know, and it looked so éxciting, like an adventure, you know.
As you know, there are a lot of ple who do this kind of stuff,
and if you do it, you are going to have a whole lot of friends, and I
wanted that.

From peoFle I have talked to who have the same experience I do, -
they all feel that,-you know, they wanted friends and that was im-
portant, and lot of peer pressure and just rebelling from the par-
ents, you know. You are not sup to do that, but they do"it,
you know. : :

‘Senator HUMPHREY. Yes; so, whatever the original cause or cre-
ation of the drug culture, today it is largel}v a matter of peer pres-
sures? . '

TERRY. Yes. ' R

Senator HumpHREY, Falling into drug and alcohol abuse among
young people is largely a matter of peer pressures and rebelling
agajnsg parental influence and authority. Is that what you are
saying? , : :

RRY: Yes.

Senator HUMPHREY. You said something, I think, very revealing
and important in your earlier responses to Senator Hawkins. You
said that, with respect to your teachers, nobody confronted you.
Your teachers saw you stretched out on chairs, passed out, obvious-
ly in some kind of distress, and yet they apparently felt that it was
the easier course to ignore you than to confront you.

Nobody confronted you. None of your teachers confronted you?

Terry. Right, and—— ! ‘

Senator HUMPHREY. What about—excuse me; go ahead.

Terry. What | was %oin to say is nobody confronted me, and
nobody is, in my schoo ay, confronting anybody about a prob-
lem, and there are a lot of peogle who go in there really drunk, you
know. They just send them home. They do-not say: “Hey, you
know, let us talk.” K

You know, I tried to get off school to do an interview with some-
one, you know, to tell them about my experiences with drugs and
- alcohol. And the principal of my school got very defensive and said,

. “We do not have an alcohol and drug problem in this school,” and
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I have run into that a lot, you know. They are very ignorant and
they do not want to admit that their school has a problem.

Senator Humpurey. Well, is it really ignorance or is it fear, or
for some reason being unwilling to acknowledge the problem?

‘Terry. I think it is fear foo.

Senator HUMPHREY. It is a very difficult problem to deal with—a
very ugly and frightening problem and one over which, certainly,
teachers do not have any practical authority. But, of course, that is
no excuse for not confronting and refusing to acknowledge the
problem. _ : .

What about your parents, or parents in general, speaking as a

r? Do parents ionfront young people or do they hide their heads
in the sand?

Terry. Well, my “parents—what they did is, if I came home
drunk, they would let me know that I was in big trouble. I used to
like to sneak out of the house at night and party all night and
climb back in my window or something. I would come back and
people would be sitting there waiting for me, you know—my par-
ents. All they did was basically put me on restriction. You {mow,
they thought it was a phase that every young person goes through.

But I have run into a lot of paxgents. f‘jike genator awkins said,
I work with a lot of parent groups in the northern Virginia area
and, you know, they are learning how to deal with the problem for -
themselves to help their kids. I think that is real important.

Senator HuMpPHREY. So, your parents were concerned and, to
some extent, confronted the problem, but. were not able to help
you. They did not know where to turn themselves, perhaps?

Terry. Right. :

Senator HumpHREY. They tried to discipline you, but really gave

you no real help?
Terry. Right; I think tha& by the time theg did, you know, I
started getting into more trouble and more trouble.

Senator HUMPHREY. Yes.

TeRRY. Alcohol and drugs had become my life, the center of my
life, and I was not willing to give that up. I thought that being put
on restriction or getting a ticket from the State police because I
was driving without a license or something—everybody had to do
that kind of stuff, you know. If you are going to drinK and drug,
you have got to pay the price. , , ,

Senator HumMpHREY. We know how your alcohol and drug abuse
affected your school life. How did it atfect your family life? Do you
have brothers and sisters?

TerrY. I have an older sister and a younger sister and a little
brother, and my little brother and my little sister were kind of
afraid of me for a while.

Senator HumpPHREY. Do you feel t}iat you might have led them
into similar exreriences, or is it the other way around?

Terry. 1 feel that I probably would have, if 1 had been around.
See, I had moved from my family to come over here to straighten
up with my grandmother. Well, see, I was babysitting two twin
boys that were 10 years old and the{ were buymﬁ pot at school.
They were in elementary school and I would get them stoned and
they would get me stoned, and I would get them drunk and they.
would get me drunk.
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I am sure I ' would have put it on my little sister, too. You know:
‘““Hey, let us go and get stoned.”

Senator HUMPHREY. Well, there is apparently a good deal of un-_
happiness between your parents. Do you think that is to any extent
the result of your problems or is it vice versa. :
" Teary. | blamed myself for my parents’ separation for a long
time.

Senator HuMpHrEY. You do?

Terry. I did. .

Senator HumpHREY. You did.

Terry. But it was not my fault, you know. o

Senator HuMPHREY. Was their unhappiness the fault of your
problem? ‘

Terry. They were very unhappy with me, you know. My mother

had disowned me after something happened that I was a victim of, .

but she did-not see it that way. And in my opinion, she is pretty
gick herself: I do not know what the problem is.

Senator HuMPHREY. But what | am getting at here is, Is it your
opinion that the young peogle who fall into alcohol and drug abuse
are the result of unhappy homes, or do they come from happy and
stable homes as well?

Terry. | think they come from hapi)y and stable homes; they

come from the ghettoes—everywhere; all walks of life. :

Senator HuMPHREY. Have you heard the term used among your
peers of “burn-out”? |

TERRY. Yes.

Senator HuMPHREY. That is not a medical term, as I understand
it; that is a term of young people. What does that mean? :

Terry. Well, that is hard to decide. I was called a burnout a lot
when | was real stoned or on my drugs, on my quaaludes. I would
sit back and I was not real talkative.

Senator HUMPHREY. Yes.

Terry. | was just kind of flaky upstairs.

Senator HUMPHREY. | think it is significant. You know, whenever
persons in authori:_?' try to lecture people or educate them about
the real physical eftects of alcohol and drug abuse, it tends to have
a counterproductive effect. And yet, young people themselves,
through recognizing burnouts and coining and using that phrase, I
think themselves unconsciously acknowledge that there are, in
fact, some very serious effects of alcohol and drug abuse.

I think, Madam Chairman, I will—

Senator HaAwrins. Thank you, Senator. ,

Let us wrap this up, Terry. As of today, there are no posters in
your school stating that if any students here feel they have a drug
problem, they may go see Mr. Smith, or “we have a drug counselor,
we have an alcohol counselor; his or her name is, and they are in

room 1202 from 10 to 4, and please drop by and check.” There are
no posters like that in your school anywhere as of today?
ERRY. None.

Senator HAwkins. The bathroom is still the place to go, from

what you are saying.
Terry. The bathroom. We have off-school lunch privileges and
ou can go anywhere you want to. People have cars. You can buy
r at the 7-Eleven_in Virginia, you know} and there is one right
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up the street. There is everything going on in school—people cut-
ting classes. .

Like I said, I have had my ears and my eyes open for a message,
you know, coming from the school, saying:“Hey, you know, if you
want to learn about alcohol and drug abuse or you think you have
a problem, this is who ¥ou can’go to,” like you said.

ut in other schools I have been in in Arlington and Fairfax, and
whatever, some schools have that, and | have been to schools and
talked to kids my own age and I have seen a lot of results. I have
%eﬁrem a lot of people come into the program that I am in and get
sober. - )

Senator HAwKINs. So, you would recommend that these things
be done? ’

Terry. Well, see, just like the total rebelling against authority—
like, if | was drinking and you came to me and spoke to my class
and said: “Do not drink and do not do drugs,’ I wouldv have
laughed, you know. But if someone my own age came in and said:
‘““Hey, this is what, you know, I did and this is what happened, and
this is where I went to get hel;,),” instead of saying, you know: “Do
not do it, it is going to kill you,” or whatever, people can relate and
. they feel more relaxed, I think. '

Senator HAwkiNs. Would some authority figure in the bathrooms-
be helpful? .

Terry. I think so.

Senator HAwkKINS. Or would you just find another place?

Terry. Well, the ple who really wanted to do it that bad
would find another place, you know.

Senator HAwKINS. But 1t might deter those that know that that
is the place right now? Lo

Terry. Right. Well, see, it is cold outside.

Senator HAwKkINS. | noticed that.

TerrY. And there are not too many people out there going out
there and smoking pot and drinking. And the bathroom 18 heated
and it is right around the corner Igom your next class, and it is
crowded in there. You cannot hardly even walk ifj and I think
somebody needs to go in there even to let the people get in to go to
the bathroom during the break, you know. There i8 no room.

Senator HAwkINs. How about off-school lunch privileges? You
talked about that. I remember I could not go off campus as a
youngster; we had to stay on campus at all times because the
school was the custodian of my well-being from the time I left the
house until the time I returned. Then it became in vogue when
young people had cars to walk across the street and get a bad sand-
wich instead of staying at school and getting bad sandwich.

The idea that you could leave became the in thing to do, to go off
to lunch. Do you think that is good? Would it be better if we kept
the students on the campus?

Terry. I think it would. be better because what we do is we have
fourth period and then break for lunch, and you should see how
many people end up in fifth and sixth period—not too many.

Senator HAwkins. They do not come back? :

Terry., They do not come back; a lot of them do not come back.
And 1 feel that if we were allowed to stay on school grounds, the
authorities there could, you know, keep an eye on everybody, you
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know; just advige us and stuff like that, because people. are going
out and lﬁei:i:ing high and coming back, or going back and bringing
beer to the school, and just all kinds of crazy stuff.

I think they should stay there and learn, because that is what I
am doing in schook You know, I am there to learn, and I think
that school is becoming more of a party. »

Senator HAWKINS. A party?

TerRY. A party; you know, “Let us go get drunk.

Senator HAwKINS. And now you have lea you have to have
an education? >

‘Terry. Right. E .

Senator HAwkINs. I really want to thank you, Terry. You have
been so helpful and we will be talling on you in the future as we
mold some recommendations to correct thig pervasive problem.

We Have in the audience with us today a group of young people
from the Second Genesis program that has been so successful in
this community. I want to thank you all for coming. I am finding
out today that the ones to learn from are young people, not the
adults who may be defensive or predisposed in their position on
this matter. ‘ ’

David, we welcome you here today. How old were you when you
first became involved in drugs? «

Davm. | was in sixth_grade. First of all, I started drinking when
I was 9 years old. I started to drink m father’s beer. My mother’s
liquor was downstairs. In sixth grade, I started cutting school and I
started getting high in sixth grade.

Senator HaAwkins. What did you get high on?

Davip. What did ] get high on? I started smoking marihuana.

Senator HAwkins, Did you have to buy it? ~

Davip. Yes.

Senator HAwkiNs. Where did you get the money?

Davip. What? - s

Senator HAwWKINS. Where did you get*the money to buy it?

Davip. Where did I get the money? I stole it from my parents.:.

Senator HAWKINS. You stole it from your parents?

Davip. Yes.

Senator HAWKINS. Was it expensive? '

Davip. No, not really. At the time, it was $5, $10, but I mean all
the way to a quarter pound; $400 a pound. It is like you would buy
meat or in a store.

Senator HAwkINs. How many of your classmates were like that
in sixth grade?

Davip, Well, at the time in sixth grade, there was only me and
about four other guys that lived in the neighborhood in Glen
Emnie that got high at the time and were drinking.

Senator HAwWKINS. Out of how many?

Davip. I would say maybe 200 students.

Senator HAWKINS, 200 students, and about a handful of you that
were showing them how? "

DAviD. Yes. ' :

Senator HAwkins. Did it affect your school?

Davip. Yes, very much. *

Senator HAwKINS. Right away, or did it take some time?

Davip, It got worse and worse.
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Senator HaAwkins. When did you get heavxly mvolved"

Davip. By the time I got in seventh grade, I started using acid,
LSD, a lot and I started doing barbiturates.

Senator HaAwkins. In seventh grade?

Davip. What?

Senator Hawkins. In seventh grade"

Davip. Yes. -

Senator Hawxkins. Continue.

Davip. My parents were usmg Percodans and things like that for
back troubles—painkillers. And I was at the wide range where I
was going to medicine cabinets looking for anything I could to do
and get high on. n/

Senator HAwxkINs. Did you niix the drugs?

Davip. Mix it up; I would do everything—drink, anything I
could, you know, just to get me stoned so I would not have to face
reality, you know, as far as a lot of troubles, confusions.

Senator Hawkins. Did you go to school?

Davip. Did I go to school?

Senator HAwkINs. Yes..

Davip. About 65, 70 days out of a year of school. I did not go to
school that much. ’I'he only time I did go to school was to be the
class clown, you know, more or less.

Senator Hawkins. You were real entertaining?

Davip. Yes

Senator HAWKINS. They missed you when you were gone?

Davip. Yes.

Senator HaAwxkins. How many years did this last? T

Davip. All the way up to' t[";e 10th grade. I stayed _iff the 10th
grade for 3 years. .

Senator Hawkins. Tenth grade for 3 years?

Davip. Yes.

Senator Hawkins. That was your favorite class?

DaviD. Yes.

Senator Hawkins. You kind of hated to see that one go by.

Davip. Yes.

Senator HAWK]NB How did you get in 10th grade? I want to
know how you passed through to the 10th grade.

Davip. 1 rassed the 10th grade by the skin of my teeth. I do not
know how I did it; but I passed the 10th grade. at helped me
was vocational school, learning trades, voc tech. Like, I was very
interested in that, and I had it three classes in the morning and 1
went there from, 7:30 until about 12. Then I got out, and my house
was right in back of it, so then, from there, I just walked out the
door, went through the woods and went home, and that was it. And
then I might go to two periods a day at the regular school.

" Senator HAwkins. Dhd your drug habxts ever get you involved in
any criminal activity?

Davip. Yes.

Senator HAawkins. Tell us about it. .

Davip. Well, the more drugs I was using, the more physical habi-
tat—I was adapting to it. | wag at the point- where Fhad to have

drugs; I had to have them to function. Therefore, I needed a lot of
money.
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I was spending $100, $200 a week sometimes on drugs. And at
the age of 16, I was working at Dino’s restaurant and two other
restaurants until 17% and even that was not enough money for
me. | started doing B. & E.’s—breaking and enterings—I started
stealing from my parents. I stole a variety of jewelry from them
and anything that was worth money.

Senator HAWKINS. How did you convert it to cash? .
Davip. Excuse me? ,

Senator Hawkins. How did you convert it to cash? Would you °

trade the jewelry for the drugs?

_ Davip. Yes; I cashed the jewelry in at a gold store—you know, a
store that sells jewelry. .
Senator HAWKINS. And then go buy the drugs?

" Davip. Yes. .

Senator Hawkins. Did you lg:t caught?

Davip. Did I get caught cashing in gold?

Senator HAwWKINS. Yes.

Davip. Yes; I did, and I was going to GED school, and this - was

after I got kicked out of school. And I took this hi%h school ring to

school one day that I stole from this house that I broke into, and I

showed it to this guy and he wrote down the name on the high

school ring. And at this time, I think I got $60 for it. I went out
and I bought me some drugs and some alcohol.

And my mother came looking for me. I told her where I was at

~ one night, and the detective was at the house and said: ““Did you do

a B. & E.? Somebody called in and said you stole a t'inKn rom a

house.” And I kept on denying it. I said: “'No, no, no.” And then
finally I just told him and we went down to the jewelry store, and
when he got me in there and I showed him the place where the
ring was—as soon as he turned his back, I was gone; 1 ran from
him. I had to go.do mﬂllast little bit of drugs.

And then I stayed hiding from him; I hid from him for a couple
of days. I did not go home; I did not let my parents know anything
about it. And then finally, he was sitting on a street corner one day
in his car and I rode by and he pulled out in back of the car and
pulled us over and he took me down to the police station.

Senator HAwkins. And what happened?

y»Davip. What?

Senator HAwkins. What happened?

Davip. What hap

Senator Hawguvs. Yes. Did you get arrested?

Davip. He took me down to the police station and fingerprinted

me, and read me my rights and everything like that, and then I

went to court. I got back out. Do you want me to go on and tell you

on and on what happened? ‘

Senator HAwKINS. Yes.

Davip. OK. Three nights before I turned 18, I did another B. &

E., and I got caught for that. And they took me down to the police

station again. They were harassing me to ‘“give us some informa-

tion on people in your neighborhood that were doing things.”

There was only a certain crowd that was haraseing the neighbor-
hood. I would not give them an information, so they let me go
again, so I had another charge. So, the next night, I was walking
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through a parking lot and this time I just copped a quarter pound
of pot and some cocairle. ’ :
was going to work t:l)lFiCk up mj' paycheck at the Family Fish
House and the police pulled up and he said: “You fit the descrip-
tion of two people that just rob a gas station.” I did not rob the
gas station. I was walking to a friend’s house ta sell him some pot.
So, I got to the front door and he pulled up and he said: “Get up
against the car,” and everything like that. So, I got busted right
there. They took me down and they booked me, put me in a cell,
and called my parents. My parents came down and got me out.
Now, the next night, I got busted for attempted auto theft.
Sen';:tor Hawxkins. Every night, this became & nightly occur-
rence? :
Davip. Yes; three nights before I turned 18.
. 8o, 1 701: busted for attempted auto theft. I was down at Millers-

ville police station and my parents finally said: “Hey, I am not
coming down and getting you.” They told the officer to lock me up
and throw away the key.

When they took me in there, I was emotionally disturbed. I tried
killing myself in the cop car; I was beating my head against the
window. 1 was drinking Bacardi 151. It just seemed like the more
and more I was %oing through, I was just so emotionally down. I
tried killing myself various types of ways.

Senator HAwkins. And you are 18 now?

Davip. I will be 19 on February 26.

';%nator HAWKINS. Y% went through all this in the last year or
80 )

Davip. Yes. [

Senator Hawxkins. How did the courts handle your problem?
What did the courts do foryou? ¢ :

Davip. I thought court was a joke.

Senator Hawkins. Court was a joke?

Davip. Yes, I really did. At various times, I went there for
things. It was like more or less they slapped me on my hand and
said: “Dont’t do it again.” .

Senator HAwkiINs. Be a good boy? ]

Davip. Yes; and the same way my parents .handled the situa-
tions. I could get out of anything. The only thing I had to do was go
up to my room, and cry, and throw a tantrum, or whatever you
want to say, and blast the stereo, or something like that, and:I
would get my way.

Like, one time I did get-locked up, ‘}vgot put in Waxter’s and it
was for stealing a F’ng rom my aunt. en they put me in there, I .
was put in there tor 3 weeks. I was supposed to be in there for 1
month, and my parents got me——

Senator HAwkiINs. In where?

Davip. In Waxter’s Detention Center.

Senator HAwkiNs. Detention center? ‘

Davip. Right. And I told them I was not Foi:f to do drugs any
more. More or less, I was dishonest to them; I lied to them. So, they

ot me out. As soon as I got out, within an hour, I went down and

ught four or five quaaludes and drank a pint of JD, and went

home. And at this time, my father was drinking very heavily. He is
a truckdriver and he drinks'a lot.
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I remember walking in the door and there were a bunch of beers
sittin? around. He just grabbed me, shook me, and beat the crap
out of me. And I went upstairs and I just remember sitting there,
crying. Why does this have to be me? I tried slicingi‘mdv wrists.

And at tze time, my mother came h and I had the bedroom

“door locked. And she came in and she said: “Oh, my God, what

happened?”’ And I blamed it on my father. [ said: “He beat me up,”
and [ cut my wrists on a sharp cabinet e—one of those handles
on the cabinet—and [ tried to put it off on him.

That is the way | w up, trying to put my problems and my
faults on everybody else instead of me. .

Seriator HAWKINS, Were your teachers aware of this? Did you
ever have a teacher try to help you?

Dayip. Yes, I have had plenty of teachers try to, but I laughed at
them. I did not want their concern, or their help or anything. Even
my parents would try to helE me in a way and [ just laughed at
them and played it off as a joke.

Senator HAwkins. How did you come to find out about the
Second Genesis program?

Davip. Through court. The last -time | went to court, Terry
Devald, my probation officer, said: “‘Have you heard of Second Gen-
esis?” First of all, he asked me: “Have you got a drug problem?”
And I said: “No” and I laughed; I said: “No, 1 have not got a drug
problem.”

So, I went back to Waxter’s and I came back again, and he was
telling me about an interview at juvenile systems. So, he asked me
again, he said: “Have you got a drug pro lem?”’ And this time, I
was in there about 17 da{s and I turned 18 right in Waxter’s on
February 26. So, he finally asked me and I just started breaking
down and crying, and I said: “Yes, I have got a drug problem. Can
you help me?”

And when [ was in there, I finally realized, you know, what was
going on and what was happening. So, when [ went down there, he
said;: “OK, we will try to/fecommend you to Second Genesis.” 1 had
{ So, I went to court ayi I had a judge and
she was a and triedto play the role to bé’tougher than a guy.
So, I was kind of scared. ' ‘

Senator HAwkins. Lady "‘t;dges are tougher than the guys?

Davip. Yes. You know, that is the way I see it. :

Senator HAwkins. Kind of like your mama?

Davip. Yes. So, anyway, she kept goigg on: “Well, we could give
you training school; we could give you forest or camp, Or some-
thing like that.” And I stood up, you know, and I said: “'I would
like to go to Second Genesis; I have got a drug problem.”

Senator HAwkiNs. So, she let you choose which program?

Davip. Yes. B

Senator HAWKINS. She gave you a choice, and you said: “I am
going to take Second Genesis?”

Davip. Yes. So, I stood up and I said Second Genesis. You know,
I said: “I have got a drug problem.” I told her a lot about my rob-
lems—things that I did to my family and all the things revolving
around growing up. .

But at the time, I did not want to go to Second Genesis. | heard a
lot of bad things about it on the street. When I told a couple of
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friends | used to hang around with and igh with—I'told them:
“Yes, I am Foing to go to Second Genesis.” At the same time I said
it, though, I would laughing. “Yes, I am going to go to Second
Genesis.”’
v Senator HaAwkins. Yes, big joke. A
Davip. See, I heard a lot of bad thin
floors with toothbrushes. They shave aJl your hair off and they
make you wear signs, and all kinds of erazy things. -
Senator HAwkins. That was the sjfeet talk about it?
Davip. Yes. I said that must be

.

, like making you ‘scrub -

looney house, you know; I did

- not want anything to do with it. So, finally, when I went to Second
Genesis, it was not an_ﬁ:.hin like that. ' ‘ N
Senator Hawkins. They did not shave your hair?

Davip. No; they used to, but, no, it 18° nothing like that. As a
matter of fact, Second Genesis—I like it a lot, you know. It is a re-
spectable place; I respect it a lot for what it has done for me and
how I have helped myself in there. Cn .

Senator Hawkins. How has it changed your life?

Davip. It has changed it completely around, like, as far ag being
responsible, knowing that I can go to somebody and talk about my
feelings, being honest with people, changing my ways of stealing,
and being dishonest, and lying all the time. It has really helped a
great deal as far as believing in myself, believing I can make it
now, instead of always putting myself down.

Senator HAwWKINS. at advice would you give us here as Sena-
tors that we can relate to the courts? Do you have advice for the
court systém? Could the court system have helped you sooner? You
said earlier it was a joke. . . :

Davip. Yes.

Senu?tor Hawkins. Could the court system have really helped you
earlier’

" Davip. Could they have really helped?
.. Senator Hawxkins. Really helped you earlier. I mean, you seem to
have had several encounters with the court.
~Davip. Yes, probably. But, see, I cannot really say. The only
thing that I can say is maybe they should go a little bit hurdew’ﬁr
me, especially, because if a person is using drugs, | mean they do
not care. I mean, even myself, I did not care about the court
system. . C.

When you are signed into a place like Waxter’s, or any training
school, or anything, all the kids—I mean, it is more or less a joke.
They kind of like rap about it; it is a big joke. I mean, they have
got a TV in there and a i table. It is like a motel, really. |
thought it was; watch TV:, play pool, play cards. .

The thing I learned in there is how to be more slicker.

Senator Hawkins. How to be what? '

Davip. More slicker.

Senator HAwkins. More slicker? '

Davip. Yes, as far as, learning more about the streets.

Senator HaAwkINs. How to really steal' the marbles out of their

, - pockets?

DAvip. Sure; getting away with things. :

Senator Hawkins. You learned how to be a better thief, right?

Davip. Yes.

]
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Senator HAwkins. So, you would advise us as adults to be
stricter and at an early age? _ '

Davip. More strict; place more demands on them;! more about
drug rehabilitation programs. = . .

Senator HAWEKINS. You would recommend more places like
Second Genesis, rather than the detention centers where there is
sort of a pool hall atmosphere? »

Davip. Yes; more rehabilitation centers.

Senator HAWKINS. I rehlly think it is wonderful that you have
- realized that there is a better way to live and that you are willing

to share it with others. Are l%'ou going back to school now?. v

Davip. Well, I took my GED 3 weeks ago. :

Senator HAWKINS. That is your equivalency test?

Davip. Yes. :

Senator Hawkins. How did you do?

Davip. I do not know; I think I passed it. :

Senator HAWKINS. And then what are you going to do?

Davin. Then what am I going to do?

Senator HAwkiINs. Yes. o . :
~ Davm..Well, right now, the program has got three steps to it.

There is phase 1, initial, and then there is intermediate, and then
there is conclusion, and then there is phase 2 and phase 3. Right
now, I am about at the halfway stage. I am in the conclusion of
phase I, learning about voc rehab, work. skills, interviews, and
things you are going to have to deal with out there in society as far

as getting a job, and the fears, and the insecurities-around it.

Senator wKINs. Do you think you are cured and you are not

going to be on drugs any more? . o ‘
Davip. Do I think | am cured?
Senator HAWKINS. Yes. L ‘
Davip. I have got confidence in myself now.
Senator HawkiIns. Good. : ,
Davip. Before I did not have any at all. A
Senator HAwkIns. You sure have a lot to be confident about,
David, and I want you to stay- in touch with us and see how this
progresses. You could be of great help to other people of your age,
and also to educators. I think that we as parents and educators and
those interested in the judicial system are learning from you here
today that we need to be constantly tough and stern.

- Davip. I got my way all the time. S

Senator HAWKINS. You always were the boss, right?

Davip. Yes, I got my way all the time.

Senator HAWKINS. Senator Humphrey, do you have any ques-

tions for David? a

Senator HuMPHREY. David, you said your father drinks a lot. Do
you feel that led to your alcohol and drug abuse? Do you think he

set a bad example, or is that not a factor?

Davip. Yes; it did affect me, and the reason why it did is because
“mv father took out a lot of problems on me. Like, for instance, in
. school a Iot of times, in first and second grade, I would ask him for
help and after about 15 or 20 minutes, he could not gink it in my
head. He would say I was dumb and then he would say: “Well, you
are as dumb as ly-'lour mother,” and would compare me to'my sister
and how good she was doing—and my mother would, too. It was,
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like, compare and put me down, compare and put me down, you
know. ' ‘ '

And I ran with that conception that I was no good, and I was
dumb, and stupid, and that everybody else was better than me. But
since I have been at Second Genesis, he stopped drinking for some
reason. When I go home or something on days out, there is not one
beer around the house or anything. And I am just glad, you know,

_that he has found some help that could help himself.

Senator HuMPHREY. Do you think that parents setting a bad ex-
ample by abusing alcohol and drugs is a factor, generally speak-
ing—not just in your own personal situation, but generally speak-
ing—among the peer group? Is setting a bad example by parents
part of what leads young people into abusing drugs and alcohol?

Davip. As far as abusing, yes; as far as, you know, parents abus-
ing it; family situations, arguments around kids. That used to hurt
me seeing my parents fight all the time. : ..

Senator HumpHREY. Whose fault ig™i{ that you fell into abusing
alcohol and drugs?

Davip. It is really myself. I mean, no twisted my arms, and 1
really cannot blame them. A lot of it came {from me, just like Terry
said about being accepted. I always had to have drugs or money to
be accepted, and therefore I always had a crowd of friends around
me with these things that I had.

Senator HUMPHREY. So, mostly, you think it is a case of accept-
ing responsibility for your own behavior and your own destiny? )

Davip. Yes, and peer pressure. :

.~ Senator HUMPHREY. Not blaming it on others, although certainly
the environment is a factor, would you agree?
Davip. Yes. . » ‘
Senator HumpHREY. What should your parents have done, David?
- You said that you stole from them. Did they suspect your stealing?
Davip. Yes. : ' : :

Senator HumpHREY. Did they confront you consistently?

DaviD. Yes, they confronted me, and I lied. I mean, I told them I
did not do it. ‘ v L '

. . Senator HUMPHREY. And they accepted those lies? Do you think
they believed you? :
*Davip. No; I know they did not believe me.

Senator HUMPHREY. You know they did not believe you?

Davip. Yes. '

Senator HUMPHREY. So, they did not truly confront you? You
know they did not believe you, but they did not——

Davip. Well, I mean, they asked me and I always said “No.”
Like, even times when I was honest about something—like, take
this, for instance. One time, I got up out of bed and it was in the
middle of the night and there was a watch sitting on a table down-
stairs. My mother’s curler bag was there, and I picked up the
watch in the morning to see what time it was .and I put it in the
curler bag. '

They had the curler bag sitting up in the room for 2 weeks and
they told me I stole the watch, and then I told them I did not. They
. were looking through the trash cans; I could have thrown it in the
trash can. They beat the crap out of me and kept on accusing me.
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They found it 2 weeks later in the bag and they came and apolo-
.. gized to me. But I had that reputation around the house as a thief.

Senator HumMpHREY. What should parents do, as a general state-
ment, when they know or suspect their children are involved with
alcohol and drugs to the extent of getting further involved in
crime? at should parents do? | : !

I get the impression that because they are frightened, perhaps,
or do not know where or to whom to turn, parents, in effect, bury
their heads in the sand. What should parents do when they first
begin to suspect that their youngsters are getting into alcohol and ..
drugs, and perhaps éven crime? What should parents do? - . |

Davip. Know a little bit more about it, and also show a little
bit—I guess the way I felt is attention and concern, I mean like
really feeling it. See, my parents—the only way I reall found love .
from them was they bought me everything I wanted. That i8 how I
felt their love. I did not feel it as a deep concern or really sitting
down and talking to.me. . : . :

When my father was drinking, I mean I could not go to him as .
much as | wanted to, I was scared of him, 1 really was. And- my
mother—I thought she was as dumb as me, I really did. s

Senator HUMPHREY. So, you think that parents should seek to .
have a more honest and open relationship with their youngsters.
But, often, that is difficult; that is often difficult. ShoulX they then
seek outside help in bringing themselves back together with their
youngsters? _ ) »

Davip. Sure, such as therapy, family therapy. Since I moved to
Second Genesis, the family therapy I have—our family is so close
now, and I mean any time I have got a problem I will tell them
about it and they really understand. There is just so much congern
and respect and love there, it ‘is like a whole new beginning for me
as far as growing up.

_Senator HuMPHREY. You had a horrible family relationship, but
now you have a very healthy one, thanks to the family counseling
part of Second Genesis? v :

Davip. Yes. K

Senator HumpHREY. I think there is a.very important message in
that, Senator Hawkins. I have heard that elsewhere. Parents must
first confront the situation instead of pretending it does not exist,
and if ‘they are unable to handle it themselves they should know
that there are many organizations today available which are very
effective in helping them deal with this problem.

What should teachers do, David? If you had it to do over, what
“would you have had your teachers do? How could they have
helped? Did they ignore your problem as they did in Terry’s case,
or did theﬁonfront it and try to help you in any way?

Davip. The only time they tried to Kelp me was when I got sent
up to the principal’s office for being suspected of being high. And
at that time, I was only suspended; I mean, not sitting down and
really wanting to talk to you: “Hey, you know, are you on drugs,”
and blah, blah, blah, you know, on, and on, and on.

. Senator.HUMPHREY. So, the standard case of going to the princi-
pal or being suspended is sort of ineffective routine treatment of
your problem, is that it? '

Davip. Yes.
RJ
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Senator HuUMPHREY. No counseling, no attempt to really get into
the heart of the problem?

DAviD. No; the only time that there was was when I went to high
school, Glen Burnie High School. There was this one science teach-
er that did counseling between my family, and I mean it did not
help at all. I have been through various counseling centers, like

teen centers, youth centers, and nothing ever worked, nothing. And '

now it is all falling in place. .
Senator HuMPHREY. And, likewise, what would you have the law
enfércement people you came into contact with—policemen,

- judges—what would you have had them do differently?

Davip. Have them do differently? C

Senator HUMPHREY. Yes; do you have any advice for them?

Davip. Place more demands; maybe know a little bit more about
Second Genesis and various other drug réhabilitation programs for
young adults.

. Senator HuMPHREY. You mentioned that you kind of got turned
on to school activities when vocational training became available to
you. Do you think part of your problem was boredom with your

studies? Was that part of it? = - /- '
DaviD. Yes, that was it, too. Also, like I said, when I asked my

father for helr in math—math is my lousiest subject, and therefore

I hated school, I really did, after that time, asking him for hellp. I

did not want anything to do with it. That is when I started failing

sixth grade at that time, and I never asked for help in school.
Senator HumpHREY. My last question: you obviously have a lot of

affection for the people at Second Genesis-and the program. I no-
ticed that one of the ways-in which you characterized the atmos-
phere there was that they made you feel responsible. Can you

elaborate on that a little bit? It sounds almost like the dynamics of
the programs for alcoholism; they make people take responsibility -

for their problems and for their future. Is that what they have
done at Second Genesis, required you to be responsible for your be-
havior? . ’ )
Davip. It is a self-help program. I mean a person can go in
Second Genesis—staff or anybody can hold you accountable, OK?
" Senator.HuMpHREY. In what way? c

Davip. In what way? Like maybe screwing up; the tabs out there R

are bigger then at Second Genesis.

Senator HUMPHREY. The what?

Davip. The tabs out there. _

Senator HUMPHREY. Tabs?

Davip. Yes, tabs.

Senator HuMPHREY. What is that?

Davip. OK, say you gyet in trouble or something.

Senator HUMPHREY. Yes. . :

DAvip. And you might go to jail, or something like that, or steal-
ing, or anything like that. In Second Genesis, the tabs make you
really realize; I mean, it slows you down. :

7

In what way? By making you responsible as far as being inde- .

pendent on yourself; leading a good life, and knowing, you know,
and accepting your problems instead of running from reality all
the time; you l{now, making you face that situation; growing up.

Senator HumpHRrEY. Thank you, David.

b
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Senator Hawkins. Thank you, Dave. |

Penny, we are going to go to you now. At what age did you first
start using drugs? ‘ :

Penny. | was 12 years old. In elementary school, I was smoking
pot with older peers. I did not think that anybody else was doing it
but me when I first started, but I found out later on that a lot of
my peers in elementary school were smoking pot and drinking.

Senator HAwkins. Were the drugs readily available at school?

PeENNY. Yes. Well, not at school, really; it was not an open issue.
at that time. But if you had an older friend, or an older brother, or
sister, it was really available easy.

Senator Hawkins. Did you buy them or were you given them?:

PENNY. | was given them my first le of times, and then, like
Terry, I started babysitting and I could buy them.

Senator HawkiIns. Did you take any from the homes where you
babysat? s : :

PENNY. No. Well, where I babysat, there were two older brothers
of the klxgs and they really got me high; started me on quaaludes at
13 and 14.

Senator Hawkins. You could not win?

Penny. No; it is real hard, you know, to get away from it, too. It
is very hard to find straight people now days. Like, in school the
peer pressure is tremendous; it is hard to be a straight person now

days. :

%enator Hawkins. Did you ever buy any drugs from a dealer?

PeENNY. Yes, I've had a lot of dealer friends. There was a woman
in her 50’s and she had three sons—one that went to elementary
school, one that went to junior high, and one that was out of school
at home. And they all took drugs to school and they all sold them
for her, and when she was not at home—— ) '

Senator HAWKINS. She was the dealer and she used her children
as salesmen? . v

PenNy. Yes, yes. When she was not at home, it was like you
could pull up and buy drugs at the house. It was not uncommon to
see the 12-year-old kid come out and sell them to you when mama
did not feel like it.

Senator HAwKINS. Was it close to the school?

PENNY. Yes, real close; a couple of blocks from school. -

Senator HAwkINs. And everybody knew it was there?

PeNNY. Everybody knew about it. This-place—I had been going
there for 4 years. The police knew about it, too, I feel. Finally, they
busted it when they busted me.

Seg;ator Hawxkins. They caught you and the dealer at the same
time? ) : -

PenNy, Well, they caught the dealer later on because she ran. I
guess she was gone from the house and she came up and saw all
the narcs around the house and stuff. I was busted; 1 ﬁOt caught by
an u}r:dercover narc. | was working in a bar as a cocktail waitress
and he—— ‘ )

Senator Hawkins. How old were you?

Penny. | was 18. I had been working in bars since I was 17, 18,
19, finally when I turned legal age. I had fake ID.

Senator HAwkINs. You had a fake ID?
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PENNY. Yes. But, really, they knew I was underage, but I just
told them: “Hey, let me slide until I get to 19; I will be 19 in a
couple of months.” And they did. . ~

But the narc came into the bar with a friend of mine. I guess she
had gotten into trouble and needed to get out of it. She introduced
“ me o him and I was high and I said: “All right, I will get you guys
high. 1 will take you to get the drugs.” And I took them to the
house, the woman’s house, and I would go in and get the drugs and
take them out. Every time I went and got them for them, I ac-

uired a possession and a sales charge. I ended up with 18 felony

g charges. ’ :

Senator HaAwkins. Eighteen?

PenNY. Yes.

Senator HAwKINS. And you were 18?

PENNY. I was 19; I just turned 19 when I got into all this trouble.

Senator HAwkiIns. I understand you went to a rehabilitation
center called Village South?

PENNY. Yes, I am presently in the Village South right now and I
feel like it is the best thing that has ever happened to me. If I was
not given this chance to go into the Village South, I would more
than likely be dead right now or in prison. I am lucky that I got to
go into the Village South because when I went in, there was room
to take me. Now, there i8 not room; it is real hard.

I feel the program has helped me realize what a fool I was in the
past, you know. I have done crazy things—hitchhiking and stab-
bing ple, robbing them. It is real hard to face those facts, but
now I can. All that stuff was wrong, and I thought it was just
normal stuff. I was really a crazy person on the streets.

Senator Hawkins. Well, because you were on so many drugs.

PenNY. Yes. Well, I would not have robbed anybody or done any
of these robberies or stabbings if I would not have been high. I was
always so high I did not realize what was going on, you know.

Senator HAwkiINs. Did your teachers try to counsel you at all
during school?

PenNY. No; I had a couple of teachers I got high with, though, in
Jjunior high school.

Senator HAwxkiINs. That is a new avenue we will have to look
into.

Are there any signs in your school about: “If you have a prob-
lem, we have counselors that will help you with these problems’?

PenNY. No.

Senator HAwkINS. None at all? )

PeNNY. I never knew of any counselors or anything.

Senator Hawkins. How did you do in school? Did you pass your
classes? .

PENNY. Well, see, I think in junior high school they passed me
through to get me out of the school. I was selling drugs in school,
and I used to tell people they did not have to go to school if they
did not want to. “You will make it, you know, and do not worry
about an hini" I did not worry about anything, and they passed
me on through junior high school and I got to high school. I
dropped out in thre 10 grade, because there they made you do
your—work, they did not make you do your work, but if you did

-
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not turn it in, you would fail, you know. Mom and dad could not
come in and talk them into passing you out of school. '

I used to get high in the morning. There was a big party at
school; we used to throw the Frisbee. oot

Senator HAwkins. In the school? :

Penny. Yes, right outside the grounds. We used to throw the
Frisbee and people would ride motorcycles up and down, and it was
a real big part{‘.SWe sold pot and quaaludes and anything you
really wanted—LSD. :

Senator HAWKINS. On the school grounds? '

PENNY. On the school grounds. They had people that had gone to
the school or dropped out pull up in their cars and deal right out of
thﬁir cars. I sold pot and quaaludes in school—junior high and high
school.

Senator HAwKiNs. Where were your parents during this time?

PenNy. Well, my parents—my father works hard and so does my
mother, and they realized that I-had a problem, but I think that
my mother loves me so much, she did not want to realize the prob-
lem. She did not want to face it; she did not want to realize that
her daughter had a drug problem. You know, they talked to me
and tried to reprimand me with, you know, restrictions and stuff
like this, but I just cried and got my way out of everything.

Senator 1Iawkins. You ran the whole show, like David?

PENNY. Yes.

Senator HAwkins. Did you ever have counselin%as a family?

PeNNY. Well, my brother was in trouble when he was a teenager
and we had family counseling, but it was a joke because the
woman would come there and try to tell my father how to run his
family, which—he got resentful. But we have family counseling in
the Village South program that 1 am in now and it is real good.

They have given me back my family only we have a better rela-
tionship, where I can talk to my fat{ner and my mother and my
brother, and it is a joy. You cannot believe having your parents,
you know, not even wanting you around because you are high, or
they do not want you to see relatives because you are so high.

I thought 1 was fooling my relatives and stuff when I was high
when 1 would come home, but I Qnd out now they all knew. They
just ignored it.- -~

Senator Hawkins. How long will you be in this rehabilitation
center?

PeNNY. | have been in 4 months.

Senator HAwxins. How long do you think you will stay?

PENNY. Oh, it is an 18-month program. You are in a treatment
center where you live in and you are there all the time for, like, 6
to 8 months, and then you go to a reentry phase to.where you still
live there, but you go out and work and you have groups at night.
And then you go into outpatient, where you live on your own and
you just go in once & weeﬁ for groups, and then pregrad and then
you graduate.

Senator HAwkins. And then what will you do? Will you go to col-
lege or to work? s

enNY. Yes. Well, I am almost ready to take my GED and 1 have
already talked to a vocational counselor about some vocational
training. But once you graduate and ydu get into outpatient, you
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have acquired some friends that are drug-free and have been
through 1it, and that is a good feeling because without your sugport
system, your foundation there that you get b{;ngoinf through the
program, I think I would fall in the end. But I know I am not going
to fall now and get hi%l}m\ again.

Senator HAWKINS.

Terry’s; that in school it was the thin% to do, and if you were not
on drugs in school, you had few friends?

PENNY. Yes.

Senator HAwKINS. You were the odd person out?

PENNY. Yes. v ‘

Senator HAwkINs. But now that you have gone to this center,
youh;mve other drug-free friends; you have someone to associate
wit

PeNNY. Yes, and some of the counselors I met have all been
through it. They are ex-addicts and they all know what we have
Qone through. ’I&ey have gone through it, so they can understand.

ou cannot fool those counselors that have used drugs before.

I was in another program where they all, I guess, had college
and (fOt their education about drugs, and it was real hard. I mean,
I slid right through that program; I was a volunteer. I did it for my
parents, really. But they did not really know what they were talk-
ing about. :

nator HAwWKINS. You learned more from those counselors that
have been on drugs themselves and actually experienced and over-
come it?

PeNNY. Yes, :

- Senator HAwkIns. Well, you are a great example. We really ap-
preciate your coming, all of you, because it shows to the world that
there is hope and that you can overcome drug and alcohol-addic-
tion; that there are some programs out there if, indeed, you want
to be cured.

PENNY. Yes.

Senator HAwKINS. You are really going to affect a lot of young
ﬁeop_le's lives by sharing your experiences and successes. We have

eard here today that life can be beautiful and families great when
there is communication and understanding.

Do you have any advice for the teachers you had? Was there
anyplace along the way where you felt that if someone had come
forward you would not {mve had to go this far?

PennNy. Well, I think if you get in trouble and if you did not
know that mom and dad could always get you out of that trouble
and mom and dad could not always help you out, maybe that
would make a difference, because I was always like in a fantasy
world. I knew if I got in-trouble, my mom and dad were always
going to get me out of trouble.

And the teachers, maybe if they can just talk with the.students
and realize the problem, you know, instead of ignoripg it\ maybe
that could help., e /

Senator HAwKINS. Thank you, Penny. )

Senator?

Senator HuMPHREY. Penny, you mentioned that you used a fake
identification card to obtain alcohol before you were 18. First of all,
is that widespread? Do lots of young people have false ID’'s?

en your feeling is the same as David’s and
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PeNNy. Yes. I've been going to bars since I was 14.

Senator HuMpHREY. | beg your pardon?

PenNY. | have been going to bars since I was 14. .

Senator HuMPHREY. You obtained a fake ID when you were 14?7

PENNY. If youﬁo into a mall, there is a flea market. I know, like,
three places in Florida, in Miami right now where I could get one.
They have your picture on it and everything. ’

Senator HumpHREY. Yes. Is that widespread? Do lots of young
people obtain false ID cards?

PENNY. Yes.

Senator HumPHREY. As a matter of fact I know that it can be
done through the mails, because I am about to introduce a bill that
would permit the Postal Service to intervene in that process.

There is a common thread in your testimony and some that we
have heard earlier. You said that your mother did not want to face
the fact that her daughter was involved in drugs.

PenNy. Right. '

Senator HUMPHREY. And therefore really did nothing of any ma-
terial help to you? ‘

PENNY. Yes. _

Senator HumpHrey. What is the most important thing parents
can do when they realize or even suspect that their youngster is
involved in drug or alcohol abuse?

PeNny. Well, not just turn their head, but maybe get them into a
rogram or counseling, or not be.so dumb to the fact of drugs, you
now,

Senator HumPHREY. Be more educated?

PEenNNY. Yes. .

Senator HuMPHREY. And confront it. Does it do any good for par-

ents to hope that the problem will go away?

PeEnNNY. No. The problem will not go away by itself; it just gets
worse. It helps if tge parents show a lot of concern and a lot of
love, you know; not just material things that they give them to
stop. “I will give you this if you stop.” It does not help.

&nawr HumPHREY. But, often, it is difficult. By the time young-
sters reach their teens, often, for whatever reason, there is an un-
bridgeable gulf between them and their parents. What should par-
ents do when they want to have a better relationship, but they do
not know how? They find it difficult or im ible.

PenNY. Well, that is when it is time, I think, to get some therapy
or some counseling, because it is hard. You do resent your parents,
you know. .

Senator HUMPHREY. Yes. »

PeNNY. For anything they try to do toward you, you resent them.
It is real hard to fill that gap. I think family counseling, family
hel& or anything helps there.

nator HUMPHREY. So, once again the message comes through
that parents should confront the problem, and if they cannot
handle it themselves, which is very common, then they should seek
outside help, which is today more and more available.

Penny. Yes, and | thinﬁ, parents ought to realize that it is net
just their family with the problem. It is a lot of families that just
close their eyes and do not—— ‘

Senator HUMPHREY. Yes. It is not a matter for shame.
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PeNNY. Yes. It is not like you are the only one on the block; ev-
erybody has the problem.

Senator HuMpPHREY. Yes. You said the rehabilitation group—
what is it called?

PENNY. Village South.

Senator HumMPHREY. Village South.

Senator HAwkins. In Miami.

Senator HUMPHREY. In Miami. I am being coached here. It is a
Florida pr . .

Senator HAWKINS. Yes.

Senator HumpHREY. It has given you back your family?

PENNY. Yes.

Senator HUMPHREY. “d now you can talk to them. How do they
do that? For a parent Who is thmlung of seekin f this outside help
and who wants to have once again a loving an open relationship
with his youngster, what should he anticipate m one of these
courses?

The fear of the unknown might keep some ple from getting
involved in a course like this. How does it work?eo

Penny. OK. Well, they have parent groups where all the parents
get together to discuss their problems, ‘and they have to realize »
that their children do have problems. They have family counseling
where you are in there with the parents.

You know, you discuss the problem. If you feel like you have to
yell at your father or your father has to J'ell at you, you do it
under supervision; it does not get out of hand. .

Senator HumMpHREY. Yes.

PENNY. And you are drug-free, too; that helps a lot.

Senator HUMPHREY, Yes.

PEnNY. You can talk to d);our arents now that you are not, you
know, mumbling your wor ou can realize tf;at your parents
have been through a lot, and they realize that you have been
through a lot. Just the fact that you are trying to help yourself—
- your parents know that and they can forgive you for a lot of the
things that you have done. Just being straight with your parenta.s
a big difference.

Senator HumpHREY. The parents in these programs have the op-
portur':lty of meeting with other parents, with their own peer
group’

PennNy. Yes, they have their own parent meetings. I think it is
once a week that they have their parents’ meetings, and the direc-
tor of our program runs those and he does a good job, because it
makes the garents realize they cannot buy their kids, you know.

Senator HumpHREY. You mentioned, shockingly, that some of
your teachers not only winked at and condoned drug use, but par-
ticipated in it with you and perhaps encouraged you in it.

PENNY. Yes.

Senator HUMPHREY. Is that widespread?

PenNy. I do not know. I do not really think so, but I know that I
have gone to concerts with two of my teachers in junior high school
and got high with them; gone to the beach with them. I do not
really know about anybody else, but I know that he was always on
the beach, the local beach, and always getting hngh

Senator HUMPHREY. Yes.
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PenNY. And a lot of the students saw him and thought, “Wow,
he is a real cool guy.” -

Senator HUMPHREY. And you thought he was real cool in those
days, I suppose? :

PENNY. Yes. .

Senator HumpHREY. What do you think of him now?

PeENNY. Well, now, he is not a teacher any more, and I think he
works in a bakery; I do not know.

Senator HUMPHREY. Yes. Well, what I mean is what do you think
of that kind of teacher, or that kind of adult who sets such a poor
example?

PenNy. Well, I .do not think too much of him right now. Really,
to tell you the truth, I did not learn anything in his class and I got
a B. [Laughter.]

Senator HumpHurey. Do you think there has been any long-term
effect on your life, physical and emotional, from your involvement
in alcohol and drug use?

PenNy. Yes. I was very emotionally unstable. I would scream
and yell and fly off and throw tantrums at any little thing. I feel 1
got my emotional sanity back, too, by being in the Village.

The Village—to feel adequate about yourself, you have got to do"
adequate things. And every day of my life, now that I am in the
Village, I do adequate things with my life. We all have a monster
inside of us; all dope fierids have a monster. I have learned to con-
trol my monsters and not let him get the best of me instead of me
getting the best of myself. You have to learn to control your mon-
ster.

Senator HUMPHREY. Last question: Penny, what advice do you
have to those who are now in the miserable dilemma in which you
found yourself some time ago? What should they do if they are
looking for help?

PenNY. There are a lot of programs they can go to in Florida; I

" am not sure about everywhere else. But they have to want to help

themselves and realize that they have a problem, realize that they
can go to prison for abusing drugs and stuff like that.

The fact that I knew that I was facing so much time in prison
helped, too; it is real scary.

Senator HumpHrey. Thank you very much.

Senator Hawkins. Penny, foailed to ask you how many people
there were in that program at Village South. You said there was a
\lr:aitir;g list. How many are there enrolled in Village South, do you

now?

PenNy. I think 150 residents right now.

Senator HAwkINs. 150 residents. I failed to ask that. Thank you.

Ken, tell us about your first involvement with drugs or alcohol.

KeN. My first involvement with drugs was when I was in the sev-
enth grade; I was approximately 12 years old.

Senator HAwkiIns., Twelve years old? ‘

KeN. Yes. I was running across a lot czlf"ﬁ(:mﬂgesroblems at the
time with my mother and my father. y u to argue and
things like that, and I ran across drugs from a friend of mine who
smoked once in awhile, because he had another friend that smoked
once in awhile. ~
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I would just go smoke a little and try and forget, the arguments
or whatever they were having. In school, the drug I started with
was marihuana, but at school I could obtain almost any drug. I
wanted. , <

Senator HaAwkins. In the school, on the school grounds? .

KeN. Yes, in the school and across the street from the school, we
had some apartment buildings, right across the street, in front of
the school. And in these apartment buildings, we had these two
dope dealers.

nator HAwkins. Two what? » :

KeN. Two drug dealers. They were over the age of 18 and had
their own little place. They were not my close friends, but some
youngsters at the school—the youngest person I knew that dealt
drugs was 14 years of age and ge could go across the street to this
guy and the man would give him a large gackage. It was ;not too
bad, he would get a bag like this brown bag [indicating] and he
would come back to the school and go anywhere on the scﬁool prop-
erty. The whole thing was a place where you could buy drugs.

He would come back across the street and he would sell and dis-
tribute drugs right there—front, side, back, bathroom, wherever.
This was before school, during lunch, and after school.

Senator Hawxins. Were you allowed to go off of the school
grounds? .

KeN. Yes, for lunch we were allowed to go off to the store or
whatever, and that even made it worse. ,

Senator Hawkins. So, you would recommend that students be re-
quired to stay on the school grounds, even though there is plenty

on the school grounds?
Ken. Well, that would be an oi(;:iiustice for those people that do

not, use drugs. But it would be good, yes.

By the time I reached the eighth grade, the family problems I
was having with my father—well, he had some mental problems.
At the time, I was still young; I did not understand what was hap-
pening with him. Therefore, he used to do different things which
kind of provoked me to want to rebel against him and forget about
what I was seeing and what was happening with him.

~So, therefore, I used to, get more drugs and try and just blow my
mind away with them; just keep emoking. And I obtained the
money—at first, I obtained the money through, taking some money
from my father, stealing money from my father. And, at times he
had enough mbney for me to steal, but he was catching on to what
was happening, OK?

So, during eighth grade, I was just getting into drugs more. In
the ninth grade, I could not get any more money from him, so a
few friends of mine and myself would go out and sometimes we
would break into cars and sometimes we would snatch<purses.

Senator HAwKiNs. You snatched purses and broke into cars?

. KEN. Yes, right. We got away a few times. In the ninth grade I
got caught, though; I got caught by police down there. Well, I had
to go to the juvenile court or whatever.
nator Hawkins. Did they help you?
KeN. What?
Senator Hawkins, Did they help you?
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Ken. No, not one bit. The name of the charge was strong-arm
robbery, and it is a strong charge, very strong. They had cases
where some youth would snatch a woman’s purse and she fell down
" and got a heart attack and died. It was that serious of a crime.

I did not know until I got in there. They kept me in jail for 21
days and then they finally made a decision to send me to a’pro-

gram, which was a 6-month program. The program was—you know, -

you would go there during the day and you would sleep at home.

I do not want to mention the name of the program. I am not
trying to say the program was bad or anything, but it was not fo#
me. ,

Senator HAwkIiNs. It did not help you?

KEN. The only thing they did there was—first, they would teach
you how to swim.

- Senator Hawkins. They would teach you how te swim?

KeN. These are some of the things: they would teach you how to
swim. Then, once you learned how to swim good and you learned
abeut the water, they would teach you to drive d boat; after that,
gkindive, scuba dive, and just the good old things, like a day care
center.

Senator HAwkINS. It sounds like summer camp to me.

KEeN. Something you weuld go to have fun at. On the way there,
on the vans, you still got high, burned out of your mind. They
would even stop by the store sometimes and you could get you
some liquor or whatever you wanted.

While I was at this program, I found some friends. Well, they
were not too much of what I call friends now. They could show me
different ways to break into houses, which was something new. We
aeally did not do any, but, they showed me a good way that I could

o it.
So, in 3 months while I was in the program, I got on what the

called full-time work experience. I was not even going to work all -

the time. I believe the last month I was in the program, I was
doing B. & E.’s; I was practicing already. You know, I was into
houses and things like that, which is called burglary.

Senator HaAwkins. This was while you were in the program?

KeN. What? T

Senator HaAwkins. This was while you were in the program?

KEN. While I was in the program, the last month of the program.
I forgot to mention the drugs I was into while I was in the pro-
gram. | was into using cocaine. My two main drugs were cocaine
and pot. I used to drink a little, not too much, and I used to take
quaaludes rarely, not too much. E

Anyway, when I graduated from the program, they gave me a
little certificate and all that stuff, you know. They gave you a slap
on the back; you did good. And the week after I graduated from the
proiram, I got arrested for burglary into a car.

They dropped the charge down to a misdemeanor. fI forgot how
they said it, but it is like trespassing without having'someone tell
you to, or something like that. Anyway, they were trying to send
me. to State school, but for the charge being ro;ped down to a mis-
demeanor, it meant that I could only serve a 2month sentence at
some other place.
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I was very lucky because the judge wanted to send me over to ,

- the adult system, which would be stockade, Dade County Jail. But
he said: “‘We are going to give you this little break right here,” my
last break. And they said they were goipg to send me to Village
South, and luckily the Village South wi ot crowded at that time
the{ had a few sgzm open for me, at least one for me.

If the Village Soyth would not have had any vacancies for me to-
go into there, he would have definitely loid me over to the adult
system and 1 probably would have been in prison or dead some-
where, because my life was pretty rough. R ‘

Anyway, | went to the Village South for 2 months and whilel * #*
was -there, | had some other burglaries brought up. After I.got
cmifht for that burglary into a car, they let me go and then they
ai :h“Well, you have got like a week before you go to the Village

uth.” \

That same day that they let me go, 1 got picked up for a few
counts of grand theft and burglary. And what ha Pened this
time—the judge had already told me I was going to Village South,
80 ‘he said that was all right. They sent me there, and meanwhile
while | was in the Village South-—well, | am there now—I keep
going back and forth to the coyrt to see what is going to happen
with me with these other charges. , .

But other than that, the Village South—you know, I could not
start explaining how well the program is. They helped me out with
my family problems, dyou know, because while | was on the street
the way {wns, I could not really relate to my mother or my father
just because of the drugs | was doing and, you know, the way | was.

You know, now that I am in the program, my mother told me
that my attitude has changed all the way around, you know. Now,

I am looking a lot better. | am doing something for myself.

It offers family counseling, like Penny said. It also offers me an
education. | hu({ a pretty good education when I was coming up
through elementary schogl. I was not doing too bad in junior high.
In the 10th grade, | started just drorpinq.

has offered me an education. I will be getting my GED soon.

C at else? Also, like throuih m{ pee}'a—-it is like putting a mirror
in front me and looking at how | was on the streets and the things
that I did. I have got to realize that all of it was because of me; you
know, all the thin%z: I did were because of me. I cannot blame it on
my parents, even though that kind of ignited me to falling into this
stuff. But everything I did was because of me, because of the way |
was thinking at the time on the streets. ,

That mirror is showing me what they call my monster, and that
is something that is real tough. They are teaching me how to deal
with that in a positive manner. It has also helped me to disclose
myself to my peers; you know, tell them things about my family
and about me that I would not tell anybody. :

It is also, at the same time, bringing me closer to positive people -
that I need to make it. This program has, stage oné, stage two,
stage three, then reentry and outpatient. And even the people in
outpatient, that are, on their own, they still come back in, once in .
a while to relate to us—the ones that are just trying to make it.9
They are trying to help us out. It is the best program | have ever
been to. :

[
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~of the teachers.
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Senator HAWKINS. It sounds to me like you recommend more Vil-
lage Souths and less court-run camps.

KEeN. Yes, definitely. S
~ Senator HAwKINS. And you say, like Penny, that it is full now
and has a waiting list of people who would like to join. -~

KeN. Yes, it does. , : '

Senator Hawkins. We will have to look into making those recom-
mendations. . - ' '

When you were in school, did you ever see any signs in your
school hall directing you to counselors that were available to help
you talk about any problems? Did you ever see a poster? .

Ken. No, not while I was there. The teachers and everything,
they knew that a lot of the kids there were using drugs. Even some
of the teachers—— - ' v B

Senator HAWKINS. Some of the teachers were on it, too, right?

Ken. Yes, right. I never had the opportunity to get high with one

hSema\tor Hawkins. You were too busy breaking and entering.over

there? \ :

KeN. Yes, that is very true, too, You know, I did not see any op- -
portunities where they were offering me help for my problem. And
at the time, even if I did, it would have been better if, you know,
like Terry said, they had other peers that could talk to me, because
I could relate to another peer, other than, like, someéne with au-
thority or, you know, a principal getting up there and having: a
long lecture and all that. .

Senator Hawkins. Did you find in your school that there was
pressure to because involved with drugs; that it was a good way to
make friends? o ) : .

Ken. True, yes. That is why I depend on the peers at the Village
South. .

Senator Hawxkins. But Village South is the only place you have

_ friends?

KenN. Right. - '

Senator HAwkiNns. They are all straightening up?

KeN. Right. They are good friends, you know. They are the type I
can bring my problems to. They can bring their problems to me
and we can relate on that. But the friends on the street that I
had—I had one friend that I grew up with when I was a little child,
elementary school, all the way up. We just cannot relate at all. It is
just the way it is; you have got to lose some. ' ' ‘

Senator HawkiNs. We are glad you found Village South and we
will keep in touch with you and see what happens with the courts
as you progress in this experiment. We appreciate your coming and
helping us, Ken, and helping other kids and showing that there is
another way. .- ' :

Senator Humphrey? o

Senator Humpnrey. Thank you.

Ken, you said you had trouble with your father. I presume that
means that it was difficult for you to communicate with your
father. Is that true? You did not have a good relationship with
your father? v .

KeN. No. I would say from the first grade to the sixth grade, we:
were all right. But in the seventh grade, like I say, he started to

1
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develop a mental problem where even if I wanted to talk to him
and relate to" him—I just did not want to at the time because, you
know, I saw the way he was at that time. '
~ Senator HUMPHREY. I understand. What about your mother, if I
malaz ask? : L o .
“KEN. She was there all the time for me. You know, she knew
when I was getting high at times and she would let me know. She
has a word; she called it buggy eyes, you know, when your eyes are
.real beady, or whatever. She used to say:*‘You have buggy eyes,” -
s and all this stuff. N
v Sometimes, if she could not talk to me—I was the type of person, i
I .was just plain stubborn; I did not want to hear it. She would
" write me a ﬁatter and I would wake in the morning and see a letter
on my dresser and I would read it. You know, she would tell me all J
kinds of things in the letters. - . v T

Senator HUMPHREY. So, she maybe felt she could not talk to you, -
but she would put her thoughts in writing. Panlt

KEeN. Right. . ‘ )

Senator HuMPHREY. So, there was a communication problem
even with your mother, although she found a way to get around it
to some extent. ' N ‘

KeN. Yes, that is true. , _ “o.

Senator HUMPHREY. That seems to be another common thread—a
breakdown in communications and inability to really discuss things
heart-to-heart. ’ :

~Did your parents confront the problem? Did they try to do any- -
thing about it, really?: . L

. KEN. Well, yes. I was getting ready to mention that. My mother
did have us going to a social worker, you know, where I would talk
to the social worker and then my mother would come in and we all -
would talk. ’ ' . ’ o

Senator HUMPHREY. Yes. ,

KeN. But I did not like that one bit. I did not like the lady; I did
not like anything about it. ‘ i oo

Senator HuMpPHREY. That did not help? .

KEN. No. 4 :

Senator HUMPHREY. Because the social worker was not properly
trained, perhaps, is that it, or did not understand? . -

KEN. I just did not like the lady - . :

“Senator- HumpHRrEY. Did putting you in jail help you in any way
to overcome your problems of alcohol and drug abuse?

v ' C

» KEN. It made me think a lot; that is for sure. But I guess it was
not enough. - . -
Senator HUMPHREY. But you always went back?
: KEeN. Yes, the same day Iy got out. :
v Senator HUMPHREY. So, it did not help you in that regard?

KEN. No. : .. ..
Senator HuMPHREY. Did you ever hear any warnings when you
were getting into drugs an! alcohol? Did you ever hear any warn- -
ings that the abuse would be damaging physically and emotionally?
. .EN. The most warnings I heard was in elementary school. .
Senator HumMPHREY. Did you believe them? N S
- KEN. Well, yes, at the time. Me and my best friends said: “Oh,
we will never do that; we will never smoke,” and all this stuff.
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Sexiat.or HumpHrey. But later on you did, even though you had
been previously warned. So, apparently you did not really believe

that there was this danger?

Ken. Right. Nq, I did not really believe it. ;

Senator HumpHREY. You just thought that was some stuff adults
made ug’to try to get you to eat your spinach and all that.

Ken. Yes. I thought they had exaggerated on that a little bit, too.

Senator HuMPHREY. Were you ever exposed to publications that

" down played or denied the damage, or perhaps denied the dangers

-~

that drugs and alcohol Fosed, or perhaps even suggested that they
0 ‘ .

“were in some way good for you?

Tixvxgerg you ever exposed to things like a magazine called High
eg? : : , ‘
Ken. Well, I never really read it that much. In the newspaper
they had an article that said pot was good for stopping vomi_tid%pgr
somethipg like that. ‘ :

» Senator HUMPHREY. Yes. : , .

KeN. So, you know, once I read that, I figured that, well, if they
could use it as a drug to help people, how could it hurt us?

Senator HUMPHREY. Is it within the rules here to ask these other
folks that same question?

Senator Hawkins. Yes. :

Senator HUMPHREY. Were you misled by publications such as
I-}Illagl'a’ Times magazine, any of you. Do you want to comment on
that? : ' ' v
Penivy. I used to like to read High Times magazine. It showed
ou how to make hash out of pot and stuff like that. I never be- -
ieved that any of the stuff would harm me. . -

Senator HUMPHREY. Because of what you read, you mean, be-

‘cause of this magazine?

PenNY. Yes. It never really said anything that it would hurt you.

- I did not even think that pot could hurt your lunfs like cigarettes

do. I never realized anything like that until recently
Senator HumpHRrEY. What do ggg think of magazines like High
Times now, after what you have been through? ‘
PeNNy. I think they are a joke. Like, if somebody is just smoking
pot, they can get them to other things. I have seen them; they have
got whole pictures of cocaine and quaaludes and other. pills. It
really introduces the bther things to young people that are just
smoking or just drinking, and then it makes you more curious as to
what the other things.can—how they will get you high or how you .
will feel when you do those. . :
Senator HUMPHREY. Does .anyone else want to comment on that?
Senator Hawkins, Terry? :
TeRRY. Yes. I read Hﬁl}) Times magazine a lot. .
Senator HUMPHREY. you think it had much influence on you?
Terry. Yes, yes. It helped me a lot. I was thinking; they have
where you can send away and order stuff. ,
Senator HUMPHREY. Yes. ' '
Terry. And I forget, what-it is called; it is some kind of shotgun
thing. You know, those things they put a joint in—it looks kind of
like what she has on her face. [Laughter.] v
It is a power hittér. You just send them a couple of dollars and
then they mail it to you. Also, they have recipes in there where
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{ou can put hash and pot and stuff in foodv and we used to make a A
ot of brownies and stuff like that and give them to people who

~ really had never smoked E:t or anything before and they would eat

them. That was fun, you
Senator HuMpHREY. What do you think of that magazine today?
+Terry. I am totally against it. I have also heard some people
from—I think they are called reform——

Senator HumMpHREY. NORML?

Terry. NORML, yes. I have heard them and I totally disagree,
because I have run into so many people. I was a daily pot smoker
and ‘I do not believe there are any social pot smokers around, you
know. People do not need to smoke pot to be sociable, you know.

You know, I smoked f)ot for about a year and I would eat and go
to sleep, and that is it. uld not be sociable.

"Senator HuMPHREY. So, you would tell young dpeople—l do not

you tell youn,

I?Ie about organizations such-as NORML and publications suc
igh Times, which tend not only to downplay the dangers and
dlsnnss them, but actually encourage young people to use drugs?

- Terry. 1 would probably tell them to kéep an open mind, you

'know, because that is what I have to do. I have to look at both
" sides, you know, and what is fact and what is not, and that is what
" I have done ggnd I have come to my own conclusions. And I think

that other ﬁeople my age could do the same. <.

Senator HuMPHREY. Thank you.

Senator HAwkins. Mike, thanks for waiting. Tdll us what a big,
strong guy like you is doing with drugs. When did you first get in-
volved with drugs? How old were you?

MIkE. I first became involved in drugs heavﬂy when I was about
12, and I tried it off and on before that, but heavily when I was 12

Senator HaAwxkins. What kind of drugs did you use and where did
you get them?

Mike.-Some of the drufs that are in schools and available are,
you know, pot and alcohol, you know, and some pills. Usually, you
can get them through other kids in the schools.

Senator HAWKINS. Just other students?

Mike. Yes, yes. You know, it is pretty readily available.

Senator HAwkins. What kinds of drugs did the kids use?

Mike. What kind of drugs did the kids use?

Senator HAwWKINS. Yes.

Mike. Marihuana, booze, downers, uppers, cocaine; you know,
those kinds of drugs.

"Senator Hawkins. Did it affect your education?

Mike. Well, yes. If you are going to class and you are stoned
every day, you know, it is kind of hard to learn. [Laughter.]

Senator Hawkins. Did the teachers notice?

Mike. Well, yes, with a lot of kids. You know, you go in and just
start noddmg off, start to fall asleep. You know, it is obvious; you
can sgee it in people 8 eyes and the way they carry themselves and
the way the I-}I, speak, you know.

sgtor AWKINS. What did the teachers do when that hap-
pene

Mike. Well, it depends Kou know, how much they care; whether
or not they care and whether or not they feel they can do anything
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" about it. In some schools, there is so much drug use. I think a lot of
teachers feel there is not much they can do about it, you khow, and
they kind of get a little apathetic. Then, on the other hand, there
are teachers who do care. '
Senator HAwgINs. Did you get-promoted? ,
-+ Mixke. Pardon? ] . ' : "
! Senator HAwgINs. Did you get promoted? ) \
Mixe. From grade to grade? , .
Senator HAwrins. Yes. ’ . .
Mikzx. Yes, yes. ) :
Senator HAwkins. How? .
call\ldlxl. Just by doing a minimal amount of work, you know, basi-
y. ’ . ,
Senator HAWKINS. What they call social promotion?
Mixe. Yes, there.is a lot of that.
Senator HAwxins. How did you finally overcome it? What made
you decide to change?
Mikz. Finally, I stop using drugs. Well, it took me a while to
finally get off them and stay oft of them.
Senator HAwkiInNs. How old were you when you decided not to
use them anymore? ' ’
Mike. Well, the last time I got high, I guess I was 16—no, I was
15, almost 16 The way I first came in contact with any. kind of
help was 1 was put into a hospital. It was a drug rehabilitation
center for teenpgers, and I went in there and I was 14. L ]
., That was 6 weeks and, you know, it kind of gave me an introduc-
tion to a little bit of help, you know. It mage me look at a few
~things about myself. It got me sober for about—you know, they
‘kept me away from drugs pretty much for about 6 weeks and kind
.of gave me an introduction to it.
en I left the program after 6 weeks, I went home and I was
bored gnd I was lonely and I was not having any fun, so after a
couple of days, I started getting high again, and that went on for
about 2 months or 80. And then a halfway house that I had had an
interview at and had been accepted at called me up and said, you
know, “We have room for you if you can come on out.”
You know, I was getting high a lot, but 1 knew that I wanted to
be strdight, you know; that it was not the right thing for me. So, |
went out there, and it is a 6-month program and there are g’rog])e.
And, you know, when you go there, you have been straight usually
for at least 2, months or so and your head is starting to clear up. |
—_ But, you know, I had problems there. I stayed there for only6
eeks, and it was a 6-month program. I ended up leaving there, o
t I got an apartment with some friends who were straight and |
ad been straight for a while; and I stayed straight for almost a |
year—about 10 months, 11 months. o e
Then -1 decided to move back home and after about 2 weeks, I T
started getting high again for the same reasons as before. You ;
know, it was not worth it to stay straight because I was not having
any fun, you know, and I was bored and I was lonely. :
nator HAwWKINg. Were you working?
Mike. Pardon me? ' -
Senator HAwKINS. You weren’t working, you just kind of hung
around? :
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Mike. Well, no. I had been out of school for a while and it was
the spring when I came home, so I could not go back into school. 1
was still school age, you know, so 1 was just kind of hanging
around. And all my old friends at home were getting high, you
know, and you are told in treatment centers and halfway houses to
stay away from them; stay away from your junkie friends and, you
know, just keep clear of them because it is going to get you stoned
again if you do-not. N . .

But they were the only people I knew, you know. I did not know
any straight kids, and so it made it kind of hard. I got high for
about 2 weeks then, but I had been straight, as I said before, for
about 1 year and, you know, I knew I could not lie to myself any-
more. I did not have Any fup getting high either, you know. I start-
ed getting high again so I would have some fun, and I was not.

1 was miserable because 1 Rnew, you Jknow, that it was ruining
my life; I knew that, you know, if I went on with it, I would most
likely be dead, you know, within a couple of years. And I ended up
having a bad experience with one drug—a slight overdose, and
then I just said this is not for me, you know. I mean, I was throw-
ing up and, you know, I could not see and I could not walk, you

. know.

But I still, inside, knew; I said this is not for me. You know, this

is not the way I want to live, so I stopped. That was the last tinte I

got high. »

Senator HAwkINS. When was that? "

"Mike. Well, it will be 4 years in May; it will be 4 years. \
Senator HAwkINS. You have been drug-free, then, for 4 years?
MIKE. Yes. . ,

. Senator Hawkins. Alcohol, too?

MIKE. Yes, alcohol and drug-free for almost 4 years. -

Senator HAwkIns. What do you think, looking back on it is the
best way to help young people overcome drug problems? ’

MIKE. A lot of people talked to me. You know, I mean it was ob-
vious that I had a drug problem to everyone.

Senator HAwkINS. Your teachers, your parents? 4

Mike. My teachers, my parents, my relatives, friends; everyone
knew I had a drug problem because 1 was always stoif€d, you know,
or falling down, or, you know, just having lgts of problems—family
problems, school problems, social problems. You know, I was
having problems functioning. '

And, you know, they did a lot of talking and that did not help at
all, you know. I just kept going and going, and the aonly reason I
am sober today and the only reason that any of the help that I fi-
nally got with the hospitals and the halfway houses—the only
reason it took any effect was because I was ready, and it is the
san:ie way for every alcoholic and every junkie. He has got to be
ready.

You have to suffer enough; it has to be worth it, you know. Fi-
nally, after going to the hospital and the halfway house and getting
high again several times, 1 was ready; I had suffered enough. You
know, I had gone through enough mjsery and 1 was able to stop.
You know, I feel I can go on for the rest of my life, hopefully, drug-
free.
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Senator HAwkins. Does everybody have to go through it? Does
every kid have to experience it, in your opinion, or how can you
help us? :

Mike. Experience problems to that severity?

Senator HAwkiINns. Yes.

Mike. No, most kids do not; I think most kids do experiment
with the drugs, you know, and- that is all right. In my opinion, ev-
eryone tries new things; you know, everyone has their f!:rst drink.
Most kids nowadays try marihuana, you know, and a lot of them
end up drinking and smoking marihuana socially, you know.

But not all kids have to go through it, and not all of them will -
because, you know, when you get this caught up in it where you
are failing in every aspect of your life, it is a disease and not every-
body has the disease, you know. A lot of kids will just try it; you
know, try different drugs and maybe even try drugs as strong as
LSD and downers and uppers, and will decide it is not for them.

But it is the kids who keep going, you know, and obviously these
drugs are not doing any good and doing a lot of harm. And the
people who keep going are the people with the disease and people
with the problem, you know, who need help. , .

Senator HAwKINS. Were most of your friends in school on drugs
while you were in school, or do you remember?

Mixe. Well, all of my friends used drugs, yes; they did use drugs.

,  Some had more problems with it than I did and some had less
problems, you know, than I did. Most had less problems than I did.

Senator HAwkKINS.- What are you going to do with your life now?

Mike. Go on, go to school. ©

Senator HAwKINs. Go to college? .

Mike. I want to go to college, yes, and just lead a normal life, you
know. Now, after a-couple of years, it is pretty normal, you know.
You know, I act responsibly; 1 feel good about myself. You know,
life is great. _ _

Senator HAwkiNs. It is great that you have been successful.

Mike. Yes. :

Senator HAWKINS. Senator? .

Senator HumpHREY. Mike, do you feel that maybe you have lost a
couple of valuable years of your life because of this experience?

Mike. I did not grow any while I was stoned.

Senator HuMPHREY. You did not grow while you were stoned?

Mike. No, when | was high on drugs—you cannot grow because
you do not feel anything.

Senator HUMPHREY. So, you are marking time, at best?

Mike. Yes, yes, you are losing a lot of time, you know. I have
gained a lot back. I am a stronger person now, you know, for going
through all this and winning. [ have gained something in that, but.
I did lose time.. . , v

Senator HUMPHREY. You are probably behind a lot of your
friends who did not get into drugs abuse as deeply as you did.

MIkE. In school; I lost in that way from my friends, yes. '

Senator HuMPHREY. You have lost a couple of years in getting
started on your career and so on? :

Mike. Yes, yes, it definitely slowed me down, you know, because I
ended up not caring about school, you know. .
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Senator HumpPHREY. Let me ask that same question of each of the
witnesses.

Ken, do you feel that you have lost a couple of years of your life?

KeN. Yes, I feel as though I lost at least 4.

Senator HUMPHREY. At least 4 years of your life?

KEeN. Yes. :

Senator HuMPHREY. So, you are probably quite a ways behind
some of your peers who are almost finished with school and are
into their careers, and so on?

Ken. Well, most of the peers that I used to associate with used to
get high, too. Personally, I am leaving them behind because they
are still into it.

Senator HumpHREY. Yes; that is a good angle, a good aspect of
this. But in terms of those who stayed straight or did not get in
over their heads, you are probably a couple of years behind them
now, are you not?

KEeN. Say that again.

Senator HumpHREY. Did you have any friends who did not get in
over their heads and who stayed straight?

KzN. Yes, I had a few. :

Senator HAWKINS. Can you remember them?

Ken. Well, I feel as though I am up with them because,they are
still kind of not sure of what they want to do, and ] am, like, going
in the direction I want to go into now.

Senator HUMPHREY.

Penny, do you feel lyou have\loet a-couple of years of your life?

PenNy. Yes; I feel like I stopped maturing at 14, when | really
started getting heavy into drugs.
~ Senator HumMpHREY. So, you interrupted the maturatnon process
at a very critical point in your life?

PENNY. Yes. I feel like I am really behind. You know, I am start-
ing to get confident in myself, but as far as educationwise and ev-
erything else, I am behmd other people that have done something

~ with their life.

I have a couple of friends I remember all the way from elemen-
tary school that are—I ran into one who is a dental technician and
everything. It is really, I feel, inadequate in those areas.

Senator HumpHREY. David? ’

Davip. Yes; I feel like I have lost some time as far as growing- up
from the age of about 15 when I started getting really heavily in-
volved in acid, as far as growing, and taking on responsibilities,

. and maturing. 1 feel like I have lost a great deal of that time. I feel
like I have wasted at least 8 years of my life.

Senator HumpHREY. You have wasted at least 8 years?

Davip. Yes, from doing drugs. I feel like if I was strong enough
and did hot use drugs, I feel like I would be way ahead of myself—
as a matter of fact, one step ahead of myself.

Senator HUMPHREY. Terry?

Terry. 1 feel that in school now, being in high school with
normal kids, I am in the same grade that I should be in. How I did
that, I do not know; that is a miracle. But I feel that I have to

' study harder, you know.
‘Senator HUMPHREY. Yes. '
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Terry. I missed a whole lot of school. I learned what the Civil
War was about last year. I did not know, you know, because 1 was
.always stoned in school. But as far as maturity, you know, I think I
titiarted growing mentally and spiritually when I was, I guess, about

or 12.

Like Penny was saying, you know, I have been told that, you
know, I am an 11-year-old spoiled brat growing up, you know, and I
believe that sometimes.

Senator HuMPHREY. Mike, what can be done to encourage peer
groups of kids who are pretty straight or nearly so? Apparently,
one of the reasons kids get into drugs and alcohol abuse is that
their friends are doing it; they want to have a gaod time and they
want to be popular.

. Is there any way that the opposite kind of peer pressure can be
;nerated? Have you seen any examples of that? Do you have any
1deas? : : '

Mike. You mean the opposite; that school is the thing to do?

Senator HUMPHREY. Yes.

Mike. Yes, that is pretty much the only thing you can do to stop
the problem, to change the attitudes of people; educate the people
and change the attitudes. You are not going to, you know, stop the
presence of drugs. You are not going to sto the use of drugs,
really, unless you do change the attitudes. 1 mean, you cannot
ph¥slcally stop it.

ou know, a person is going to do what they want,to do. People
are still going to go on selling drugs; people are still going to go on
buying tﬁem and using them. But if Kou can change people’s atti-
tudes, you know—an example that I think may help is at a school 1
was in, we had a drug-and-alcohol-awareness day.

- What we did was we had a touple of films and we had a lot of
speakers come in. It was not really policemen, or doctors, or pey-
chologists, or, you know, this kind of thing. I mean, sure, they can
tell g:u what the effects of the drugs are and what the penalties
can be, but it is meaningless to moat people, you know.

Senator HUMPHREY. Yes.

Mike. People who have been there, ple like myself and people
like the rest of the people here speaking—you know people who
can tell you what it is like, and where you are going to go, and that -
kind of thing—I think it was a big help, you know, to the rest of
the kids in the school. So, that is mainly it; just educate the par-
ents, you know, so they will be more aware of the problem and the
signs of it and what they can do, you know, as far as getting hel
for their kids—you know, treatment centers—and change people’s
attitudes, you know. ' .

Senator HumpHREY. I think it is a valuable insight to those who
are involved with parent groups, and 8o on, or who are thinking of
setting them up—counseling programs or whatever—that authority
figures simply are ineffective in this situation and what you need
are peers, such as peorle like you, who have been to hell and back
and whom the kids will believe.

Mike. Yes; it is a little bit more believable than sitting and lis-
tenin? to a policeman, although what he has got to say is probably
equally valid, you know, about a jail sentence or whatever.

Senator HuMPHREY. Yes.
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Mike. But I think most kids will probably sit there and laugh at
him, you know.

Senator HumpHREY. Thank you.

Senator Hawxins. We really thank you for participating with us
today and we ask you to remain to hear our next paneF which 1
think you young peOﬁle will find very interesting. I hope you can
find a seat; come up here and sit if there are no geats in the back.

This next ‘panel is comiprised of respected officials with innova-
tive Judxcnal approaches and law enforcement officials with an
insider’s viewpoint, which really is fascinating.

We have with us today the Honorable Vincent Femia of Prince
Georges County, the” Honorable John C. Trace of Montgomery
County, and Officer Jim Rlchardson of Houston,

You gentlemen are 8o busy; 1 appreclabe your taking time and
traveling here, especially lcer Richardson who came from Hous-
ton.

We are goinito ask Officer Richardson first if he would speak
with' us about his background. Officer Richardson, please describe
for us how you became 1nvolved in this whole drug scene.

STATEMENT OF JAMES RICHARDSON, POLICE OFFICER, HOUS-
TON POLICE DEPARTMENT, HOUSTON, TEX,; VINCENT J. FEMIA,
SEVENTH JUDICIAL COURT OF MARYLAND, UPPER MARLBORO,
MD.; AND JOHN C. TRACEY, JUVENILE DIVISION, SIXTH DIS-
TRICT COURT OF MARYLAND, ROCKVILLE, MD,, A PANEL

Mr. RicHArDsON. First of all, I have been a police officer now——

Senator HAwkiINs. Put the mncrophone up close; it is not very ef-
fective.

Mr. RicHArDsON. I have been mth the Houston Police Depart-
ment now for 6 years. I have been involved in juvenile narcotics for
2 years. We have two separate narcotics divisions in the Houston
Police Department—one on adult narcotics, and then juvenile nar-‘
cotics.

Basically, we deal with the people, from the age of 17 to 26 that
sell drugs to the juveniles. I got involved in the drug end of en-
forcement because of the fascination; I was wondenng why people
actually did use drugs. -

Senator Hawkins. Did you ﬁnd out?

Mr. RicHArRDSON. Yes; I did come to find.out that r pressure
was the No. 1 motivating factor for drugs, trying to be accepted. I
do not know if it was the family or everyone around you, or what,
but just trying to be accepted was what &'e children wanted.

.lSer';ator Hawkins. How did you establish rapport with the juve-
niles?

Mr. RicHArDsON. Well, because I am an outsider and I am a little
bit older than they are, it was a little bit difficult. Basically, it is
just being what they quote as being cool, tryin% to get them to
accept my behavior, and just showing them that I accept their be-
havnor, and working my way into their organizations, as they are.

Senator Hawkins. Did you buy from juveniles in your business?
Do you buy drugs from them?

r. RIcHARDSON. I do all my buying direct from the dealers.

Senator HAwkKINS. From the dealers, not from the kids?
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Mr. RicHARDBON. Right. . ‘

Senator HAwkins. But are they juvenile dealers? o

Mr. RicHarbsoN. In some cases, they are. Th? range from
maybe 14 to 15. Most of my suspects are more like 23 or 24, some-
thing like that. o .

Senator Hawkins. How would you characterize the drug avail-
ability.in high school?

“Mr. RicHARDSON. In comparison to back when I was in_high
school, which was 8 years ago, it has become more zampant. There
are drugs available at any given time you want. We do not work
actually inside the school system; they will not let us go' undercov-
er in the schools. : ~

I have informants on the inside that can tell me of situations
where drugs are passed through during school, during class time,
in the halls, in the restrooms—things like this.

We did do an investigation one time; it was a 2-week investiga-
tion where we monitored the activity outside of a school. I noticed
dailg, in the mornings and lunchtime, how children would just run
to their cars and do drugs. :

Senator HAwkINs. On the school property?

Mr. RicHarDsON. Yes; on the school property. Because they were
allowed to leave for lunch, they did take some of the drugs away
from the school, in the fear that they might get caught there at
school. But most of them were bold enough just to do the drugs
right there on the school grounds.

Senator HAwkINS. Where do most of the students get their

drugs?

]VF: RicHarpsoN. Well, basically, there are four main areas
where they get their drugs from. gne is from other students. The
people that we deal with will sell drugs to the students who take
the drugs and they become dealers themselves. So, it is a chain of
commahd that works down and gets inside the school system.

We are starting to work on several cases now involving teachers,
where they will supply——

Senator Hawkins. Involving teachers?

Mr. RicHArpsoN. Yes; they will supply the kids with drugs. Of
course, then you have just the older dealer where, the dope deals
will occur outside the school grounds. It is usually where just one
or two people meet together and the transaction takes place, and
then the drugs are moved on to the schools.

- Surprisingly enough, we find that a lot of drugs are coming from
the parents tf‘m’emselves. They supply their children with the drugs.

Senator HAwkins. Knowingly?

Mr. RicHARDSON. Sure, yes. ‘I:he parents themselves smoke mari-
huana and they iive the drugs to the kids and allow them to
smoke, thinking this will establish a rapport between them and
maybe opén the lines of communication better.

nator HAwkins. Is alcohol a bigger problem today than it was,
sapl when you began?
- Mr. RichArDsoN. Alcohol and marihuana are probably the two
most prevalent drugs used, then it works its way on up the chain
into quaaludes, speed, cocaine, heroin, or whatever.

Senhator HAwkINS. What should the role of the school administra-
tors and teachers be? Finding the answer to that question is a pur-
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pose of this hearing. I do not know how these children got promot-
ed and I do not know they have progressed as far in school as they
" have after listening to their life experience. *

Do you have any ideas what the role of the school administrators
and teachers should be in dealing with drug and alcohol problems,
other than pulling up three chairs and letting them sleep through
summer school?

Mr. RicHARDsoN. First of all, I think they. need to admit that
there is a drug problem. So many of our administrators do not
want to tell the public thag there is a problem within their schools.
They are afraid that teach§s will not come to the schools because
of fear of violence, or that parents will take their children oat of
the schools, and things like this.

_Then 1 feel like they should estabhsh some sort of educational
program for the teachers. You would be surprised at the number of
teachers that do not even know the effects of drugs or do not even
know what kind of drugs to look for. Hashish could come in looking
{‘ust like a gimple rock or piece of tar and they would not even

now what it was. Marihuana can be transported in numerous con-
tainers, and the teachers do not even know. that.

The parents themselves need to have some type of program
vided the school administration maybe to supp{) ment t enr
knowleJée of drugs. Then, again, administrators, I feel, should be a
little bit stricter on the punishnient that they administer. If theK
are going to threaten you with something, they should go throu
with it. We find that they do not do that as much as they shou{‘r

Senator Hawkins. Do you have any recommendations of what
steps to take to address the problem? You heard the students say
that ‘there are generally no counselors to turn to. There are also
obvious places where everybody goes to use the drugs. You men-
tioned that they all go to their cars and we have heard that the
bathroom is popular.

Mr. RicHArpsoN. Right. That would go back to educating the
teachers and then filtering down, through the teachers, programs
that would educate students. I feel, though, that the basic responsi-
bility does go back to the parents. The parents should make them-
selves aware of drug roblpme By the time they ‘'realize that their
son has a drug probfem or their daughter has a problem, it is
beyond their stage and they are going to have to go to outside help.

They should be educating them long before they get to the junior
high ‘school level. We are finding drugs in sixth through eighth
graders—marihuana, quaaludes—as they all testified.

Then, of course, this should be supplemented with whatever
school programs that could help the parents. The parents have the
basic responsibility, then it should be carried on to the school
system.

The stiffer the legislation, in my opinion, i8, the more it i8 going
to help us, too. There need to be stricter laws about the selling of
drugs, period, with special provisions about selling to juveniles
themselves.

I also feel'there i8 a responsibility on the courts to be a little bit
stricter. | am not advocating, you know, to throw everybody in the
penitentiary. True, there are some cases where people deserve pro-
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bation: it is the first time they have ever been arrested or some-
thing like this. 4 C

But then there are cases where we go out and make felony cases
and they are reduced to misdemeanors and the gu’\lr.his only in. jail
for 2 or 3 days, and it does not serve any purpose. lhey are laugh-, .
ing at the system then. They get back out on the street and they
become heroes to their frienga because they were in jail; they
become bigtime. ‘ ‘ ) ;

Senator HAwkiNs. Does Houston have any programs that par
ents are particularly fond of? 1

Mr. RicHARDSON. 1 only know of two programs and ‘1 rsonally
do not feel like they are effective at all. They are more like just a
social gathering where people get together and exchange ideas
about what kind of drugs you can do and the different effects of
them, or this drug is a lot better than that one; you know, we
ought to do this. : .

t is just a gathering for drug addicts; it is not any rehabilitation
or counseling at all. , e :

Senator Hawkins. Would le¥islation outlining stiff penalties for
drug transactions, say, within 1,000 feet be a deterrent Would that
be helpful? ‘ o

Mr. RICHARDSON.-It would be a deterrent- if you go to the courts
and the courts stick with it. ‘ :

Yes. If you.come to realize that, well, if I sell marihuana to some-
one and that is a felony offense and I get arrested and all they are
¥oing to do is reduce my case to a misdemeanor and put me in jail

or 10 days, who cares? It is 10 days that I do not work and then I
go back out on the street and turn more money. -

Senator HAWKINs. So, anything atrict laws form must be uni-
formly enforced by the judiclal branch?

Mr. RicHARDsoN. Sure. If you do not back it up, there is no
reason to have it; no reason at all. !

Senator HAwKINS. It is obvious that the kids are aware when the
rulestare not strictly applied.

Mr. RicHAarDgoN. Sure.

“Senator HAWKINS. It is interesting to me that a plea that the
{loung people made throughout their testimony today was that we
ave to be stricter and t,oueher. S

Mr. Richarpson. I think if the word got out on the street that
certain people were stricter on the selling of drugs or the use of
drugs, {;lé would not have that many people showing up in court-
rooms, because they would see that as a deterrent. -

Senator HAwkiIns. 1 know. that in certain areas where judges get
a reputation for being tough, kids fear going before them. Often
they will try to get a more lenient judge to hear their case.

Any additional things you would like to say, officer?

Mr. Ricuarpeon. No.

Senator HAwkKINs. Senator? .
Senator HUMPHREY. Mr. Richardson, you have stated that you’
think parents have primary responsibility for their youngsters, and
no one can argue with that. But how would you ¢ aracterize the

job that educators are doing in dealin%with drugs in schools?

Mr. RICHARDSON. It is very poor, if that at all.

Senator HUMPHREY. It is very poor?

3
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- Mr. RicHARDBON. Drugs are overlooked. The children sit in class
and it is obvious they are stoned or high; it is just ignored. They do
' not do anything for their rehabilitation. ‘
Senator HumpHrey. It is such a difficult problem, they just do
. not know what to do about it, so they essentially do nothing, I

- guess. Is that it?

Mr. RicHArDsON. Yes; there, again, administrators do not want

tp admit it. v

Senator HUMPHREY. Yes.

Mr. RicHARDBON. Our people come out yearly and say there is no
problem in the Houston school district. \

Senator HumpHRrey. So, it is almost the same dynamic you'see in
individual parents not wanting to admit that their child is involved

in dm(g?

Mr. Ricuarbson. Right. I am working on a particular case now
where a principal called me to a school and asked if we could not
intervene, because he had confronted the parent before he brought
the law enforcement agency in and said: “We have had .reports
from several students and they will sign affidavits saying that your
son is selling drugs on campus.”

Senator HUMPHREY. Yes. -

Mr. RicHarRDsON. They threatened him with a lawstiit—him, the
school district, and everyone else—if they ever said anything like
this again, becayse thelr son is not involved in drugs. ; )

Senator Humburey. Well, we are certainly .not trying to sit- in
judgment of any profession, but I do hope that the National Educa-
tion Association and other groups that represent educators will
take to heart the testimony that has come through today. They cer-
tainly have the resources to educate their members and to encour-
age them within local schools %6 face the problem, to confront it,
and to become involved as one party in doing something about it.

You sugfested stricter laws. Were you talking about.as they
apﬁly to sellers, or to users as well? .

r. Ricuarpson. Well, I think if you started with the sellers, you
are not going to have that many ple using because the price of

. drugs is going to abviously go up, OK, because there are going to be
tougher penalties and things like that.

Senator HUMPHREY. Yes. :

Mr. RicHARrD8ON. And people also realize that because they are
uaini. there is a good chance that they will form a habit and they

@  will have to become the seller themselves.: 1 think it would certain-

* ly curb, not stop the drug problem, but it would certainly help.

‘ Senator HuMPHREY. | get the impression that you are dissatisfied
with the judicial system. You go to some pains, obviously, to track
down illegal activity in drugs, and apparently, once you bring them

' to court, they are not being dealt with sternly enough, in yqur

opinion. Is that right? Is that how you feel or what?
Mr. RicuarpeoN. Yes; | have never, in probably the 150 pebple
that I have put in-jail, been to court on any of my cases because
- they are plea bargained out or reduced down to misdemeanors, and
then they just plead out like that. Never have I ever been to court o

on one case. .
begenator Humpurey. Out of 150 cases, the charge has nevel\
n—-— ' ’
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Mr. RicHARDSON. Not on a delivery case. On possession cases, it
is different. ' ' ‘
" Senator HumMpHREY.: Thank you.

" Senator HaAwkins. Thank you a lot.

Judge Femia, is that right?

Judge FEMiA. That is correct. . ‘

Senator HaAwkins. I know you have been extensively involved in
the problem of drug abuse among young people as a juvenile court
judge in nearby Prince George’s County, and I was interested in
your innovative and most successful antidrug campaign in Prince
George’s County. A : o !

Would you describe in detail the steps you.took to implement
this program?’ ' :

Judge FeMiA. First, Senator, I'think in all sincerity you should

not refer to it as an antidrug campaign because, we look at drugs
with the youth, especially in schools—and I understand that that is
the direction of this’subcommittee, schools in America—as another
violation of the law in school. T o
" You have t0 understand, I am a judge of general jurisdiction; I
am. a circuit court judge. In our community; the law says-that a
- circuit court judge must sit in the juvenile court. The law also goes *
.on to say that he has to have special qualifications, and special
training, and special temperament. o ‘ _ )
That is what the law says. I sometimes believe what he had to do
was ‘miss the meeting, because the next thing'I found out was the
chief judge had put my name on an order sending me to juvenile

court. And I must tell you in all honesty, when I:went into that * - i

court I did not even know where it was located, and I did not want
to know, quite frankly. And I stayed there for 3 years, 2 years past
‘what you are supposed to stay there for. - ST

T think, in all fairness,  you ought to understand, in the modern .
idiom, where I am coming from. We have a lot of residents of
Second ‘Genesis here today. . N S

Are they still here? Anybody from Second Genesis that I. have
committed to Second Genesis? S v

[Their hands were raised.] ‘ ‘

Senator HAwWKINS. I see some hands back there.

\

Judge FEmIA. Anybody who has put their hand up—dJimmy, what -

is their backup time?
Mr. HENDrICKS. One day.

'

Judge Femia. You have got to understand that 1.come from a

very judicially conservative outlook. Backup time means what hap-
pens to you if %ou screw up..You are going to prison for 15 or 20.
years; you will be our pageant for the next Good Friday. o
. ' 1 perceive the judiciary’s function'in all criminal activities as the
- motivator. To be sure, our No. 1 function is adjudication, and it is
.not unlike that when you deal with juveniles. . - o ‘
When I went to the juvenile ceurt, I did.not pioneer anything. I
did what my father did to me, and essentially what he did for me
w,ﬁs my - father let you know what the rules were, let you know:
what the sanctions were; and that was it, and that is all we did. We
set out the rules. o o \
Any violation of the law ‘occurring in a public school in Prince
. Geotge’s County, or on the school grounds,-or on.a schoolbiis, or on
55 o

g
’

[

i

f




51

the way to school, or-on the way home from school—that individual

was going to get locked up. :

" Now, you see, in our business we are not allowed to use terms
like “locked up.” We say ‘“institutionalized,” ‘“rehabilitated,”

- “treated.” Call it what you want; the:kids knew what we meant.

Your little butt was going to lose its liberty; you were going to be

locked up. That meant for drugs, that meant for assaulting teach-

ers or other students, that meant for any disruptive, criminal con-

duct that came before the courts. No. 1, we set up the rules.

~No. 2, I took it upon myself to go to the schools. In the 3-year

. period, I visited 70, 75 schools to talk to the student body as a -

whole. And I tell you, Senators, you do not know the thrill of

standing in front of 700 or 750 14-, 15- and 16-year-old kids and

being—and I would stand right there and let them ask any ques-

tion they wanted to ask, and be brutally honest with them,

. You know, our kids do not like us to be honest with them. We
usually like to try and hedge with them, make them feel good,

make us feel good. I do not play the game; I would tell them exact-

l%:vi'hait;yvas going on. So, I went out and told everybody: ‘‘Here is
the rule.” _ S . '

And the third part is very simple. Once you set up the rule and
. once you broadcast the rule; you enforce the rule and, in' 100 per-

cent of the cases coming before the courts, that individual was

loeked up, and the word got out very quickly. You do not want to
go visit the troll who lives under the bridge because he is going to
lock your tail ' v

up. . -
Things then fEc))llow the natural coursé, just like it followed when ..

you were growing up and when I was growing up. 1 l))'Ou'knevy you
were going to get your tail beat for going to the next

where you'were not supposed to go, you did not go, and that is es-
sentjally this pioneering program. It resulted in some reduction in
school disruptiveness—about 25 percent, in fact.

Senator Hawkins. Did you face any obstacles, in this old ap- .

proach? '~ . . . -
Judge FEMIA. Well, of course, there are the natural obstacles any

time one,{:ublic institution wants*to tread upon the ground of an-

‘other pub

‘the educators were scared to death of me., '

You might be able to perceive that I am somewhat o@tspokeri

and I call things what they are, and I am not too particular of who

I am talking to, and they were scared of that. They thought or sus-’

pected that I was, in essence, going to come out and find fault with
the schools. C . -

I must tell you that in Prince George’s County, having the 11th
Jargest school system in the country, we have faults, but we have a
damned good school system. Your thrust this 'morning has -been
drugs. I tell you I have two children ¢urrently in a high school and
one who.is off to college who went through the high school system,

ic institution. Quite frankly, the main obstacle was that .

lock or going

and those children consider drugs and drug users an anathema. -

That is a direct result of the education they received in those
public schools. = . ' ¢
- So, to that extent, we are very fortunate. Our schools do .indeed
have signs: “If you have got. problems with drugs,-this is who you
se¢ and where you go.” And if you cannot find the 'signs in schools,

6
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may I suggest“you merely turn to any television station between
the hours and 4 and 7? You will find ample opportunities for public
assistance with your psychological problems.

But the schools were afraa\i(fl The schools thought I was going to.
come, in there and start trying to blame teachers and blame admin-
istrators for this problem, and there-are problems. They realized
very quickly that I was not there to blame anybodi"l.l

It is just like when my wife, who is sitting behind me, was ill,
~ very ill, about 10 years ago and the doctors kept trying to tell me
why she was ill. And I kept saying: “I do not care why she-is ill.
Make her well.” It is the same in the schools. I do not care how we
got here; let us get from here to where we want to be. We do’not

ave time to waste looking for scapegoats. '

e they appreciated gh

week in the schools. ‘

" The second problem, of course, is the parental problem—one that
I do not believe, not as a judge but as a citizen and taxpayer, that
Government can do a thing about. I do not think our Government, '
as it is constituted, can pass a law telling parents how to raise chil-
dren. If you pass that law, please except my family because you are
going to have a hell of a problem enforcing it when you come down
to my neighborhood. ' : ‘

You know, parents are a convenient scapegoat, but Government
cannot do a lot about it. We must deal with the public institutions
that we can control—our schools—and that was the thrust and the
reason for going into the schools. ‘ . .

Senator HAwkins. How did the-students react? :

Judge Femia. Interestingly enough, the students reacted as you
would have expected kids to react, and I will give you a vignette to
explain that. .

There was an annoulcement on the news one morning when I
was driving my kid to school that the District of Columbia school
system was considering engaging in a policy of requiring children
to wear uniforms to school, much like they did when I went to the
parochial schogls up in Philadelphia. You know, all girls wore the
same pinafores and the same blouses, and all the boys wore the
same white shirt and the same—of course, it is still going on, you
understand. ’

And my daughter said: “Boy, that would be a good idea.” Now,
you haye to understand I have got a 16-year-old daughter; regimen-
tation is not her strong suit. Let me put it that way very kindl!.
And she said: “That would be a good idea.” And I said: *What do
you mean, it would be a good idea? I agree it is a good idea, but I
am surprised you would say that.” .

She said: “Do you know how much time I waste everyday trying
to decide what to wear to school so I look like everybody else or do
not look like everybody else? If everybody had to wear the same
thing, look at how much time we could save.” That is typical of
your adolescent and teen attitude. !

A number of these young people are up here saying: ‘“Tell me
what the rules are; tellyme what you are going to do to me if I vio-
late them.” It is not only good for kids like the ones who were sit-
ting up here who get into trouble; it is even better for the straight
kids—those who, by the way, comprise the majority of the children
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in Amleri'ca-,-—because they know everybady will be required to obey
the rule. o

Where we get into trouble with our kids—the social and the anti-
social; that avoid saying good and bad, you see; this is more of the
terminology we learn in our business—where we get into trouble
- with kids is when we say: “All right, Monday, everybody has got to.
have this term paper in.” And Monday comes and the teacher
stands up and says: “Well, let us make it Tuesday.” - ’

. Now, for the kids that did not have the term paper, that is neat,
but for the 95 out of 100 that worked all weekend long to produce
that term paper, that is another example of how we adults dodge,
how we rationalize. Our big problem with our children is that we
do just that; we rationalize. _ )
" So, the kids take like ducks to water to a discipline, and it be-
comes very interesting. Jack can tell you the same thing; they
never call us “Judge,” you see. It is “Mr. Tracey” and ‘“Mr.
Femia.” And you will go into a school; “Hi, Mr. Femia. Do you re-
member me?”’ Of course, I have a standard answer. I do not re-
member them, as a matter of fact, and if I did, I would not ac-
knowledge it in a school; you understand that.

My standard answer is: “It is not a question of whether I remem-
ber you. Do you remember me?” “Yes, sir; yes, sir.” Good, we have
got 1t straight. That is really what kids are looking for—“make up
the rules; tell us what you are going to do if we violate the rules.”
They appreciate that more, even if it means getting bagged.

I Kave had them come back:in the court, look.me straight in the
eye and say: “I am ready to go,” because we had a deal. Second

nesis is a good example. The best way in the world at least I as a
judge find to support Second Genesis is give them a well-motivated
individual. Motivation generally sets in between 15 and 30 years,
although I have used up to 63: '

That individual knows when they walk back into my courtroom
that we had a deal. “Did you violate my agreement?” “Yes.” No
conversation; it is all done in hand language; “Bye, you are gone.”
Everybody knows that, so it works much better that way, you
know. It 1s when you are wishy-washy and jou do not enforce your
prior agreements that younf people perceive weakness, and quite
often young people perceive leniency as weakness.

A number of the people up here told you this morning, you
know, “Treat with us, d};al with us, but deal with us as human
beings, not as numbers.” )

Senator HawkiNns. I would imagine that there were parents that
did not approve of this tough stance. As the officer has said, some-
times the Pparent:s vgét in his way. .

Judge Femia. Well, that is not my experience, quite honestly.
When I went to juvenile court I, like everybody else, expected that
we would find that all the juvenile problems flow from bad parents
and bad homes, and things like that. That was not my experience.

My experience was that fully 60 percent of the parents whose.
children were involved in court were fully supportive of the court
and its processes. I am not one to dump on parents, but do not
forget, parents, like schools, are no more able to cope with their
Er,oﬁltta}rlns than the courts and the public institutions are willing to

ack them. :
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Quite frankly, as our laws are currently structured—and Jack
and I were talking about this in the hall—laws do not back parents
and do not.back schools. We back them when we are dealing with |
drugs and armed robbery, but how about the child who wants to go
out and roam all night at age-14? ' .

One young lady talked about it today. How did she get involved?
It was easy; she went out of the house at 2 in the morning. And, of
* course, who i8 on the street at 2 in the morning? My father used to
say after dark; only police officers and bad people; “you are nei-
ther; get home.” That is what happens; that is how they get caught
up in this peer pressure, this milieu where the use and abuse of
substances is accepted. : % v

We do not back parents publicly; we do not back schools. Itisa
sad but true fact. But most parents—and I have heard parents say
it time and time again, and I know Jack has heard it. You know,
he has been in the business longer than—well, when you got into
the business, Christ was a delinquent child, was he not? [Laughter.].

Judge FEMIA. In the temple, you will recall, when he spoke back
to his mother. . )

Senator HAwkiIns. I recall. : = -

Judge FEMIA. Quite often, you will hear a parent say, 1 told 'you
g0, or come to you and say, that is what I have been trying to tell
him, Judge; thank you. To that extent, parents accept what you are °
doing. Of course, there are always the parents whose children are
never wrong, you understand. . fe e -

Senator HAWKINS. I always took the opposite stand; my childten *
were guilty until proven innocent—you know, the old school.

Judge Femia. Yes; there was no dye process in my fatlrer’s house
either. [Laughter.] , ,

Senator HAwKkINs. I find that approach simplified a lot of grow-
ing up. / -

I agree with you. These children who appear here today are beg-
ging for the rules; they are begging for them to be more consistent
and tough.

Judge FEMIA. And, more importantly, uniformly applied.

Senator HAwKINS. Yes. '

Judge FEmia. They apply the same to everybody; no special
strokes for special folks. That you must avoid at all costs.

Senator HAWKINS. You made the statement that the laws do not
back up the parents and the laws do not back up the.educators.
Can you think of any laws that would?

Judge FEMIA. Yes.

Senator HAwkINS. Such as?

Judge FEmia. Much has been made of the laxity of school en-
forcement. | think officer Richardson mentioned that quite often
the administrator, rather than acknowledge a problem in his
school, he tends to deal with it as best he can.

But this is the complaint I get from educators. I happen to chair
a task force on school discipline and security in our county, and the
most prevalent complaint we receive from educators is:

You know, to expel a kid from school, you have got to have him and his lawyer in.

You have to have a.full-blown hearing, and by the time you get done, if he has not
graduated already, what effect have you had? .
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You know that; you do not have to be a Senator or a judge to °

know that the time to kick—rehabilitate a child is.when you catch
him with hig hand in the cookie jar, not tomortow. “Do you re-
member what you did yesterday?”’ “No, not really.” “Bam, that is
~ for doing i®.” ’l{at does not make any sense. - ,
>My mother used to say that God, in his wisdom, connected the
brain to the sit-down-upon. If you hit the sit-down-upon hard
enough, it registers in the brain, and’if the brain learns to register
unpleasantness with hand-incookie-jar, it tends to even get
through to a teenager, like myself, you see.

-But the schools’ complaint I think is very valid. The Supreme -

Court has indeed made this a matter of due process. Well, you
know, due process works where we live; you know, that is our Jjob.
And thank God that we do our job, because we are the last bastian
before people lose their freedom. But when you start talking about
whether a child is going to be bounced out of school for selling pot
in one of those men’s rooms, with his lawyer and the parade of wit-
- nesses, by the time you accomplish the desired end, everybody in
the school, not jusat the individual involved, because that is not the
one we are really interested in-—you understand it—what we have
got to do is the PR work on everybody else in the school.

Everybody else in the school says: “Oh, it is a bunch of stuff:
nothing is going to happen, like usual.” And then you say, “Why
do you educators not do something?” First of all, they were not
trained to be lawyers. They were trained to be educators.

Do you want to talk about a law that the Federal Government
can get involved in? It is a law that somehow or another modifies
back to an intelligent, reasonable and {)Braq;ical level the strictures
that have beéen placed upon the schools and the school boards by
the courts, ‘ ) ’

Other than that, like everybody else, send money. Is that not
what the Federal Government is supposed to do, send money? I do
not know what we will do with it, but you can send it. We will find
- something to do with it, I am sure. . -

Senator Hawkins. We are out of money, you may have.heard.

Judge FeMIA. I understand; believe me, I understand.

But as to laws involving parents, I would never be found in the
camp espousing such laws. &ou will have to call on somebody just a
tad more left of myself. : ,

Senator HAwkINs. We would like to help the parents raise these
children in an environment which we thought we were bringing
them into—you know, our generation. It really is frightening to see °
how pervasive it is when you talk to children of all ages today—10,
11, 12, and realize they are using drugs. ’

I know you are aware of it because you have been deal(i:r;f with it
for a long time. I am so grateful to have a man of your caliber sit-
tir? as a father figure. : .

udge Femia. Or ogre. You know, it gets a little old sometimes
being pointed out in the grocery store. ‘If you are not good, I am
ﬁoing to turn you over to him,” and I have had that happen, you
now. : :

Senator HawkIns. Well, if we could just clone you and have one
of you per county in the United States, we probably would not
have the problems we have.
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Is there any way you feel we could implement this program in
other %ommunities {n the country, or is Prince George’s County
unique? ) .

Judge Femia. Senator, would you indulge me in being brutally
frank with you? - :

Senator HAWKINS. Sure.

Judge Femia. But I would not be offensive.

Senator, you know, drug abuse, substance abuse—I like to refer
to it as substance abuse—substance abuse is like gub,lic nudity. Let
me explain. It is dramatic. You have the obviously sad case histo-
ries that you sat and listened to all morning.

Senator HAwWKINS. Yes. ‘

Judge FEMia. It is t‘n'eessworthy; take the whir of the camera, if
you will. It is like a flasher in Lafayette Park who is flashing, for
whatever reason, the White House—newsworthy, dramatic. But
quite frankly, Senator, that does not mean everybody in the Nation
is flashing, at least not in this winter, given the weather situation,
and the same with drug abuse. It is dramatic, it is greesworth , it
is newsworthy. It is sad, pathos, all you can name, ut thank ,
in this country it represents a minority of our children, and a
small minority. Dramatic to be sure, but thank God, well over 90
percent of the kids in this country are damned fine people.

They do the same dumb things I did. Today, the will try pot. I
tried Petrie sherry; they do not even make Petrie sherry any more.
1 threw up for 2 days; I cannot stand the smell of sherry. They will
do all the dumb things I did. '

I have a son 15 years old. He is doing exactl what I did; I cannot
believe it. I say to him: “Son, I have done these things.” He is a
proof of God, you understand. My mother used to tell me: “If there
is a God, you will have a son exactly like yourself.’-My son is a
proof of God; you see, there is obviously a God. I have got one who
does the exact, same, dumb things, but that does not make him a
bad person. -

Senator HaAwkins. No.

Judge FEmiAa. There will still be the kids in school who think it is
smart to paint, beat Bowie, on the Largo School scoreboard. You
“are still going to have that, but that does not make them criminals
or bad ple.

You know, I just think that the problem you are addressing your-
gelf to is much like zonin difficulties. ile it permeates the
Nation as a whole—zoning difficulties—it is a local problem. It is a
problem that must be dealt with on the local level where we are
gensitive to our individual problems.

You know, we know what our problems are in our communitf'. |
cannot envision, for instance—how could the Congress pass a law
that would in any way ameliorate the situations of the five case
histories you heard here this mornin With no disrespect to the
participants, that is a full week of Phil Donahue.

There is nothing the Congress of the United States can do about
passing a law that is going to make these five kids' lives, or those
who found themselves in their stead 4 or 5 years ago—it is some-
thing that has to be dealt with on the local level.

You have got a gentleman sittinﬁshere-—-l do not kpow if he is on
a panel or what—Jimmy Hendricks. It is these kin{: of people on
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the local level; they are the ones that solve the problems. We do
not solve them on the natiohal level. I am not really sure we solve
them on State levels. ’

But, again, remember I am a judge. I am not a sociologist, I am
not an educator, I am not a psychologist. I obviously have a jaun-

" diced point of view.

So, ess in answer to your question, Senator, if you want to
pass a law helping those school administrators out in these due
Eerocesa hearinis, .God bless; that is on the. Federal 'level. But

ond that, I think you really just open some nice hearings.

ou are not going to be able, as you say, clone me. That is an
individual decision that must be made on an individual level. I
assure you that there are not many judges willing to walk in front
o}t; 750 15-year-olds. You know, judges sort of feel we are beyond
that.

If you want to see them get stirred up, tell them that you believe
pot smoking is {he same as mental masturbation. You will see a
group of stirred up teenagers real quick. ’ :

Senator HAwkINs. I imagine.

One of my concerns expressed by these children and one that we
heard often in the course of our investigation—is that the rehabili-
tation centers that we are effective and have tremendous records
are crowded with waiting lists. The ones that you would approve of
assigning children to are just overworked. I know that is a local
problem, and obviously President Reagan feels that most problems -
today should be treated locally.

But it seems to me that there should be additional quality cen-
ters that judges would feel confident referring these children to. It
breaks. my heart that the jails are full. In my State, they are order-
ing;hem emptied bécause they are too full.

Some of the programs and correctional institutions are a joke ac-
cording to our witnesses. Teaching water skiing and scuba diving is
not exactly a great way to prepare for later life. And yet, there is a
great backlog at the Village South in Miami.

Judge Femia. But, Senator, I have been to so many of these
meetings. Of course, as a political group, judges are about the most
impotent political group in the world; you understand that. We are
all appointed until forever.

But, you know, you go to these meetings, and the judiciary in
Maryland, through their Judicial Committee on Corrections, are
the ones who start the ball rolling in Maryland for community cor-
rection centers.

Well, may I assure you that jails; community correction centers
and, Jimmy Hendricks will tell you, rehab centers, quarter-way
houses, ha{fway houses, or  resident, drug-free houses, in the
public’s mind are like sewerage plants. We all recognize intellectu-
al?' the need for these, in somebody else’s neighborhood.

immy Hendricks will tell you the problems we had locating him
out in the middle of nowhere. I mean, he was so far from the near-
est stop light, it would"take him 1 day and a half to get to it. Still,
we got the public pressure and eventually they closed the place. -

See, lyou are not just dealing with need. We have potholes that
need filling, too, in Prince George's County, and 1 assure you in the
minds of the citizenry—remember, we are under a proposition 13
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mandate in our county. We call it TRIM; no money is what it

means. . .

Between rehabilitating some willful kid that cannot control his
own life or his parents do not give a damn, the pothole gets filled
first, friend. Now, that is a practical political fact of life, and all
the judges in the world pontificating upon it will never, I am con-
vinced, ever change it. ‘

That is not the news in the world, I understand.

Senator HAwWKINS. No. :

Judge Fxmia. But if you ask me, do I agree with the proposition
that we need more of them, the answer, almost assuredly—espe-
cially, effective ones like Second Genesis.

Senator HAWKINS. Thank you so much, Judge.

Judge Fraaa. Thank you.

Senator HAWKINS. Senator?

Senator HumMPHREY. Judge Femia, you and I share a revulsion for
euphemisms, but I noticed that you used one, if I ma int it out,
and that is “substance abuse.”” As chairman of the Su mmittee
on Alcoholism and Drug Abuse, I always avoid that. .

I am not lecturing you, but just stating that I always avoid that
because we are not talking about abusing jelly beans or marshmal-
lows. We are talking about alcohol and drugs in about 99 percent
of the cases. You might want to use a little bit harder term than
“substance abuse.’

Judge Femia. Well, I would indeed use it in court with a child,
but I thought it would comply with what the record would show.
Everybody understands substance abuse at this level; the kids
know what you are talking about. '

Senator HumMpHREY. You said, and I agree with you, and it has
always been a dilemma for me as chairman of that committee, that
there is no way that Congress can pass a law that is going to have
a major effect on drug abuse. So, that leaves you with the question
of what can you do.

Well, one thing we can do is to use the committee and joint hear-
ings as a forum to further educate the public. It is not a highly
~ leveraged way to do things, but it is one positive contribution that
we can make, and I believe we are. . L

You mentioned that if Congress can do anything in the way of
legislation, it can change or remove Federal strictures.

Judge Femia. Federal court strictures, yes.

Senator HUMPHREY. Say that again.

Judge Femia. The Supreme Court had a ruling. I am sorry I do
not have the case at the fore; I usually do not, and that is why God
created law clerks. But the case saicr there are certain mandated
g;zedurea that you must go through to ex 1 a child from school

use public education is a right. And the schools just cannot
cope with it and so they avoid it. t is one of the prob{ema.

nator HUMPHREY. Well, I am not a lawyer-and I am not a
member of the Judiciary Committee, but I would be anxious and
eager to meet with you or exchange correspondence with you, if
you could provide me with some detailed proposals on what we-can
do. Apparently, what you want to do is to nullify some-case law or
something. I do not know; I am not a lawyer. d
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Judge FeMIA. You know, as a lawyer and a judge sworn to
uphold the Sufreme Court and its rulings, I hate to use the word"
“nullfy,” but I would sure like to modify that thing 80 1t 15 weslk
able, - :

Senator HumMpurey. OK.

Judge Feaaa. It is good law, but it is not practical in application.

Ser'x?ator HumpHREY. Good. Well, how about helping us in that re-
spect

Judge Femia. I will. ‘

Senator HuMPHREY. Can you? ,

Judge FeMia: I will.

Senator HumpHREY. Fine. Everything else has been said.

Senator HAwWKINS. We are trying to focus attention on it by form-
ing the first &rug abuse caucus. I found when I arrived here as a
freshman that there is a steel caucus, there is a jewelry caucus.
There is a caucus made up of Senators on almost every subject you
can think of, and yet the most pervasive problem we have facin
us, whether it is in the military or the schools or sqciety in gener

ight now, is drug abuse.

e felt that by having a caucus, we could at least have a confer-
ence on it and a summit, and have ad hoc members like yourself
serve on it, which I hope you would be happy to do.

Senator I.UMPHREY. Senator Hawkins, pardon my interruption.
May I ask the judge one more question?

S{nator Hawxins. Sure. .

Senator “luMPHREY. You mentioned that you have—I have for-
gotten how you phrased it, but you have back-up sentences or
gmething. ou.give the kids a choice, apparently, or in any case

nd -them to a rehabilitation program, and if t ey flunk out of
there, they go to jail. .

Judge 1A, Senator, it works like this. First of all, we are not
talking about children. These are adults; these folks are all over 18.
When they walk into the adult court, it is a whole new ball game.

I had a young man, and I will give you an example, 22 years old,
involved in an armed robbery with ‘a shotgun, sawed off, which
gives him a handgun violation, and Foeseaaion of cocaine, marihua-

0 not even remember what.
terrible, id to him: “Here are the options.” I believe in optional
sentencing because it is how I got through college—A, B, C, or none
of the above. “Here are your options. You tell me you are a drug
addict; therefore, you must commit crimes.” “Yes, am,” and he
pleads mercy, mercy.

“Here are your options. I give you 8 years straight time for ev-
erything you have done. You go to the jury, you do your time, you
get out, and then we are square. Or, in the alternative, I give you
the maximum sentence, running wiid”—that means consecutive—
“63 years. I will s:?’pend every minute of it on one condition. You
will become involved in drug rehabilitation.”

He had not been accepted by Second Genesis, so I could not order
that. The first thing, though, was I mandated on-demand. bodily
specimen analysis. If your robation officer shows up at your house
and says: “Here is the bottle; do what you do with the bottle.” and
you refuse, violation. If you go into it and it is positive, violation.
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This guy was a manipulator, just like you heard some of these
kids testifying: ‘'Hey, you know, 1 have got thole;_ystem." He shows -
up for his first interview. He gets a probation officer who has been
around a few weeks. “Take that in the bathroom, my friend, and
fill it up, and it had better be the right color when you come out.”
Well, he came out and it was, you know, 99 percent PCP. He said:
“I am not even going to write you up; back to court.” t

He ran. A year later, they caught up with him and brought him
back. 'Hey, what is happening? 1 know what is happening, Judge.”
“Good, 63 years; good-bye.” I get a letter from him every month; it
has been 4 years now. ‘I have learned my lesson; a deal i8 a deal.”

Believe me, the word is out instantly. Any judge that has that
kind of a program, the word gets out instantly. “Break the man’s .
deal—do not take it first.” Quite often, they will not take it, by the
way; they will take the straight time. That i8 the saddest thing in
the world. N .

Senator HumpPHREY. You said that you are involved in juvenile
court.

Judge Femia. I was for 3 years. I am not there part time. .

Senator HumpHREY. What approach do you suggest for juvenile
court judges? ' .

Judge FEMmia. Senator, if there is one thing I learned about juve-
nile court, there is no such thing as an expert in juvenile justice.
Every one of those little critters is as different from the next as
night is from day, as my children are one from another.

would not hold myself up as some kind of expert on how to deal
with kids, except you deal with them a8 though they were the child
and you were the parental figure. You do not lie to them; you do
not mess with them. You deal with them one on one.

[ must tell you, I do not know how this man gitting on my right
does what he does day in and day out. I had 3 years of it and my
Maalox bill was absurd, and [ am not a sickly person. [Laughter.]

That was the most emotionally draining period of my life. You
are responsible for each one of those little suckers. For me to sit
here and give you the handbook of how 1 succeeded—forget it, Sen-
ator. | am not convinced 1 succeeded, first of all. All I know is ] got

through each day and had some successes and we had a lot of fail- "~~~

ures. | wish [ could answer your question; I cannot.

Senator HumpHREY. Thank you.

Senator Hawkins. Thank you so much, Judge.

Judge Tracey, that i8 a pretty hard act to follow.

Judge Femia. Madam Senator, may I beg the indulgence of the
subcommittee and excuse myself?

Senator Hawkins. Surely. ‘

Judge Femia. [ am due on the bench at 2 o'clock. I would not
deny anybody their contested divorce today.

Senator Hawkins. Surely. We appreciate vour staying this long.

Judge Femia. | appreciate your courtesy.

Senator HAwkiNs. You have been refreshing and made a wonder-
ful contribution.

Judge Femia. Thank you. :

Senator Hawkins. Thank you. You may be excused.

Judge Tracey, we welcome you back. I understand you were a
Capitol Hill po{iceman here in the early 1960's, and before that you
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were a Senate page in the 1940's. We welcome you back on the
Hill.

Your background makes you so uniquely qualified to discuss the
problem of drugs in the American school system. I would like you
o overview your career in the juvenile justice system. ¥
~ Judge Tracey. Thank you. I have been involved in the juvenile
system for a long time. lystarted in Montgomery County Juvenile
Court in 1966. I have been assigned to the juvenile court since that
time. Although, by designation, I could try adult cases, I have not
and I have been specifically assigned to juvenile the entire period.

If 1 may, since you indicated that Judge Vincent Femia was a
very hard act to follow, he does have an impact on his county, an
impact among the judiciary, an impact among the schools—a very
effective impact. Looking at Vince—what you see is what-he is.
The way he talks i8 the way he is. He is honest, he is open: When
he talks about striking a deal with a child, a deal is a deal, and the
young men and women understand.

Now, whether or not that type of father figure, as he pointed out,
on the bench is the correct way, I can’t say. We all have to deal .
with our own personalities and our own prejudices. I am sorry to
see him leave the juvenile court. He i8 a very fine man and he is
sincere and honest. ‘

But in any event, | am not exactly like Judge Femia. I have dif-
ferent points of view that may be va{id or may not be valid. We are
an experimental court; each child is different. I do not have any
greater expertise in dealing with children.

My involvement with drug cases, however, started a long time
ago. Some of the young men and young women here from Second
Genesis are my children, who are there because I placed them.in
Second Genesis, .

In answer, Senator Hawkins, to your question of what backup
time meant—and I do not think Judge Femia answered that—back-
up time is where a young man or a young woman comes before the
court and he is gent to a training facility, a State facility.

That commitment in the juvenile system, is for an indefinite
period that could last until they are 21 years old—we do not have a
2-month sentence or a 3-month sentence or a l-year sentence—
uritil such time as the rehabilitation has taken effect, it could last
that lon%. We suspend that indefinite period and give them the
option of attending programs such as Second Genesis, or Karma
Academy, or RAP, Inc, when that was active in Montgomery
County.

If they fail that course or that program and they do not complete
it successfully, then they must come back into the court and then
they will be sent to a State facility.

In the late 1960’s, early 1970's, when drugs hit the newspapers in
California, in San Francisco, when the flower children were there,
the drug syndrom moved from the west coast to the east coast.
Drugs were started in our county and our State. A drug that I have
not heard too much about this morning from these young people,
Phenceclydine, hit this area—known also as PCP—in 1969 and
1970. From my expertise I tell you—is the worst drug on the
American scene today. It is devastating in its effects.
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Some of the young men and young women who will not testify,
who are here from nd Genesis, might not be able to overcome
the devastating effect of Phenceclydine and may never, ‘ever be
able to be rehabilitated—that is a poseibility.

"I noticed in Jimmy Hendricks’ written testimony, he makes men-
tion of Phenceclydine, or PCP. I do not know what we can do about
it, but it is the worst thing; it is as widespread as cancer in our
hospitals. . . .

In any event in 1970-71, I felt that there was a need to examine
the overall problem because the drugs had hit our area. 1 was hear-
ing cases day in and day out of drugs—PCP, beer, marihuana; a
few heroin cases, a few quaalude; seldom any cases of cocaine.
Something had to be done. I attempted at that time to bring to-
gether all of the experts in the Montgomery County and Prince
Georges area to ask what is it that we should be doing. Should
there be rehabilitation? How shall we do this? :

1 invited them over to a church located on University Boule-
vard—any. organization that had anything to do with drugs or drug
rehabjlitation—RAP, Inc., which we read about in Washington,
D.C.; Second Genesis, Crossroads, Switchblade, drug counseling cen-

ters, hot lines.

I noticed that everyone was standmg around in little groups and,
much to my surprise, one organization did not know the other.

There did not appear to be any interrelation or correlation of any

information by any one organization. As a result we formed a drug
action coalition, whete all of the organizations came together an

_ shared some information. We established .a clearinghouse where in-

formation could be disseminated to the schools; information dis-
seminated to the PTA's and to the children, as well as to other in-
terested agencies public or private. -

At that time, we were dealing on a very small scale. Change has
taken place in the last 10 or 12 years where drugs are really per-
meating our junior high schools, our elementar{ schools, our high
schools. Marihuana is available in every school that we have; on
parking lots of many McDonald's and Gino's, drugs can be bought.

Cocaine can be bought at a price of, what, $90 a gram, $100 a
gram? Where does the money come from? Thank God we have kids
that are willing to come to the U.S. Senate and tell them about
themselves, and that is pretty hard for these young men and young
women. I wish that a tape of this could be shown to the schools, to
the PTA's.

Senator Humphrey asked what was the parents’ attitude. The at-
titude is: “Hey, that does not happen to my family; that is not my
child. How dare you accuse my child of using dope.” As Judge
Femia pointed out, parents will file a suit. School officials cannot
talk about whether Tommy, or Billy, or Mary Jane are selling;
unless you have proof and are willing to stand up to a lawsuit, do
not telrme about it. The parents do not want to hear about that.

The schools are really caught. They are not courts; they do not
know how to deal with the legal problem. The only thing they can
do, if students are selling on the schoolgrounds or using school
facilities—the bathroom, as 'I‘err{l, I believe, said—they can expel
them or dsk them to leave the school. Well, that does not rehabili-
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One of the young people said: "I went
year.” They are outalde the school system,

us get them to leave as soon as they are 16 so t
come back. to school anymore.”

It is not because the school system'is wrong. They have so many

problems. One would think the schéol system is charged with the
responsibility of solving all the social problems, and we as parents
have delegated that authority to the schools or to the courts. I do
blame the family. I do not see the structure of the family as strong.
Judge Femia was telling you about his father and his mother and
how that was. We do not have that demonstrated very often.
. In my court, it seems, we only have mothers come to court. Phe
majority of our chlldren four out of five, come from broken homes
or homes where there is only one single parent, and I believe it is
mothers. It is as though we have a matriarchal system. At times_
fathers come to the court, but seldom.

What is the role of the school? They should be able to call on the
courts for help. But what is the role of the courts in drug abuse?
Unless a young person is charged with a crime, there is absolutely
nothing tg t we can compel someone to do.

Our State facilities are filled to capacity, as are our training
schools. Smoking marihuana i8 not against the law; possession is,
but they do not arrest too many of those., As Officer Richardson
said, he is not picking up many possessions, or someone just smok-
ing a joint or using coke. They do not get into the court.

Parents come to the court and beg and plead with the court. In
some way, give them direction to run their own family. We used to
have a category of children, and I think the word is despicable—
CINS, children in need of supervision—the ungovernable child, the
out-of-control child.

Early in the 1970's and in the late 1960’s, we had facilities for
these children, and we could remove them from their home and
their community and place them in specially designnt,ed facilities,
It then came about that the word “status offender’—the truant
from school, the child ungovernable, should not be placed in insti-
tutions with the delinquents.

In fact, to insure that policy they took away Federal money for
our institutions. So, that really eliminated any back-up that we
had. I would have children come before me when they were 11 and
12 years old and the parents would say:

I know they are doing dnro. I know they are not going to school. | know that they
are going out 1n the middle of the night, and there is nothing { can do about 1t
Judge, do nomething

The child comes before me and [ say: “Well, you have a problem
and let us find out,” and we do evaluate it. We find out that there
is drug abuse there, but they are not charged with a crime. I can
only place them in shelters, if they are available, and they are
overcrowded. I can only place them in foster homes if they are
available, and they usually are not.
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Each dne; of the ﬁve youné“péople that xsat her ‘tbdéy said they °

eft thgig homes; they would not stay until they came to an ‘aware-

- .

laws thé way they are in our State with the status offender -or the
child out of control,:the court is getting out of ,that business be-
cause we do not have a back-up. - e

I carinot threaten a child with: “If you leave and run away from

, the foster homeor the-shelter' home, you are going to a detention

facility,” ‘because the law says I'cannot do that with status offend- . '

ers. -, ) s ]
The court is in. a-dilemma now. We are runping out of money.
~ We' cannot purchase out-of-State facilities .anymore. The cost. of:
care for a child per year in a State institution—the Maryland -
. Training School for the older boys,'the Montrose School, which is-
for girls and yqunger boys—the .cost of that is $12,000 to $14,000
per year, per child, ' o - e
I am'aware of Second, Genesis. They are doing an outstanding job
on $30 a day per resident, which would be my guess, and I am sure
Mr. Hendricks: would answer that. Community corrections is.prob- .
ably one of the only solutions that we have, If we have State facili-
ties and we have too many to go in and the community is demand-
ing that we get “little criminals” off the streets and we put them' .
there, it is like a sausage and we keep pushing in."They have got to
come out the other side, so within 4 months, they are rehabilitated.
One young man sajd: “I went there for 6 weeks, or I went there
for 6 months, and nothing really happened.'I just went through the
-formalization of going through that. ’ The juvenile justice system
has received.some of the delegated authority from the family who
, ﬁredunable to cope, and maybe the courts are ‘unable to meet its
urden. ‘ . . ‘ oo o
We deal with the delinquent, the criminal. We deal with the ones
- selling drugs, and usually they will be removed from their homes
and communities. But it is the kids that we heard here today that
‘started when -they were 11. If we are going to do.something, why
have those kids go through the same pangs and anxieties and hurt
and pain that we heard today. , L L
The schools, for: example, are pretty well able to identify the
. young boy and the young girl who are in the seventh and eighth
grade who are doing dope; they are not that naive. They cannot do .
anything -about it. gome teachers will take the time to speak-with .
7 the children. = - L ‘ Ca v
The school does. not know whére to turn. School personnel come
to the court and the court says: “I do not know either.” One of the"
" questions that you asked, Senator, “What could the school have
done?” One’ proposal the self-help groups, the teams.in schools of
young men and young women like those here today that are availa-
ble to talk to the studenfs should be part of their ‘program; also, a
gelf-help group of the parents so the parents can come and realisti- -
cally and honestly say: “If I have a problem, where do I go?” :
Our child guidance ‘centers throughout the Washington metro-
politan area are filled'to capacity. There is a waiting list to get
group counseling: You cannot go there today; you have to wait; you
‘have to get on a list. L X
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The schools 'should not be in that busmess, but maybe through ‘

" their PTA’s and maybe through' a public awareness that there is a
groblem the parents and children will feel free to go- there and to

onestly and mncereI{ talk w1‘t someome about a problem before- it
gets to ihsurmountable ‘difficu ’

“When you take a look at what our tralmng schools ‘and facilities .

are domg realizing that they are. full, there is little hope for drug

rehablhtatlon There wag another o‘rgamzatlon other t]ﬁf Second

‘Genesis. represented in the five. That was the one downt in Miami.

What was it called? - - . , N
Senator Hawxkins. Village South.

e TRACEY. It is h1ghly‘touted and the results are. good They

C shoulf exist all qver the'country. There .is another one in Florida
. that I do mot know about; Stralght, Inc., in the Western part of .

‘r) "

2

3

ot

n"‘
1

»
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, We have . a’ number of private orgamzatrons in “Mon omery .

'County—as for example Karma Academy for boys and girls, also

" Boys and Girls Homes, Inc. Judge Femia talkedabout leglslatlon

‘oﬁ the‘local level to ‘establish such homies but nobody wants them
in their neighborhood. We do not want a drug rehabilitation center
in ‘our neighborhpod. ‘We do not even want a group home for re-
tarded’ children in the neighborhood, Citizens associations fight
~ tht; Jit has to do with land values and what the nelghborhood i8
like. = -

. My God; to bring in a drug rehablhtatlon center' in the middle of

’a residential area—~the citizens’ association 8 Ks they will be selhng

dope out, in front of the drug rehab center, W
. dealers do not want to be -anywhére .around Second Genesls They

bt

ich is not true. Drug - -

+do not want to be around Karma Academy, so that is not a prob- -

lem. Our commumtles will not tolerate these facilities w1th1n their
. boundaries. That is why we do not have them and that is why we

do 'not have the group, homes. Our communities must understand

that it is'necessary to take some of the children out of fhe same
environment that will continually have difficulties, and have them
‘secure and give them the opportunity to fully express themseives
“ to continue their education, to understand self‘ to get into a pom-

. tive, pure interaction of therapy
Each of the young people here today have been through that, -

not need more of those Second Genesls and other orgamzatlons
throughout this area. .

I do not know what the Federal Gov ment can do by leglsla-
tion; maybe nothing. Maybe if we just make people aware that the
problem is there and that we care enough and that we will sit
down and help thert work it out—there are some kids crying out,
, there and they are askmg and: beggmg for help in subtle ways and
ry direct ways. **

It \s easy for me; to force help once a youn person commits a
crime)\then I have ‘ultimate aythority,. but only for a short time. I
. dd'not‘have.any.bed space at Second Genesis, so I cannot cause a
"'miracle. to happen; So, I go through amd it is never-ending each
day.. The stories you have heard of the five, I have heard a thou-
sand times over, and they are all the same.- The faces even look the
sarhe. . '

““and I do net think any of those children would tell you that we do ‘




We could take those 5 and multiply it by a 5,000 we will see it in -

‘ the Washington, D.C., area; we will see it,in Florida, and Iowa, and
. in California, and all over this country. It is not a local problem.

I hope that through the efforts of this subcommittee, people are -

© madsi aware. -And 1. would love to have a tape of those fine young
Senator Hawkins. I made a note to see that you get one.
Judge TrRacey. Thank you. » ‘ »
. Senator HAwkINs. What does it cost ug to incarcerate? You did
say that Second Genesis costs $30 a day. - ‘ -

Judge Tracey. That is my best estimate, and that is very low.

. Senator Hawkins: But if you had to put them in——
Judge TRACEY. In a training school? v
Senator HaAwkins. What would that cost, do you know?

Judge TRACEY. Yes sir; It runs between, I would say, $12,000 and:

.

$14,000 per year. But private organizations, such as Psychiatric In-

stitute, where a lot of young people go for drug rehabilitation from
the psychiatric point of view—the cost is $10,000 per month. That

. ' is $120,000 per year, per child. S

Previdusly our system had to purchase bed space outside of the
State of Maryland due to the fact we just did not have the local bed
gpace. But now we are running out of money. From $67,000 to
$70,000 per year, per child is Iglr)ent in States such as Pennsylvania,
and New Jersey; Maine, and Flo
which is the Miami Military Academy, for bed space, and that was
$ll,803 a year; that was the least eg(pensiv_e.‘lBut that may now be
closed. C

So, the cost of community rehabilitation is cost effective.

Senator HAwkINS. Where does that money come from? Is that
State money for county money? , -

Judge TRACEY. It comes from State and county and private dona-
tions. ' . :

Senator Hawkins. Is any of it Federal money? :

Judge TRACEY. Yes; some Federal moneys came in in the early
years. I do not know how all the programs are now funded. There
. was Federal money. Money may be available under the Education-

al Act if it can be established that there is an emotional handicap. °

It may well be-that some of the Federal money could then come in.
Senator HAwkins. That may be an avenue we will look at.
I appreciate your contribution and your service; it is outstanding.
Judge TrAcCEey. Thank you. - ) ’
Senator HAwkiINs. Senator? X .
Senator HumpHREY. I have no questions. Thank you, Judge.

.+ Judge Tracey. Thank you, Senator. . i

Senator HAWKINs: We want to thank you both for coming here

and we wish you luck in your future efforts. '

We have one more panel. You have all heard of Mr. Jimmy Hen- -
dricks, the regional director of Second Genesis; Mr. Robert Bossong,

the vocational director of Douglas MacArthur High School in
- Miami, Fla; Dr. Mel Riddile, the coordinator of the Substance
Abuse prevention program in Fairfax County; and Mrs. Sue
‘Rusche, executive director of Families in Action in Atlanta, Ga.
We want to thank you for your patience. ‘

rida. The best I had was in Florida, -
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Mr. Hendricks, we have heard a lot about Second Genesis todf:f'
I understand that you are an ex-heroin addict yourself, and I would
like you to briefly tell us how you overcame your drug problem.

STATEMENT OF JAMES HENDRICKS, REGIONAL DIRECTOR OF
FACILITIES, SECOND GENESIS, INC., ROCKVILLE, MD.; ROBERT
BOSSONG, CHAIRMAN, VOCATIONAL DEPARTMENT, DOUGLAS
MAC ARTHUR HIGH SCHOOL NORTH, MIAMI, FLA,; MEL J. RID-
DILE, COORDINATOR, SUBSTANCE ABUSE PREVENTION, FAIR-
FAX COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS, FAIRFAX, VA; AND SUE
RUSCHE, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, FAMILIES IN ACTION, INC,,
ATLANTA, GA,, A PANEL '

Mr. Henpricks. Well, Senator Hawkins and members of the sub-
committee, mge:ame is James Hendricks. I am regional director of
facilities for ond Genesis,” which is a nonprofit drug rehabilita-
tion organization in the Maryland, Virginia and District Columbia
area. ' -

. In an effort to asgsist the subcommittee’s understanding of sub-
stancedabuse, I would like to sharée with you some of my own back-
ground.. , , -

Senator HUMPHREY. Excuse me, Mr. Hendricks. I am an old,
broken down airline pilot and I do not hear too well. Can you pull
that microphone up closer, please? :

Mr. HENDRICKS. Sure.

Senator HuMPHREY. Thank you.

Mr. HeNDRICKS. Is that better?

Senator HUMPHREY. Yes. : .

Mr. HENDRICKS. | was born in 1938, the fourth of nine brothers
and sisters, to a poor family in New York. I went to school in the
south Bronx, in the ghetto, where I started using heroin at age 11.
In spite of consistent drug abuse and criminal activity necessary to
supﬁort my habit, I was-able over the years to remain involved
with sports and graduated from high school. a
“ Although I never had a legitimate joh, it wag not until I was age
22, after 11 years of heavy drug abuse and criminal activity, that I
had my first involvement with the law. In all, I accumulated a 7-
year history of arrests and incarcerations, during which time I re-
ceived no assistance designed to help me face my problems,

In 1967, at age 29, I was certified as an addict in the State of
New York and entered Phoenix House Therapeutic Community,
where I received treatment. During that process of treatment is
where I accumulated my growth and treatment and, as some of the
otherhresidents explained earlier, what they wanted to get their life

ether. " ’

y progress in treatment was as remarkable, in terms of the
growth I was able to achieve, as my previous history had been, in_
terms of negative, self-destructive behavior, While still a resident
in the treatment program, what helped me so much was becoming
a group leader. - - o
. After a couple of months, I became a house manager, overseeing
70 addicts in the Phoenix House facility. In July 1970, I came to
Second Genesis, then a small therapeutic community in Alexan-
-dria, Va. As assistant director, I was responsible for.the clinical
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" and administrative aspects of the program. My responsibilities in-
cluded, like, prevention, education, family therapy, and staff train-
ing, to highlight but a few. :

As the Washington metropolitan area recognized an increasing
drug abuse treatment need, Second Genesis stretched, opening ad-
ditional facilities. In 1974, at that point, I was made regional direc-
tor to oversee all Second Genesis locations. We opened an addition-
al facility in the District of Columbia in 1977.

Concurrent with all these activities, I continued my education
and obtained my master’s degree in psychology and counseling last
year. . .

In addition to my duties with. Second Genesis, ] am a member of
the Northern Virginia Drug Abuse Task Force; vice chairperson of
the Addictions Advisory Council in Prince Georges County; repre-
gentative to the Therapeutic Commuhities of America; and repre-
sentative for the Coalition of Metropolitan Washington Area
Therapeutic Communities.

There is no question that I am a rehabilitation success myself, as
are the kids who spoke earlier todays—the perfect argument for
the case of treatment versus incarceration. I cannot, however, tes-
tify before this committee without emphasizing the fact that had I
entered the criminal justice system today, January 27, 1982, I
might be doing 10 to 30 years behind of bars instead of getting the
help that I needed. ’

The reason: There are approximately 300 therapeutic communi-
ties in 47 Statés, representing over 30,000 treatment slots. All are
full to overflowing and expecting cutbacks. To cite a few, Gateway
House in Chicago has 250 filled treatment slots and 44 currently on
waiting lists. :

Spectrum House in Massachusetts has only 40 treatment slots,
but is carrying 51 residents in treatment, and has been informed
that funding is to be cut back to 30 slots. In the State of New York,
3,000 drug treatment slots are due to be cut this year. In Massa-
chusetts, where there were 150 treatment programs 2 years ago,
there are currently only 115. By next year, projections indicate
there will be no more than 80. ,

In my own program, Second Genesis, our combined contracts
fund 255 treatment slots. We are currently carrying approximately
280 residents in treatment and have at least 55 others currently on
our waiting lists. ' . ‘

For the time being, our treatment slots have not been cut. In-
stead, we have been told to treat the same number with 10 percent
less moneﬁ. The situation is further exacerbated by the fact that
prior to these cuts, our actual treatment costs already exceeded
what we were paid by approximately 16.4 percent.

I cannot begin to ‘estimate the number of young people, such as
those who testified today, who are waiting or need treatment na-
tionwide. Listen to these teenagers; they are witnesses to the
spread of substance abuse among our youth in the cities’and in the
suburbs. : '

I have had the opportunity to talk with these young people on a
daily basis. I have learned to listen because over ang over, I find

that what they have been telling me is later borne out by so-calléd
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experts. What they say and what I see. is that the average age for
initial drug contact has steadily declined.

Further, involvement with any one substance, including mari-
huana, increases the likelihood of becoming involved with other
substances. Most of the teenagers I see are engaged in polydrug
abuse and chemicals.

In"a recent UPI release, Baltimore County Police Chief Cornelius
Brehan said that 44 percent of the major crimes in the county last
year were committed by people under 18 years of age, and 20 per-
cent of the youths committing the crimes were on parole or proba-
tion. :

The young people I see bear out these statistics. They talk of re-
peated suspensions or, as they call them, vacations, from school
before anyone took a position with them, and as many as 8 to 10
appearances in juvenile courts before anyone held.them truly ac-
countable for their actions.

Our communities must face the fact that we have worked so
hard to protect our youth that we have actually hurt both them

- and ourselves in the process. In Maryland, public outcry reportedly

resulted in Gov. Harry Hughes asking the State to devote a large

. portion of next year’s capital budget to the building of new facili-

ties for criminals and delinquents.

Those of us who have been there can tell you that additional de-
tention centers are nothing but a stopgap, not a solution.

Cost must also be taken into account. Judge Tracey earlier men-
tioned $30 a day. The cost at Second Genesis is $21 a day to tréat
an adolescent at Second Genesis. This includes individual and
group therapy, family therapy, education, vocational counseling,
and other supplementary services that we provide." ‘

I have included an extensive overview of the Second Genesis' pro-
gram as an appendix to my testimony and would appreciate it
being accepted as part of the record. ' .
> Senator HAWKINS. So ordered. <~ -

Mr. HEnbricks. It should be noted that this $21 per day price tag
is in sharp contrast to the approximately $40 per day for detention,
or the $300- to $400-per-day cost of hospitalization. :

Second Genesis and therapeutic communities across the country
are committed. to the belief that it is peer pressure that is influen-.
tial in getting our youth involved with drugs. But that same peer
pressure can be mobilized to get- them away from drugs and back
into the mainstream of society.

To this end, the adolescents in Second Genesis are involved in a
community program. They are involved with their experiencé back
in the school system with their negative peers, and they share
their experiences in the school system. David, who testified earlier,
and my appearance before this subcommittee today are part of that
effort. '

Thank you, Senator Hawkins, for the opportunity to testify
before this subcommittee. If I can be of any assistance to the sub-
committee, | would be happy to make myself available.

(The following material was supplied for the record:]

7
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APPEHDIX TO TESTIHONY

‘PROGRAM OVERVIEW OF SECOND GENESIS, INC.

“ »

Second Genesis, a px!é;tc, nonprofit, profeslionnl treatment
agency, specializes in providing rehabilitation-treatment services
to drug abusers, offenders, and othars who have established non-
coping, irresponsible lifestyles. Such, treatment is provided
through both outpatient and inpatient components, with therapautic .
community, residential treatment being our primary rehabilitation -
approach. Treatment in a therapeutic corrmunity consists of a .
highly structured, thoroughly supervised, twenty-four-hour-per-
day, chemical:frae residential program which typically takes
eighteen to twenty-four months to complete.

The Second Genesis program has often been described as a
school which educates psople who have never learned how to live
and feel worthy without hurting themselves and others. Second
Genesis helps people who have tried again and acain to cet what
they wanted from life and have continually defeated themselves.
The principle combines the basic and universal human values of
knowledge »-love, honesty and work with the dynamic instrument -
of intense group pressure in order tqQ recognize and help correct
the personality defects which prevent people trom living by
these values. The results are rehabilitation so that the -
individual may reenter his or her community as an independent
and productive person.

The Second Geneais program had its origin in June, 1969, as
i -+ the drug abuse component of the Alexandria Community Mental Health
Center. At that.time, the Center received a contract from the .
National Institute of Mental Health for a community-action oriented
aftercare program for narcotic addicts from Northern Vircinia who
were committed to the Narcotic Addict Rehabilitation Act (NAPA)
Program by .a Federal Court. .

. It wna early recognized that in certain instances outpatient
care, with urine surveillance checks, was not enough. A resjdential
therapeutic community program was initiated in mid-tlarch of 1970.
Named by its ocrupants, The Second Genesis, this prodram had as
its goal the complete rehabilitation of its residents to a pro--.
ductive rather than an enslaved way of life. This goal was
accompiished through its rigorous therapeutic regimen, a highly
structured, nonpermissive, self-help program.

Becausc of the essentianl expansion of and demand for the
aervices of the Second Genesis therapeutic community, not only
from Alexandrin but from the adjacent jurisdictions, it became
necessary to neparate this yital comoonent of services from the
Alexandria Community Mental Health Center to permit the . .
regionalization of programming. At its January 11, 1971,
meeting, the Advisory Board of the Alexandria Community Mental

)

-
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Nealth Center endorsed the sesparation of the Second Genesis from
the Alexandria Community ‘Mental Health Center; the Board further
endorsed the concept of transfer and continuation of the drug
treatment and rehabilitation program (including the NARA contract)

- within the framework of a private, nonprofit corporation, Second
Genesis, Inc. Thus, S5ecénd Genesis was incorporated under Section
501C of the Federal Internal Revenue Code, and in June, 1971, it
was formally established as an independent organization.

M Sscond Genesis now provides treatment rehabilitation services
pPrimarily to the Washington, D. C., Maryland and Virginia areas.

The progrém is staffed by a multidisciplinary professional’
group which includes a staff psychiatrist, a Ph.D. level clinical
psychologist, master's degree mental health and vocational
rehatilitation counselors, learning disabilities specialists,
addiction specialists and a research analyst. The facilities
are staffed by individuals, many of whom have completed treatment
communivies like Second Genesis and have gone on for further
training as mental health professionals. This diversity of
specialized skills permits the selective application of group .
therapy and individual counseling, educational and vocational
services.

The Second Genesis therapeutic communities are residential
rehabilitation centers which provide a family-like setting for
persons regardless of age, sex, race,.etunic group, or socio-
.economic status all striving for the common goal of self- relilnce
at the same time discovering love and self-respect.

Residential treatment is implemented throwgh two treatment .
phases with each phase usually lasting about a year. During
Phase I, the resident's entire functional routine takes place
within the facility, with treatmgnt emphasis being placed on the
development of responsible behavior and attitudes. Each resident
is responsible for an in~facility job function, the nature of
which changes regularly according to the therapeutic value of
the specific job. Each resident participates in regular, three-
times-per-week, encounter group therapy, and individual therapy
is provided on an as needed basis throughout the day. During
Phase II, encounter therapy is reduced and weekly psychodynamic
group ,therapy becomes a new part of the therapeutic regimen.

In addition, residents receive vocational assessment and
counseling, followed by vocational assistance in defining and —
implementing an occupational plan. Prior to-entering Phase III,
the outpatient phase of the rehabilitation process, a resident
must have stable, income producing employment, an ample savings
account, an approved residence outside of the program, and the
individual must be considered clinically ready for responsible,
independent functioning. Phase III individuals are regquired to
participate in weekly outpatient group therapy and urine sur-
veillance for a three to six month period prior to graduation
from the program.
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Second Genesis 38 funded pramarily through contractual
arrangements with: The State of Maryland, Drug Abuse Administration,
Department of Juvenile Services, and Department of Social Services;
The Distract of Columbia, Department of Human Resources{ Prince
George's-County, Maryland; Montgomery County, Maryland; The Common-
wealth of Virginia, Department of Mental Health and Mental Retardation,
and the Departments of Social Services and Youth Services. Payment
for services 1s rendered according to the specific terms of each
contract; further, each funding source has its own specific
admingistrative eligabilaty criteria which must be met by the
individual in order to be funded. Supplementary funding is
received .in the form of cash and in-kind contributions from the
general community.

The rehabilitation program at Second Genesis consists of the
following: .

A. Didgnosis and Evaluation

second Genesis, Inc., offers a wide range of diagnostic
procedures. These procedures include comprehensive social
histuries, poychiatric examanataon, psychological testing and
assensment, and v cational-educational histaries.

Feferraln are generally accepted from authorized
representutiues of federal, state and local governments; although

any irndaviial interested in rehabilitation may contact Second
Generans directly. Each Candidate will first be interviewed by o
staff €ow: wnlor an trder to collect background data and to conduct
a prelamir oy w0Is 1Ang of smitobility for participation 4in the

per o ararn. Nest, the candadate will be seen for a psychiatric and
poystologqaical evaluatinn an order to-asseos the degree and extent

af poogehaatxie=peoy. halogical disability as well as to measurc the
motivation of the candidate for rehabilitation. T data collected
wili then Yo dierunced at a reqular diagnostic con erence with a
poy baatrint, pey hologast, counselor, addict.on specialist and
other profoescitnaln. pregent. Baned on this conference, a clanical

diegreation- re omeendation will be made a5 to whether or not the
candidate in suatable for treatment. This recommendation when
neconary, 16 theyn presented 'to an official of the court Systcm

for dasponition,

1f the cardidate 15 found suitable for treatment, he/she -
will then be provided with a qeneral physical, including 1putine
Iaboratory tests. If the fainlings of .the physical examination
are unremarkable, including a determination that the candaidate 18
without a physioloygical need for detoxaficatson, residential ...
treatment will he initiated. For those candidates requirang
detrxafication befrre entering the facilaty Socond Genesis staff
will anwist the andividual and/or the suthorazed represcentative
o arzangihyg fur detoxafication. ’
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Residents placed in the program by the court system come
to us after a comprchensive joint cvaluation and mutual recommendation,
Pull cooperation and communication are present throughout the
treatment process.

-

B. Trecatment and Rehabilitation

- The primary modality for treatment utilized in the
residence is the therapeutic community interaction. The daily
activities of the facility are under the direction of experienced

- addiction specialists, who in turn are supervised by a psychiatrist
and clinical psychologist. This team mects frequently during the
week for patient staffings in order to continually monitor the
psychological growth of each resident. Each facility has twenty-
four hour coverage provided by professional staff and responsible
older residents.

v

Therapy is a twenty-four-hour-a-day process in the
community. Beginning with morning mecting at 9:00 a.m., every
moment of the resident's day is designed to enhance, stimulate,
and accelerate pcrsonal growth leading to sclf-responsibility,
freedom fiom chemical abuse and elimination of antisocial
behavior. Trollowing merning meeting, the resident reports to
his job assicnment until lunch. After lunch, all residents
attend scminars, designed to broaden the scope of the socially
handicapped drug abusers. Returning to hig job function after
seminar and rernaining there until dinner, which is hcld at
approximately 5:30 p.m., the resident prepares himself for
encounter therapy three timcs a week on hkonday, VWednesday, and
Friday cvenings. 1I1f an individual has not finishad high school,
he will attend classes in the facility on Tuesday and Thursday
to obtain the Genera) Equivalency Diploma (GED).

Throughout the resident's stay in the facility,
unscheduled urine samples are collected and analy2cd to insurc
a chemical-free environrient. Direct counscling is provided for
personal, educational, social and vocational problems on either
an individual or group basis.

special treatment, counseling, and orientation services
are scheduled for the families of residents.
L]

' Wherever possible, emphasis is given to the continuance
of education cven while a resident of the house. This takes the
form of preparation for tho GCD, or actual matriculation, while
a resident, {n a local high school or university.
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When, in the opinion Of the professional staff of Second
Genesis, a patient is ready to begin his gradual recntry to the
community, he will be provided with vocational counseling directed,
toward carecr development and job placement or further educational
endeavors. Budgetary planning and guidance will also be afforded
him as he prepares himself to live outside the therapeutic -
community facility. '

when the patient has graduated from the Second Genesis,
Inc., therapeutic community, follow-up will &ontinue until ‘such
time as the professional staff considers him ready for discharge
from the program.

¢c.” Administrative Services

(}) At regular intozv.ll, patient progress reports on
all residents are forwarded to the appropriate court and .
governmental officials, when required. :

(2) Special reports will be sent whenever significant
change takes place in the patient’'s status, i.e., when he leavegsd
the program before treatment is completed or is dropped from the
program, when he graduates from the therapeutic community and
when he is discharged from the program. Those to be notified of
such changes by Sccond Genesis, Inc., will include, when appropriata,
the family, probation officer, and the court system.

p. Family \and Community Participation

An importynt goal of Second Genesis is to create community
awareness and undeAstanding of its cohcepts and ideals as well as
of the characteristyics and problems of its residents. Following
are some of tho prbvisions made toward this goal:

(1) Twice each month, the parents of residents and other
interented citizens mect in what we term "cerebration sessions.”
In these sessions, concepts of group interaction similar to those
used inoide the house are applied toward the understanding of such
topics af drug abuse, bchavioral problems of residents, and
emotional growth;

(2) Once a month, the residents of Second Genesis hold
an open house. This gives friends, rclatives, businessmen, and
intcrested citizens the opportunity of meeting the staff and
residents, and the opportunity to sce and learn about what we are
trying to accomplish;

{3) The staff and residents of Second Gbnosis readily
accept invitations to speak to sponsored groups who wish to know
about our program. Many times this provides an opportunity for
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an open dialogue between Second Genesis and the community. We
have apoken to many different groups of people, at grade schools,
high schools, colleges, and various youth, church and civic

organizations;

(4) SBecond Geneais pnrticiﬁnten in many charitable
community endeavors on a regular basis, such as sponsoring
Christmas parties for undorgriviloqed children;

(5) Second Genesis' staff provides formal group therapy
to the spouses or parents of the residents. The goal is to assure
the level of communication and growth necessary between a resident
and his or her family for the transition from inpatient to out-
patient status to be successful;

(6) Twice a month, families and interested people from
the community are provided an opportunity to meet with the staff
in order to gain an understanding of the level of communicntion
and growth being developed in the tredtment process.

REFERRALS

k4

Anypno can muke referrala by contacting the Intake Counselors
located at .the following addresses:

Second Genesis, Inc. ~
4720 M- ‘1omery Lane
Suite

Betherc., ilarylcnd 20014
(301) 656-1545
Mon.-Fri. 9-5

Second Genesis, Inc. .
1204 Prince Sstreet
Alexandria, virginia 22314
(703) 683-4610

Mon.-Pri. 9-5 -

) . e
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Senator HawkiNs. Thank you. We look forward to working with
you on a continuing basis. I think you have the answers, as do
some other witnesses here today, to the solutions which we are
looking for to this all-pervasive problem. .

You heard Judge Femia talk about discipline and structure for
young people in need of rehabilitation. How important is that do

.~ you think? ‘

Mr. HenDpricks. Very important. In our facilities, we have a very
highly -structured environment. They are told what to do when:
they get up in the morning until they go to-bed at night. For
mostly the adolescents, take structure away and you will see plenty
of frightened kids, and when I see a frightened kid, he is going to
get in a lot of trouble, especially the kids that we receive with, like,
character disorders; kids that are trying to escape reality by the
use of drugs and do not want any responsibility. ‘

So, it is very important that a kid is involved with a very high-
structured atmosphere, whether it is in school or in a program or
the family. , ‘

Senator HAwkINs. The witnesses here were ufging stricter rules,
firmness, and continuity.

We do look forward to werking with you. You are close by and
we, will need your input on a lot of this. '

Mr. Bossong, tell all of us about Douglas MacArthur High School
in Miami, would you?

Mr. BossonG. First of all, before I start, I would like to say that I
agree with the judge who spoke earlier when he stated that the
majority of kids in the schools today are basically good. I think

* what we are dealing with today is just a few of the kids, on the

whole, who are having problems, and that is what our particular
program in Dade County, Fla., is about. I think it i easy to identi-
fy that we have a problem in the schools and outside of the schools.
lhthink it is quite a bit harder to identify what the solutions are,
though. ‘

I have worked in the Dade County public school system in Miami
for the past 21 years, My area of expertise is vocational administra-
tion and curriculum development. For the past 18 years, I have
been the vocational department chairman at Douglas MacArthur
Senior High School North. '

The school provides an alternative educational program for a stu-

ent body of approximately 400, a somewhat cohesive group in the
nse that almost all exhibit behaviors that are not conducive to
success in a conventional neighborhood school: ’

A preponderant number of these students are severely deficient
in their knowledge of basic skills. Many are impulsive, uninhibited,
aggressive, and hostile. Many represent serious attendance prob-
lems dating from elementary school. Many come from homes with-
out fathers. Many are juvenile offenders and exoffenders, and
many are caught up in a welfare culture from which escape is very
difficult. For these reasons, the philosophy and objectives of Mac-
é\rtbur North must reflect the characteristics and needs of its stu-

ents.

The philosophy of this school encompasses the belief that tuned
out. turned off, and/or culturally disadvantaged students can expe-
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rience, through success-oriented activities, more positive feelings
toward school and themselves.

Thrust into a achool environment, either voluntarily or involun-
tarily, these students can experience increased opportunities for in-

. - tellectual, social and physical growth through individualized in-
struction, smaller classes, and greater attention from empathetic
teachers. . :

v can foster the kind of development that can improve their chances
of er\iogin successful and meaningful lives in today’s society,
Throug dgeairable behavioral changes, especially greater respect
and consideration for themselves and others, along with improved
academic and vocational skills, students can experience upward
social mobility. : .

The objectives of Douglas MacArthur School, commonly referred
to by the students who go there as the “Mac,” ‘are to develop in
students the attitudes, behaviors and basic skills necessary so that
students might be able to return to their neighborhood schools and
become academically successful. Of course, this is the ideal goal of
the school.

It is also to provide for students unable to adjust to a regular
school setting an opportunity to receive a high school diploma and/
or vocational skills.

In order to accomplish the objectives above, the following meth-
ods are employed in the school: Smaller classes;, individualized in-
struction in academic subjects; noncompetitive grading system; self-_
scheduling by students in the -selection of electives, daily schedule
of classes and, in some cases, teachers; a great emphasis on voca-
tional programs; and the utilization of special education teachers..-

Senator HaAwkins. What would happen to the students in Dade
County if the alternative schools did not exist?

Mr. BossonG. In talking with a lot.of the students before I came-
up here, the majority of the students felt that if it were not for
these particular types of schools, they would be out on the streets.
A lot of them migm end up in jail, and according to a lot of tha
students that have been in and out of jail facilities, youth halls and
correctional programs, this is where many of these students learn
to become real pros. This i8 where they develop a lot of antisocial
skills which are taught to them by the other people who are incar-
cerated. .

- Unfortunately, when these people come back out on the streets
th¥y have increased negative skills and knowledge that they did
not have before, and in many ways it creates a much larger prob-

. lem. .

. Senator Hawkins. Has student response to these alternative
schools been good? : 4

Mr. BossonG. So far, the student response has been excellent. A
lot of students claim they do not seem to get into as many fights as
they used to since they have been in the school. They seem to feel
that the teachers in this particular school—for the first time seem
to listen to them.

The majority of these students have an uvemie IQ around 85
percentile. The majority of these students fall behind at an early
age in school, and then are passed on and on by social promotions.

Q .
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Many are big for their age and become disruptive and so the school
systems keep moving them on. '

They never really make it. They end up, as I said before, caught
up in the welfare system. They usually have one parent at home. I
think the biggest thing in working with these types of kids and the -
thing that they seem to feel makes this school successful for them
is that teachers never try to back them into a corner. I think this
is extremely important when you work with this type of student.

I think tKe important thing is to have teachers who are empa- ’
thetic and will listen to the kids. A lot of these kids this,morning
were telling us about their problems, with drugs, but they were also

. telling us that they were more or less crying’ for help and some-

where along the line, no one bothered to listen to them. ,
I think this is one of the biggest advantages at Douglas MacAr-
thur school” The teachers are especially picked throughout the
county. We have four alternative schools for disruptive students in
Dade County: the school where I am is just one of them. The teach-
ers are hand-picked; they have been in education for quite a while
and they know that you have got to give. the kid a chance to hold

on to his pride. ' : _

Just like I saw in a commercial on TV today, you have to help’
students get some self-respect. You heard some of these people talk
to us here; this is what they seem to be crying for—the fact that
they wanted someone to listen to them, and wished that someone
would talk to them somewhere along the line. o
~ Senator HAwKINs. We really appreciate your contribution here. I
am looking forward to working with you on an ongoing basis as we
try to develop solutions to this problem. . :

Dr: Riddile, could you begin by describin%othe substance of the
alcohol and drug abuse education program? Could you begin by ex-
plaining the concept? ~ =

Dr. Rippirk. I am the coordinator of Substance Abuse Prevention
for the Fairfax County, Virginia Public Schools. Before going into

- that position, I was a high school administrator. -

Over the last decade, I have seen a significant change in young
people, and the change has been in attitudes and attitudes about
drugs. Ten years ago, young people that experimented or used
drugs were considered outcasts and were looked down upon by
their peers. Today, the prevailing attitude is that getting "high is.
OK and that it is relatively harmless to them intellectually, emo-
tionally, and socially. : .

As coordinator of Substance Abuse Prevention, I have the re-

- sponsibility of working with teachers, counselors, administrators,

parents, community representatives in the 10th largest school
system in the'country. : .

We must recognize that -attitudes are really the problem that we
have to face—the attitudes of parents and the a%itudes of students
about drugs. Those attitudes are based on inaccutate or inadequate
information. In order to effect g change in the present situation,
we have to focus on those attitudes by providing accurate informa-
tion to parents, teachers, and children. ’

One example: I have recently concluded a series of inservices at
one of ‘our larger high schools. At the end of the inservice, one of
the teachers raise their hand and said: “If this is what is going on,
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why do we not do something about it?” My response was asking the
question: “Would you have said that before we began this series of
inservices?”’ His response was: “No. I did not know it was going
on.” : :
That is basically where our whole adult population is right now;
that includes teachers. Teachers are adults; they are parents. They
often know very little about drugs. I will give you an. example.
Most of our administrators are 40 years of age or above. That
means that they were about 10’ years old in 1950 and they were
going to school in the 1950’s.
In the 1950’s, we did not have a drug problem. In the 1950’s, the
" biggest decision a 12-year-old had to make was not whéther to use
marihuana or drink, but rather to decide between other things that -
kids did at that time—whether to go out for little league baseball
maybe was the big decision a 12-year-old had to make. So, that has
changed dramatically. - S : - T
We, as adults, have to become. better informed. One person in a
large county cannot inform every person, so our goal is to create a -
network of informed individuals. We focus in four areas; first, with
students, because as a public school system, our responsibility is to
~educate young people, and one of the things we have to educate .
young people about is the hazards of drug-use and drug abuse.
We have developed a new elemen carriculum which will pro-
vide accurate information, combined. with decisionmaking and
prohlem-golving skills, for those students. We believe that we have
to focus.about 80 percent of our prevention efforts in the elemen-
tary school because national studies and local studies indicate that -
kids make their decisions about whether to use drugs or not in
Jjunior high school or grades seven and eight. .
As the young people described this morning, most of those young-
people had initial experiences with drugs at age 11 or 12. So, that
means if we are going to do prevention, and prevention implies
that we are doing something before it occurs, then it must be done,
in the elementary school. ’ : o
Just giving kids information is not adequate; just making them
feel good about themselves is' not adequate. You have to have infor-
mation combined with skill-building activities. - '

As I mentioned, about 80 percent of our prevention education -

program is in the elementary school; or will be. The next area that
we want to focus on is informing adults, and we focus on staff
training. Teachers do not intervene and do not report cases of sus-
pected abuse because they do not know how to recognize it. They

do not know what drugs look like; they do not know what they .

smell like. They do not know what a child looks like when they are

~ under the influence. : ‘ K ‘
Kids often play a game of deception with teachers and adults. I
have, over the years, listened to students talking to other students
about how they deceived adults—busdrivers, parents—how they
were able to use drugs, or how 'they openly used drugs in front of
adults who were not even aware that they were using the drugs.
So, that eliminates the credibility of a staff member in working
‘with that child, because that child always has something over on
the adult. They are deceiving them. In order to help them gain

!
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credibility, we can provide them with information and raise their
awareness level, then that issue can be dealt with.

So, one of the things we are trying to do in terms of creating that
network is to have identified one administrator in each school to
act as a resource person to other staff members. We conduct
monthly meetirigs and training sessions, and these administrators,
in turn, conduct turnaround training sessions in their schools. This'
has been very effective and is really the basis of our staff program.

Other things that we have going on for staff include a 15-week
course that just started for over 100 teachers. We have been able to
gecure the services of nationally known figures such.as Father
Martin to do our alcoholism training; Robert Du Pont, former Di-
rector of the National Institute on Drug Abuse, to conduct the ses-
sion on marihuana training. . _

This is .part of a commitment of the school board regarding sub-
stance abuse and the prevention of drug and alcohol.abuse. We
have provided a college-level course or a graduate-level course for.
elementary teachers to teach drug education, to train them to
teach and to us€ our curriculum. | . _ R

We have also made arrangements with the lung association, or

the local and State lung association, to conduct smoking prevention - -

raining for elementary teachers. We believe that if we can make
issue of cigarette smoking, marihuana’smoking, in gomparison,
like a mountain compared to a mole hill; that if we can make an
i rly with young people about cigarettes as a substance of"
abuse, we can effectively prevent the use of other substances. .
In terms of our parent and community involvement, we have ap-
. proximately 26 parent groups throughout the county. These groups
praovide education programs for other parents in the schools and
our locale. They also work with the school to plan prevention pro-
grams. It may be providing information to students, brochures, or
whatever. ' : i ’

We have also developed a new organization that we cgll Fairfax.
County Parents Who Care, which is a group of those parent leaders
who have volunteered their services to develop a telephone hotline
and a newsletter to provide information to parents about planning
programs. o v

We also hdve, and this just started this August, 12 Toughlove
groups. These are parent/peer groups or self-help groups. We found
this to be very effective i s of getting parents immediate sup-
port and help in terms off dealing with their childzen.

The judge indicated HeforeNthat we cannot change parents. I
think parents can change themselves, but we have to provide a
place for them to go a place for them to meet, and an opportu-
nity for them toThange. ' .

- We also have a course provided for parents, an 8-week, eight-ses-
sion course. Those parents have been invited to bring their own
children, and currently we have 35 parents and 25 children en-
rolled in the course. : g

We have tried to cooperate very closely with the treatment agen-
cies and we have been able to give the schools increased access to
treatment agencies and increased information. Each month at
those resources meetings, we have a-person from a treatment pro-

gram speak.
) ' . b e . ' ’ -
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We also have improved referral procedures and feedback proce-
dures so that the school officials who do‘refer students to the treat-
ment programs can get feedback on the results of their assessment.

We also have a pilot court program designed to improve access
for school officials to the court system. Previous to this pilot pro-
gram, it would take several days of time to take one case through
the court system. We have cut 70 to 75 percent’ of that time out,
and this is designed to-seek early intervention for younger stu-
dents. . : s

We also have brought together leading figures throughout the
community—State legislators, Government officials, leading edyca-
tors, and community representatives—into a group that we call the
Northern. Virginia Action Coalition. This group developed legisla-
tive proposals on a State level—kind of a regional task force on
substance abuse or drug abuse. .

We are also currently training peer leaders. Some may call those

" peer counselors, but we areé trying to train.peer leaders who would’
“conduct turnaround training for other peers to develop a peer cul-
ture that is opposed to drug and alcohol use. .

Finally, we are currently participating in a Department of Edu-
cation program called the alcohol and druvg abuse education project
or program, thesschool team cluster approach. This is a program in-
which four schools—two high and two intermediate schqols—are
participating in developing a team concept to the substance abuse
prevention that is, théy have one administrator, one counselor, two

achers, and a community representative who plan and conduct"

ucational and prevention programs for the schools. -

Other schools may currently have in existence programs similar-
ly designed to these programs,-but they lack coordinating agencies;
they lack a team to coordinate those efforts. This is a very efficient
and cost-effective way of reaching many people. ’

These four teams will be conducting turnaround training with
the other schools in the system who are also currently developing
prevention teams. This team concept has enabled the schools in the
community to work much closer together, and has made parents

. aware that school officials are concerned, and also mage school offi-
~ cials aware that parents are concerned and want to help in the
area of drug and alcohol abuse prevention. | S
Thank you. . 4

F)

[The prepared statement of Dr. Riddile follows:] B
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Statement by Or. Mal J. Riddile, Coordinstor, Substance Abuse Prevantion,

Pairfax County Public Schools before the U.S. Senate Cowmittase gn‘glbor and

o .
I would like to expreas my epprecistion for this opportunity to apesk

to you regarding the harmful snd dieruptive effects that drug snd slcohol uee can

have on the aducation of our young people. My stetenents in reference to the .
) -t

detrimental effecta of drug use ere beaed upon my own axplrtnqcha sa well as

Human Resources: January 27, 1982. . : .

those of othar educstors who have daslt with hundreds of harmfully involved
young people over the last decade. .
National surveye conducted ovaer the lset decade indicete that the use of
illicit druge by yéuni ﬁlopln hae changed from a symbol of e counter-culture
“ ;r prbtent movement, engaged in by s small parcentage of the ;chool-aged
population, to the preeent afitustion which finde illicit drdg use a8 8 normative
bahavior ansaged in by s eignificant majority of etudante. In 1970, 23% of the
12-17 age group had used an 111{:1: drug. By 1980, §51 had used an 1llicit .
drug. In 1980, #0% of all high school studente reported having u:?d<nArXJuana
in Eh. paet yesr, 34% {n last month, snd 10% reported dsily marijuans use.
Recent atudiee indicatad that even theee lllmlnglly high figuree may be
underestimated. We know that sach year younger and youn}nr children are
exparimenting with {ilicit drugs. Last yeer tﬁ. sedisn ege for introduction
to marijusna wae 11.9 y-irl of age. This mesns thet some studente may have
four nt five vears nf regular mari}uann uee prior to reaching their esntor
vear. We know drug uee i. s contributing factor in echool dropoute, and that
thoee who leave achool prior to their aenior year are not included in the
sutvey rasulte.
The riee {n illicit drug use le further compounded by current uesage paitarna
af our most Widely used and sbused drug, alcohol. Fully 932 of all 12-17 year
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olds reprot slcohol use. One-half of the 23 millicn 1217 yesr olde are
considered moderate, moderate-to-heavy, end heevy slcohol users. In fact,
41X of ell high school uuﬁmu report having drunk five or mores drinks et
one time in the last two weeks, making th‘g- legelly intoxicated. The riss
in incidents of heevy or bings drinking on weskends combined with the {ncressing
frequency of polydrug x;u. the use of alcohol end, other druge in combination,
has contributed to the numerous dn&hl throu!h .ccident'lnd‘ ovnrd;)al.

Drug ues is the lesding causs of dnlt.h -among the adolescent populetion
rasulting {n 16-18,000 elcohol releted traffic fuulitiu'uch yesr. Drug use
is connectad with over half of ell suicides end drownings end large numbars bf
astious injuriaee.

‘l'hnAu are the measurable effacts of adolascent drug use, but what sbout the
impsirment of the sociel, emotionel, and intellectual development of e whole
unnrntiorl’ of young people. This is mors difficult to mesburas. ‘.In are aebla to
count destha, drownings, suicides, end school dropoutae, but how do ;e messurs
the damage done l?o school environments, families, end communitiee? How do we
u.nur; the damage to an A ‘atudent whoss gredes drop to B's eand C'e se & result
of drug ues end who is not admitted t6 the univereity of hie/her choice end .
who, baceuss of decressed ’mtivntio&, sslacts @ hni demanding major.

Educetion 1a o profeseion concernad with the growth end devalopment of
our -o‘-l: vitel reesource, the minde end bodies of our young pecple. Drug uass,
beceues of {te detrimentsl effaect on both the {ndividual end the entirs school
environment, undermines asod worke contrery to the goals of aducation. Today'’s
tesachars, counn:lon. end adminietretors muet be prepered toc deal effectively with
young pecple vhb ers hermfully involved with chemicel substences, for lserning
nnd“lrovth cll‘l not teke place when @ child ie in e drugged etatas.

1 will ues the term drug use rether than drug sbuss, baceuss sbuse

sutomat{celly {mpliss thet some unlv:novn lavel of drug ues among young pecpla.

Ve
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ts mccaptebla. Thoss who work with tham on e daily beaia know that se drug
uas escalatas thesa yo:mg pacpla prograssively losa control of thair usa.
‘ The results sta lowarad sepirationa end expactetions, datarioreting intar-
paraonal ralationshipa, loat dreams, and posaible death by euto eccident ©OF
i drug:ralstad suicida.
’ The youngar tha child st tha age of initial exparimentstion, the lasa thay
are eble to control thair uaa pettarns, and tha highar the probsbility that
thay will bacome harmfully {nvolvad. Thet is, that they will expariance aome
;roblnm or feal emotionsl or physicel pain sa a rasult of thair use of e
chemical -gbltnncn. o
Th. --v;nth. aighth, snd ninth srades or l[ll‘lﬂllvn. thirtesn, and
fourt;nn is & critical period foé young peopla in raletion to tha formation of
. attitudes about drui u;- end -xv-rt;-ntnl or baginning drug use, - A majority
of tha use Problams encountared in e -CQOol‘nnvlron-nnt involvae atudenta whosa
{ovolvamerit with marijusne begen Prior ro their entry into 'tha ninth grads,
job performsnce ia ususlly the least srea of an 1n;1vidunl'- 1ife to ba
effected by adult drug uss., Similarly, tha achool environment may ba the laat
placa to sae tha affects of drug ues on ;h. student, Initiel axperimentation
generally does not take piacn {n the achool, but rethar in a "party” or aociel
-1tuntlu;. In s vast majoricty nf tha ceasa, perents have alreedy obaerved »
noticeabla changes in e child's behevior, although not nacessarily attributed
tg drug ues, long baforas proglnm- occurrad l[»lchoul. Often, when chenges tn
bahavior begin to appear, perents sttributa them to the "growing paina” of
adoleccance. Thua, haevy drug usa pattarna may go yn{ltegcnd until very late
v gnd ronsaquently ara often vary difficult to control and treat, ’
1t must be p&lntnd oui that an 1mportnﬁt step is _taken in tha progreasion
af a voung pefrson's drug use pettarn when druge are aither brought {nto the
achool oc thé studant arrivea at school ln an intoxicatad stats. ln this cese,

.
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the ueer has openly fdentified with the drug cultura end may ba using drugs
juat to gat through the day. By that time, dm‘ use haa generally prograssed
° to a point whera intensive trumn: {a required.

Th; sffacts of the tntroduction of druga into the 1ifa of a young person
who Ls in @ stege of rapid growth and who fe/devsloping phyaically, emotionsally,
socielly, and spiritually fa declining scademic pn‘r!omnca,- social withdraval

% and eventual tsolation, and physical end psychological deterforaetion. ‘Rather
than bacoming a more 1nd¢pcr;dlnt. sdaptable people, thase students bacome wors °
dependent end unsocialized as drug uee escalates.

Adolescence ia & time vhen ;oung yoo'yh laarn to cope with the emotional
ups-end-downs of 11fe. Whan drugs are uaed in place of internally deviaed
coping responses, the individual misees the opportunity to .d;v.x” appropriata
1‘1h skills. When faced with ths peinful f..uq.- that ;f!tﬂ accompany frequent
drug uae, adoleacents resort to the only. coping bahaviors that they have learned, .

more drug usa. The result s an endless cycle of psinful expariencee folloved
h -

»
k)

by Lnappropriate coping behavior and mora drug usa. : L.

Drug uas hae a perticularly disruptive end undermining fmpact on the clesa-

3]

' room environment. The extent end nature of ite affect on tha.clsesroom is beaad
primarily upon the ch-lu;ly induced mood evinge experienced by the tndividual.
Any student_ wvho antere a claasaroom in an intoxicated state dierupta tha claas-
room bacause of tha dhtr;cr.!.nguﬂact those studenta have on thl other studente
'in tha clase. While the fascher may bs unawars of the studant’a :irul ues, other
students ara enxfoua to ses how the teacher and the atudenta fnteract or if

tha taacher notices thet the student ia ‘1n an, {ntoxicated atata. In this
eituation the atudents have "put aomething ovar” on the ~u.char. It nay ba
raadily apparant to othars in tha clesa that the atudent in question fa high,

but to a taacher with no exparience or axposuras to today’a drug orfented sub-

colture, the fntoxication is not so apperent. Tha other studants wondar why
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the tescher tolarstes students coming to clsss high and ho;xp to cowpsts
or gaugs thalr own behavior to that of.tha most diaruptive student in the
class, the ona vho comes to Clases bilﬁ. * , -

In addition to ssverly impairing {ndivédual performance and contributing
to classroom disruption, drug use effucts the entire climate of ths school.

The drug uaing subcultura contributes to the formation of s divisive eplit
within the atudant body by denylog the attitudes snd veluss of the gensral
student population and cpanly defying the -ptMr1t§ and n-ponll.bulty ot school
officiala to maintein order snd discipline. Their subculturas s preoccupled
with finding, buying, eslling, mg,u-m; dru;-.‘dcﬁtn the velus of sn sducetion,
snd e o(u_n opanly critical of "atraight” behavior, which to them reprassnts
conaciantious studente who are actively. involved in achool activitiaes,

Thia slianated po;r culture offars immediate acceptances to sny “atudent
vﬂling to angage in drug uass. ” Tha group §rows in numsbers by sttrecting any
atudant having difficulty adjdeting to the shcool. Students in thia -ub’-
culture are dlsproportionataly 1nvolved‘ in such negative hihnvlo?- as trusncy,
abeantssiem, v-nd;lh-. clanas disruption, verbal -hu-; of .steff, and in-
-uh.ordlnnuon. Thess students ®onopoliza the time of cou;\nlon and adminis-
trators who ars trying to find some way of raaching end halping thass atudante.
But n’- long as drug uss continpce the sdditional auparvision, counssling =
ar tuturing will not help, Performance and behavior will continue to rd-url—
orsts. The result, the student may -v-nuuily dﬂrop out of achool.

padicated staff, like wall {ntentionad psrents, think that they should
,a sble tu help cach ptudent achieva suctess. Thay expariance feslings of
felluca and sullt ae e result of e student’s cont inuad lr;lpproprh(l bshavior
eand resultant failure., The truth 1, that thara may be no sppropriate educational

. >
srograms (ot A studant who {s undar tha influencas of drugs and slcohol.

-
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Just ee sdolsscent drug uas fe celled e family disesss becsusa of its
dieruptive effect on the family unl.r.y.tlolny it bs called & school-wide
- diseass becauss dml usg serves to creats s disruptiva atmosphers and fs
associeted with & wide-rengs of aegative b.ha;rtor-. and ganarelly undsrmines
the entire boduculoual process affacting svary atudent and ataff membar in
tha school. This situation con:rl‘tu to parent-achool conflict by c;couuu.ng
vlaming betwesn p-un:‘c and echool etaff and denial on the pert of both the
home and school regarding the cause of student sisconduct sod feilurs.
finally, the behavior of the sntirs student body may deteriorste as s
result of tha involvemant of studants with drugs. Students bagin to -
M use the woret bshavior in the achool, posssssing and usisg drugs, ss.s basies
to vhich to compers thiir own behavior, Studeate begin o rationalize end
uinisisd their own Lndlccrcttonl{v, comparing them to the behaviors they
[ 1

’ coneidar to ba tha poorest in th .

|
\
|
chool, end ask "why len't something being ‘
dou-nbour. thae.” : ‘
What cen'bs done ebout that? What can echools, perents, enlf comsunitisa |
' do to etem the tide of {ilicic drug usa?
In ordar to effact changs {n ths presant situation, we must focus on the «
ateitudes of tha adult end student population regsrding the coﬁuqucncu of |
continued high levele of drug uss. We know that l;y providing eccurate infor-
wption about the effects of druge and slcohol, we can bring sbout attitudinsl
change. Simply put, our biggeet cbetacls to the effactivé prevention of gub-"
stence sbuss fa & lack of knowledge, not only in young psopls, but particulaerly
on r.h; part of moet ?dulu.
Our new -h—uu;y curriculum, vhich will bs pilot tested thie apring in
four schoole, Le besad upon r.uurch that indicetes that eccurete {nformatfan
combined with relatad problem-solving end declsfon-making ekille caen changs

ateftudes, end thet en attf{tudinel chengs usually precedss bahaviorsl changss.
- .
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for example, anti-smoking caspeigne in the early and mid 1970'a resulted
s

in significent sttitudinal changes regerding the harmful effects of smoking.
In 1980, national studies reveslad e significant 4 decreass in cigarette
PUTH a

in that information-{s criticel to current prwmtton. efforts, we ere
fecad with the challeage of -duc-gln;, treining, snd involving 1-r;- numbere
J!ita-chan, counsslore, and edministretors ss vell es perents, snd repre-
sentetives of vlr[;u. community sgencias currently providing services to
vouth, We know that in order to help prevent substencs abuse smang our young
people, adulte must heve credibilicy, In order to gein ér-dlbtltty, edulte
sust denonstrats en awarsnass of the drug scens. It fe very difficult to pre-
vent eomething that we know little ebout. In order to sccomplieh this gosl,
ve muat creste & natwork' of informed individuale throughout the achools, school
systea and community who ere cepasble of both providing accurets information
regarding, substence sbuss snd involving concarned tndividuale in the plenning,
tmplementetivn, and evalustiocn of prevention programs deaigned to msst the

nesds of the locel school and community. R )

Our offurts are, currently focused in thres earess, eteff (teachar, counsslor,
adainisatrator) training, perent involvement, .54 eoordinetion with community
agonc las vurrently providing esrvices {or“youth.

A Our prograns [or steff include the following:

. Subatento Abues Resource Persons -~ Zach intermadiatd end high school *
hae duu(gnn;cd one adminietretor to act as e resource parsof Yo oteff,
perenta, and atudents Lr;‘ regard to substance abues prevention cducetion,

A\ﬂtorvlntlnn, end reforral. Monthly mestings have teken plece sinca

Saptombor. These lndividusla ara the foundation-of our efforta to

provide (nfarmation and asslstance to eteff, perents, and studente.

*
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2. Yifteen-Wask Course - A three-hour, non-collegs credit course .nfzuﬂ
"Aleohol and Drugs: Working with Young nopx." te betng offered for *
spproximataly one mmdred teschsrs, cousselors, aad administretors. ,
. 3. Drug Educsttion Courss - A thr‘u—hou‘r. graduste credit courss 1s bo‘lnl
of fered through G.or‘; Hason Univereity. This 'couru is intended ta
- assist -lmnuty teschers in L-pxn-'huu the q-v slemantery curﬂcuh- ’

4. Smoking Pteventioh - Arrsngsmgnts ‘vers made vith tha Amsrices Luu N

Associetion of Northsrn Virginie gud ths vuunin Lung Associstion to - B

trein sslected slementery teschars to conduct turnaround trajaing in N

. . . *
':hqtr ,8chools.in reletion to smoking prevestion.ediucation. Each ele-

entery -cl;ool will be represented by st least one !ounh, !uth. or

W sixth grade tescher. . -

- 3. A two—part series of slides end overhesd trnmpnuncln relating “to thn-

Ldnnuflutlan of coptrolled subptence end lu'u of chemical dnpnnd.ncx

has bsen asde availeble to school-bssed persomnel to conduct turnaround

- 5 il

trefning. . ! . .

B. Our sfforts to fgvolve parents tncludet
1. Perent Subll;nc.l Abuse Prevention Groups 2z Bach school pyramid
(high school snd ft’s intermediets snd slementery Tsedar -'chooh) have
& psrent group whoss focus {s the prevention,of substence sbuse. Thesse
groups vo;h wxih ths schoole to _plnn plrlt.:t ?ducnﬂon prb;nqi. to pro-
vide support to parents experisncing substance sbuss ralsted problems
- with thefr children, end valm and dwnlo:) other coopnr‘ntv- pravantion N

programs sppropriste to the nseds of thetr school. - B .

2. A directory contaloing dncrlpilonl of sveileble community ssrvices has,
besn produced end made eveilsble to psrents end parent group lssdsre.
J. Parents Who Cers - In @n affort to -coordinate the resourcas of the . M

schools and community in r-duclt‘ll the fncidents of drug end slcohol

ERIC
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Coypouilvo o!f.oru‘vtr,h comsunity agancies iniluds the folloying: -

1.

 coordinste praveatios efforts. Thie group is called Yairfax Coumty

abusa, the Substance Abusé Preventioa Section has obtained the

cooperetion of some of the prominent ‘parent lesdere to volunteer to

Parente Who Care, and will act ee an information and referrel mrcal

providing e nevaletter and a t-x-pﬁm- hotline.

Toul.!:lou - Tou[hl.av“tc ] ;iinnt ccu-hnlp group designed l; aseist ' v
parente in dealing affectively with insppropfiate behavior. The

Substance. Abuse Prevention Section offered e twa-saseion Tdughlove

U-olklhop !or-ﬁn;n: group leadere in tober. Sf{nce August, this pro- .
gram has grown f{rom one smell group of five parents ta twvalve groups

vith“an svagsge etzendance of twenty-five. ° . .

Coures for Parente - A pilot, eight-esesion course on substance sbuse

for pa.rgntc and thair children ie being chuJ an_Hond-; dvenings. .
- .

There sre thirty parents end nineteen children presently enrolled.

Ve

Smoking Prevention - Arrangssants yere msde vith the Amesricen Lung .
Aseqcistion of ‘!lorn;_.rn Virginia snd the Virginia bung ch‘tlilon to
trein selected elemsntary teechers to conduct turnaround treiniag in

thefr schoole in relstion to smoking prevention educdtion. Each ele-

meangary echool will be represented.

Drug Zducetion Course - A :hrn‘hm.nr, greduate credit couree ll‘ being
o!L.u;j through Ceorgs m;oﬂ Unlvcu&:y, This coures is intended to
eesist wlemantsry teachars in ll.vl-tnllnl tha nev elementsry curriculum.
Pilot Court Prolru‘ - Pour high schoole are psrticipsting in & pilot

n cases of sub-

court progras deeigned Lo obtain eerly _1nllrvmtlon.l

atence ebuee and related negative beheviorg by improving access to the

court eystem snd by trsining school personndl in affective uee of the
4

1} i
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4. Tresatment Agencies - School pareonnel have {mproved access to locel trest-
sent programs for studants end parents {n need of eseistence. Iasearvice
programs have provided achool-bdesd paregnnel with opportunitiss to

. intarect with treatment profassionals to shere {(nformation end sytual

concarns.

. 3. NOVAC - The Mortharn Virginie Action Coelition (NOVAC) fa e .group of
citizens concerned about the protilea of subatance :&‘in-on‘ tha youth
of Northern Virginis. which {ncludes Alexandrie. Arlington, Pells Church,
Veirfax Cicy. Pafrfax C:mnty. ond Loudon County. Thess {ndividusls re-
pratanting educetion, business. government, ;;ubuc health. lav enforcewdlic.
end vdluntesr -ﬁncln. heve collaboratsd in developing e aeriss of
. legieletive proposely that .r-lllcl.(hu needs end deaires of the citizens
of Morthern Virgiala. N .
. b.‘ hur.v Lesdars - The achoola ere working with thé asaricen Red Cross
to trein pesr leaders vho will develop peer, aelf-help groups tn .,
sach (ntermediets end high achool. The self-halp groups would ba
treined {(n listening -kll:ll. group processess, end propsr referral -

proceduras. .

7. The School Tees Cluster Approsch po Yreventi{ng Drug end Alcohol Abuae ~
~
Two high achools snd tvd {(antermedistes schools ere participsting l'n
-‘Pllot prr;lr.;aﬂvon-or-d by thy U.S. D;pur(um’ of Edecation's Alcehol
‘-nd Drug Abups Educetion Program. Focuas of“tha ﬂch?ol Team Cluaster
Approach La tha devaeloppent of e {lvu-mblr’ taes conalsting of one
adminiatrator, on rounnlor‘. twvo teacheTa. :nd ona community representive
fapressntetive. 'nu-. ta&m aetvas to coordineta tha rssourcs of tha kchool
sng community to reduce the lncld-ﬁu of tnapproprists behavior including [ 3
: .
drug snd sltohol abuse among the student yopulul&n. Sp-cl“rlnnv. the

achool team facllitatea en On-going or“n;ntlon-l devalopmant.projaect

2
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in which evsilable human reasourcas are anlisted to conduct neads assassments,
snd plan, implement, end svaluata ptograms designed to improva tha quality of
school 1life by reducing the detrimeatel affacts of such negative bshaviors aa

absantesism, vendalism, and substence sbusa.

The progras begins Ui:hwln initiel oriantation of kay adnini;:rntiy- par-
sonnel followed by :-n days of in:lnliv. :r-1n1n| of the school taam. Tha
training consiata of team building lc:ivitinl, substance sbusa P"Vln!ion
tachniques, snd the devalopmant of ection plans bassd upon the asssssed neads
of sach school. “

'!ollawin; the training pariod, the teams raturn to thair raspactivae

schools end immedistaly bagan to activaly snlist ths support end involvemant

of additional steff membars with tha intent of esteblishing en expandad

varsion of the original "cors tean.” For exampls, one school utilized group
decision-naking techniquas, lesrned during tha :rninini'pnriad. to 1nvolvn‘
all staff sembars in the planning of a ravisad attendance ﬁroc-dur-. Tha
expanded tsams have bl‘un to meat ragularly to cbn:inu. to devalop plans and
. ! .

programs to redugs inapproprists bshavior.

Another sghool's plans currantly includs the davalopmant of & school
community tesk forca to reduce absanteaiss, end en enrichaed 1n-lcpool

suspansion progras which includas specialized Counl,ling, tutoring, end

* i{ndividuelized contracting. Plans also cell for sxpendad student sarvices

for "high risk" atudents including sarly idantificetion and aseecasment as
vall ee group counssling end e uniqus pear self-halp group. Tha team’s com~
munity repressntative has basn in::ruq:n:‘l in halping to initiste psrant
self-help groups in the ares s wall as throughout Feirfax County.
In addition, snothar team has included tha tnculty.ndvinory council sas
a part of tha taam -itor: and has planned e sariss of inaervice programs

ralating to lubl!lncl sbusa pravention lnd to tha improvcmnn: of inn:ruc:ion
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through the -wroﬁrt-t- matching of tsaching Vlnd learning atylss. A school
beautification projsct, designed to discourasgs vlnd‘ltll. has bean bagun,

aa heve spacisl counssling programa for "high \;llig" atudants, & structurasd
in-school .ulb‘inntou proir-'lnd s lesdership ratrast for studanta. Tha
tesm's community rlpr;-cnt-tlv- is the head 0f & psrant group callad SUPPORT,
which has besn active in reising community awarsnsss end in obtaining wbpor:
for ths achool's prevention afforts. ) . .

- Other achools may currantly havs in -existencs programs of similer design
or intent. The uniqua charactaristic of this program is the existance of an
satsblished coordinating tsam compossd of s cross-ssction of tha school snd
community. The kay is the coordination of résources. Fragmanted or shotgun
lpptol:chll vhich raly upon spacislly funded positions lly dissipats whan moniss

[
dissppassr. This program is predicstad upon ths bslisf that ths rssourcas

. nssded to reducs inapproprists bghavior snd to improve ths quilt:y of student

1ife ers currantly prasant in the achool snd community;. -ﬂd by broadening
participation in the planning of prevantion programs both the comgunity’s
ownarship of tha problea snd ssnes of commitment to .polllhll remsdiss will
increass. In the futuras ths four perticipating teams will 'tutn other tsans

in othar schools, making this s vary cost sffactiva program with ths potantisl

of resching hundreds of studenta.

J8
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Senator HAwkiNs. Thank you, Dr. Riddile. Your testimﬁrhas
addressed all my questions. you have any Senator Humphrey?

Senator HumpHREY. No, not at this time. Thank you. .

Senator HAwrins, We appreciate your contribution and look for-
ward to worki with you 1n the future. :

Mrs. Rusche, is that correct? /

Mrs. RuscHe: Yes, it.is; thank you.

Senator HAwkins. I a rreciate your patience. You are the an-
chorman here. Please tell us a little bit about your Families in
Action prograrh. . '

Mrs. RuscHe. Well, thank you very much. First of all, I would
like to congratulate you for having these hearings, and I think that
all of your: witnesses have been excellent, but I think especially to
hear tie kids tell it like.it is has been most effective and helpful.
You deserve a lot of thanks as well as congratulgtions.

Families in Action is one of several parent groups that has
.. evolved in the Nation over the past 4 years, and we were one of the

“first; we started in 1977. The reason that we organized is threefold.

We were really responding to three things that had occurred in our

community. ' ' ‘ . . .

. We are’ a_middle-class, primarily white community around

Emory University in suburban Atlanta, an academic and frofeﬁf

sional community, primarily. And a group of children aged 12 and
13 in .odr community were distovered at a birthday party to be
using marihuana and to be drinking alcohol. The parents were ab-’
solutely stunned that their children would be involved in this and
. * that kids this lz'oung would even have access to drugs, let alone
think it was OK to use them. '

. What those parents did to turn that around, as they look back on
it\and now define it, was to form a parent peer group where the
ents got together; first of all, recognized and admitted that this
\ad happened to their kids, and’second of all, by ‘working together,
exe peer pressure back on the kids to interrupt the peer pres-
sure that said drugs were OK. The garent peer pressure was quite
clear that drugs were not OK and that that was not acceptable be- -
havior in the family.

Now, just as these parents were getting their kids out of the drug
culture about 1 year later, the second thing that happened was
that an Emory student flew down to Miami, Fla, and was mur-
dered by the two friends who picked him up at the airport. It
turned out that he had $47,000 cash with him and had gone to buy
cocaine and was, in fact, a drug dealer on the campus and in the
community as well. - .

He was from a very wealthy family. His father, who had died,
was the owner of a major sports team in New York, and his stepfa-
ther wag the owner of a major sports team in Atlanta. So, he clear-
ly was not motivated by need to become a drug dealer, nor by edu- -
cation, nor by upbringing, nor by any other thing. All of the tradi-
tional indices that say people who enter into these activities do so
. because of “A, B, C” did not work either for the 12- or 13-year-old
+ children nor for the Emory student.

The third thing that happened was that on the heels of the stu-
dents’ death, six shops in our communit¥, in the village that sur-
rounds the university, introduced lines of drug paraphernalia, and
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this was like the local record store, the drugstore where kids go for
ice cream cones and school supplies, et cetera.

High Times magazine was suddenly for sale in our community in
the stores that kids dropped in, and toys and gadgets that glorify
and glamorize drug use—not just marihuana, but cocaine and
other drugs—suddenly started being sold. We felt that enough was
f\nough. mething had to be done, so we organized Families in

ction. :

Our purpose then and now was to try to link parents with other
responsible adults who come in to daily contact with kids, such as
school principals, teachers, police, people in the helping profes-
sions, treatment folK, medital folk,“et cetera, trying to get every-
body working together. LT :

But what we soorl realized was that we all tended to scapegoat

and blame somebody else. We were very unwilling to take responsi- -

bility ourselves; it was much easier to blame someone else. And we
felt that it was terribly important to get everfybody together look-
ing at the problem and trying to identify specific problems and get-
ting folks working together to solve them.

n after we started, groups began mushrooming all over the
country—in Florida, in your own State; in California, in Maryland,
in New York—all over. And very quickly, these groups began to
make themselves known, and we linked up all the (Frou together
in the National Federation of Parents | ] for drug-free youth,
which was formed in the spring of 1980. .

NFP now has offices in the Washington area and there are an
estimated 2,000 parent groups in all States, and beginning to
occur in other countries, such as Canada and the Scandinavian
countries, New Zealand, and Chile.

I think that kind of gives you an overview of who we are and
what the parents’ movement is, and I would be happy to answer
some questions at this point..

Senator Hawkins. Has the school system in Atlanta acknowl-
edged the extent of the drug and alcohol use among its students, in
your opinion?

Mrs. RuscHe. The answer to that has to be some yes and some
no. In our county, when we first an we found a great deal of
redistance and denial on the part of school officials. There were
gsome good reasons for that. Any one particular school that is will-
ing to say: “We have a problem in our school,” and is willing to say
that pubi,icly. gets skewered in the press. And what happens is that
all the other schools and communities say, ‘‘Boy, do they have a
problem at Smith School.” >

The real estate agents get nervous because word gets out that
the school has a bad reputation, et cetera, when, in fact, in reality,
eve?"body has the problem and all the schools have the problem;
all the communities have the problem.

A second thing that tends to retard that is that people react very
differently. I can understand why the schools are nervous about
saying up front, ‘‘Yes, we have a problem in our school,” because
they do get speared in the press, and that gets misinterpreted.

But by the same token, some parents react rather strangely. An
example occurred in our school system. We did not have a disci-
pline code in our schools until about 1974 or 1975. The reason that
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a discipline code was drafted was that a high school student came
to school with a loaded g‘un one day and the teacher took him to
the principal’s office, and the principal took the gun away and un-
loaded it and called the student’s parents and said: “Come and get -
your son. I have suspended him from school for a small period of
time.”

The parents responded to that by suing the school because they
thought the principal had treated t{leir son unjustly. They all went
down to court—the school and the parents and the principal. And
the judge said to the school superintendent: “Dr. Hinson, do you
have a discipline code that says you ma%vnot bring a loaded gun to
school?”” And Dr. Hinson said: “No, We thought commonsense
would take care of that.” And the judge said: ‘“Case dismissed,” and
found for the parents.

So, the school folk went back and drafted a very good discipline

code. At the time that we came along in 1977, there was drug and

alcohol language in the code, but not much enforcement of the lan-
guage, And when our group began, we made it clear that we were
not going to solve problems through litigation and lawsuits, but
rather through an attempt to develop communication.

Consequently, that first year that we started, the schools set up
an evidentiary hearing committee to hear cases of students charged
with alcohol, drug and other violations. That year, over 500 stu-
dents went before the committee, and 63 percent of those students
had been charged with alcohol or drug violations. '

The worst thing that can happen to you under our code is that
you are expelled from school. That is usually a second or a third
offense, or it means that you have been dealing. And while we all
understood that the code was very good because it set limits, it was

. also very harmful to those kids who needed the help most because

the kids who were expelled were thrown out on the street and not
given any help to encourage them to change their behavior. '

So, the school system the following year developed an alternstive
school, which is a place for expelled students to go to be able to
keep up with their education while they are earning their way
back into their. home school. They receive intensive counseling;
they receive a great deal of emphasis on building good self con-
cepts, on communication skills, and I think most importantly on
challenging the ‘“‘use drugs”’ messages that perhaps led them into
this activity in the first place. ’

The kids study principles of logical thinking and then they are
exposed to High Times magazine and drug paraphernalia and the
presence in society of products such as “Opium Perfume.” There is
now a new product on the market—another perfume called “Sinsi-
mila.”” There is a new skin care product that has been introduced
in Texas, called “Cocaine,” and thete i8 a new beer being sold in
California called “High Brew,” whicl contains, it says, marijuana.
How many laws that is breaking, I do not know.

But if we continue to see this kind of thing in society, at least we
can tell children and help them:see that these messages are aimed
at their adolescent spending power at the expense of adolescent
health, and I think we need to keep looking at this with kids, as
the Hamilton School is doing.

e
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1 would like to say one other thing. The schools that are t;c- .

knowledging that their students are involved with drugs and are
working with parents to try to change that are succeeding in doing

80. :

In De Kalb County where we have worked at setting up chapters
around the nucleus of a high school and the elementary schools
that feed into it, our school superintendent told us that those
schools which had Families in Action chapters were seeing a reduc-
tion in use and a reduction in reported drug and alcohol cases.
Thoee that did not have chapters were not.

In Northside High School in Atlanta, where another parent
group called Unified Parents has been working extremely hard, the
turnaround there has been terribly exciting. Not only is drug use
down, but also there are more students enrolled in academic and
college preparatory programs than in the history of the school
before. And students’ SAT scores are going up at Northside, which
I think is terribly exciting.

So, once again, we find that if the school is not willing to ac-
knowledge that there is a problem among its own students, what it

usually takes is the creation of a parents’ group that begins nudg- -

mg and trying different ways to communicate with the school ad-
ministrators, and to really build that trust, and it takes 6 months
to 1 year to do that, but to build that trust between parents and
administrators and then get down to the problem.

I should say one other thing. In spite of all this good news, just
last week our State department of human resources released the
first statewide survey of drug and alcohol in Georgia, and we still
have quite a problem. For instance, the study showed 1 in 10
eighth-graders in Georgia has tried quaaludes; 1 in 4 eighth-graders
in Georgia has tried marijuana; and 3 in 4 eighth-graders in Geor-
gia have tried alcohol.

The figures for high school students, 11th and 12th graders, show
that 26 percent have tried quaaludes, 51 percent marijuana, 84 per-
cent alcohol. Those are dry, old statistics, but when we look at
what is happening to kids in Georgia and we see that there has
been a 31-percent increase in teenage deaths in 1 year due to auto-
mobile accidents, drug-related, and drug-related homicides and sui-
cides, we begin to get a picture of how serious the problem is.

DUI arrests for 15- to 18-year-olds in Georgia rose from 4,200 in
1977 to 5,000 in 1979. Nationwide, all age groups are increasing
their life span, except teenagers. The life span of kids aged 15 to 24
is going down, and the reason for that is drug- and alcohol-related
accidents, homicides and suicides.

[The prepared statement of Mrs. Rusche follows:]
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MRS. SUE RUSCHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF FAMILIES IN ACTION, INC.

Madame Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee:
1 would like to begin by thanking you for the
opportunity to be able to appear here today. My

name is Sue Rusche. I am co-founder and Executive
Director of Families in Action, Inc. 1 am also
Vice-President of the National Federation of Parents
for Drug Free Youth, which is based heze in Washington.
Families in Action, Inc. is the nations first community
based parent organization formed to prevent drug abuse
smong children and teenagers. N
We organized in 1977 in response to three events
that took place in our community in Atlanta, Georgia.
First, a group of twelve and thirteen year old children
in our neighborhood were discovered by their horrified
parents to be regularly using msrijusna and alcohel.
Second, soon thereafter a student attending the
university where my husband teaches, flew to Miami
Florida and was murdered by the two friends who picked
him up at the airport. Investigation into his murder
disclosed that he had taken $47,000 in cash to Miami
with him in order to purchase cocaine and that he had
been a drug dealer on the campus and in the community |
where the twelve and thirteen year old drug users lived.
Just after his death six shops in the village surrounding ,
the university introduced lines of drug parapherhalia . - |
toys and gadgets which glorifiod the use of -lrijJana. '

cocaine and other illicit drugs. It seemed to us that
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enough was enough and that someone had to do something.
We founded Families in Action to 1ink unsuspecting
parents with other concerned adults in the community who
have a impact on childrens’ daily lives. Our burpose
was and remains to educate adults about the physiological
-pd psycological consequences of illicit drug use,
the extent and use among children in adolescence,
and the social and connercfll pressures that encourage
children to enter the drug culture.

We felt that the problem of drug abuse among youngsters
was bigger than any single segment in the community
and that the only way drug abuse could be prevented
was for families to quit blaming schools, schools to
quit blaming police, police to quit bllll;l kids,
all of us to quit blaming each other and start working
together to get at the problem.

One effect of Families in Action's early work was the
passage of the nations first state-wide laws prohibiting
the sale of drug paraphernalia. Since then, some thirty-one
states have passed similar laws. NWeo are called upon by
parents from all over the nation to share information about
how we had organized and about the over-all problem of
drug abuse among kids. This led to our publishing an
organization manual in 1979 called, "How to Form a o
Families in Action Group in Your Community.” To date,
3,500 manuals have been sold to parents and schools in

all 50 states, Puerto Rico, Canada, England, Chile and
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New Zealand. A good portion of the estimated 2,000 parent
groups that are presently organized in the United States
began with the help of our manual.

Since our founding in 1977, we have clipped some
250 daily newspapers, popular magazines, academic and
medical journals, and other publications and have
cntnﬁorized and filed this 3nfdr-ntion for easy retrieval.
Our drug information center currently contains some
70,000 documents l;d is now listed by the Library of Congress
as a national referral center for drug abuse information.
Eventually, we hope to raise funding to computorize
our collection and create a drug information center
data bank to keep parents and others concerned about
drug abuse among children, nbrensf of events that
influence and contribute to the problem. We publish a
quarterly newsletter which draws upon information
coming into the center.

In the lp;ing of 1980, leaders from several parent
groups tﬁroughout the nation convened in Atlanta and
founded the National Federation of Parents for Drug
Free Youth. (NFP) NFP's goal is to establish a network
of existing parent groups, and to assist parents in
organizing new groups. In November of 1981, Mrs. Nancy
Reagan invited NFP's board members to the White House
to share with her the work we are doh'to prevent drug
abuse among kids.

At this time ! would be happy to answer any questions

you may have.
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Senator HAwkiNs. Thank you so much, Mrs. Rusche.

I think we have put together in this hearing all the elements
vital to a solution to this problem. The fight will not be easy and it
will not be won here today, but we are starting.

Jim, do you have a comment? “ L

Mr. Henpricks. Yes. I just wanted to close with a statement that
I would like to congratulate you for having this hearing and for
your interest in drugs in the American school system. - :

I am aorrly Judge Femia is not here where I could relate a lot
more, but I am going to relate upon it anyway.”Anybody who
denies that there is an increasing drug problem indicates they are
part of a lag. '

In communicating with kids who are coming off the streets ad-
dicted to drugs, abusing PCP with permanent damage, they were in
schook last month and when I asked them: “Well, where do you get
the drugs from?” “In school.” ‘“Well, how many people are doing it
in school?” “It seems like everybody.” -

What is important is that this is a problem that, geographically
across the country, differs. In your larger cities, you are going td
have the abuse or epidemic of heroin. In some of your suburbs, you
are going to have the polydrug abuse, the PCP syndrome.

And I just want to put a little emphasis on what Judge Tracey
was mentioning, that this is the most dangerous drug. As a matter
of fact, it has the same symptoms of irreversible behavior, on a
scale of 1 to 10, of a 2 with marijuana and about a 10 with PCP,
What makes it go dangerous is it stays in the system for so long
that the after-effect has an effect on a lot of kids.

But the age is going down ang the problem is g
There are 30,000 treatment slots acroes the country thad)are filled;
they have waiting lists and funds are being cut. I know, over the

ears, we have talked about the long, hot summer. We afe going to
ook for one this year in terms of the increase of drug abuse and all
the other things that are happening in the country.

Thank you.

Senator HAwkins. Thank you, Jim. [ hope that we will be able to
work together to alleviate the problems that you are anticipating
in the upcoming summer. I think that we are probably foolish to
not spend more money addressing this issue beg)re it gets to be a
larger epidemic than it is.

I also agree with you that the problem is getting worse. Every
statistic we could find during the investigation, which has been on-
going for several months, demonstrated increases in use and young-
er ple involved. Those of you who deal ‘with it on a daily basis
understand that.

We discovered that drug and alcohol abuse is crippling our next
generation. It absolutely impacts on the quality of lifg in\the home
the school and eventually the workplace. dL

We have heard from the children today that drugs troy the
quality of education because it renders young people unable to
learn. Eventually it invades the workplace. I was thinking as they
were testifying, you know, where are they going to work and what
is our next generation going to do. There is currently a great
demand for scientists. Where are we going to get that resource
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However, while the testimony has been alarming it also is en-
couraging because we have had young people step forward from all
walks of life, and demonstrate that the problem can be overcome. .-

Their younger brothers and sisters will face the same tempta-
tions if the issue is not addressed. That is why we have had this
hearing today, and that is why we formed the Drug Abuse Caucus.

I think that what we have learned is it does require all elements
holding hands tightly. The family, besides providing love and sup-
port, must also learn about drugs and drug-related behavior. It is
not a condition to be ashamed of and hide; it is one that must be
faced aind healed. '

I noticed as I left yesterday, in my small community there was a
big billboard out.in front of the elementary school stating that that
evening they were having a discussion on drugs for parents. It
alarms most of us. We do not want to talk about grades one
through six having a drug problem, it is a problem.

In addition to parental awareness, the schools must confront the

roblem. They must provide comprehensive preventive education
geginning in the first grade.

[ think that we must have a rigid code of conduct to deter those
for whom the education is too late. The witnesses here today were
begging for stricter rules and for consistent punishment. It holds us
all up to ridicule when the kids say it is a joke to go into a court. |
am sure they do not say that if they go into Judge Femia's court.
Unfortunately, he is unusual.

I think that what I have learned is that alY professionals must be
tough, and parents have to be tough and the courts have to be
tough. By being soft as parents or educators we have done young
people an injustice.

Also, I think that county and State juvenile courts should estab-
lish, publicize and evenhandedly enforce a strict set of rules like
thoee that Judge Femia was talking about. I think it can be done
easily. I think that the sentences should stress treattent and coun-
seling. All o®you in your testimony here today have reinforced
that belief.

I have learned that young people need to be helped; they do not
need to be locked up. They are crying-for help, and if they cannot
get it at home or in the schools, we are going to have to look else-
where for it. It is essential that all of these elements work together
if, indeed, we are going to turn around the drug and alcohol tide.

Neither the e(s)arent.z; nor the schools can do it alone. The judges
are overworked and overburdened and in a dilemma. They really
do not know what to do. In order to successfully overcome the drug
problem among the young of this country, all elements must work
together.

We really do appreciate your staying to the end and helping us
begin to build a record for the Drug Abuse Caucus. I think you will
hear a lot from it in the future. :

At this point I order printed all statement’s of those who could
not attend and other pertinent material submitted for the record.

[The material referréd to follows:]

.
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Jay Howell, Chief Couneel

Senate Committee on Labor and

Human Resources

Subcommittee on Inveatigations

and Oversight

4230 Dirkaen Buildin

Yashington, D C. 20510 ' Q

Dear Mr Howell: .

As you are aware, the heur(&g on ''Drup Abuse {n the

American School System'' haa senerated a substantial R

amount of attention and intereat, I have provioualy N
forvarded {nformation on the nedia coverage,.

I now enclose additional {nformation in the form of
program information on The Village South as well aa
cormentn from other local drug rehabilitation programs
and parents on participants in oroframs 1 submit these
documents for inclusion {n the record of the hearing
und would lfprociute your brln«ln them to the attontion

Senator Hawkins. We -inccreYK ope that the hearings
lnd the followup responac will have aome effect on the
overall rchabilitative efforts in this countrv

Wo apain offor our assistence in any way deomed advisable

{n the future
lage Sout Inc
-, ‘
[ -

Matthew Gisesen, J D , President

“MG/hy

encls /‘\,

d c¢cc  Senator Edward M Kennedy

Jonator Cordon J Humphre ¥
850 BI3C ATNE BOUAEVARD /MIAML RORIDA 33137/ TELEPHOUNT (3031 731 3856
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dade

county S

~largest
- family

Where have you most experienced the feeling of
. - protection and safety? Where did you first know
the feeling of belonging? Where did you first

realize that you were thought worthy of affection?
Where did you first experience respect and

, _esteem? For most of us, the answer to these

I
T questions is the family.

The relevance of the “family” idea is even more

forcefully demonstrated with the task of helping

those who have trouble coping with the stresses

of life. Instead of asking why the addict is addicted,

-why the youngster became a delinquent, why the
alcoholic craves the bottle or why the runaway
slipped out the back door, first ask why the
overwhelming majority of us do not become

addicted, do not become delinquent, do not abuse
alcohol, and do not run away. It would be

agreeably flattering if we could simply claim

’ stronger moral fiber. But a more objective analysis
would indicate that most of us learn attitudes,

" behavior and skills for coping with life in that most
important setting: the home. This is where we

learn to relate to other people, to share, to feel and
‘ 16 act responsibly. This is where we should observe
. the “role models” of both sexes, and where we
first learn the satisfactions of status and approval

as rewards for achievement.

These are just a few of the reasons why most of

THE VILLAGE programs are built around
residency and the concept of an “extended family".
Within this framework, the programs and
therapeutic methods of THE VILLAGE have been
successful in effectuating desired behavioral,

attitudinal and emotional changeps .Il\ ﬁ residents.
M

. P

)
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THE VILLAGE clinical staff has employed
therapeutic methods that have been proven
successful providing that the approach is positive
and as long as it can be administered ina
“famlly” framework,

We are a large family, to be sure, with residents
who have already achieved success by
completing segments of the program

serving as role models for the newer members of

the family. It is through this process of growing and
giving that enables THE VILLAGE residents to
mature and soon move back into sgciety as
responsible citizens with new ouTlooks and hope
for the future.

" THE VILLAGE has truly becomé an “open-end”

tamily — undoubtedly the largest family in -

~ Dade County.

THE VILLAGE has received funding through
contracts and grants from various governmental
and private sources to sustain its multimodality
rehabilitation programs. Among the activities and
treatment methods which are incorporated in ’

THE VILLAGE Treatment Programs are:

Individual Counseling Casngork Services
Vocational Counseling
Family Counseling
Educational Counseling

. Recreational Therapy

Legal Counseling
Vocational Training
Group Therapy

Marital/Couples Counsellng
Job Referral and Placement
Medical/Dental Services

Treatment Planning

Conferences

Psychiatric/Psychological
Services

' Educational Classes

Creative Activities '
Milieu Therapy o .
Life Skills Training '

Formal Diagnostic
Services

-

Al activities at THE VILLAGE are supervised by
a staff of qualified multi-disciplined personnel.

In-service training is provided for all staft members
on a continuing basis. THE VILLAGE has served
as a field training agency for students from the -

- University of Miami, Barry College, Florida
International University, Florida State Umvers-ty,

" Miami Dade Community College and others.
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- ]
fo: the community
- What is the name of a drug rehabilitation
' " program that is no longer only a drug
rehabilitation program? The answer to this
. " question is The Village which is a
comprehensive rehabilitation agency meeting
the diverse mental heaith needs of the Dade
. County Community. *

from The National Institute of Drug Abuse for
the implementation of a residential drug
rehabilitation program. Today, The Village

_residential treatment ptograms in the
United States. '
P Since its inception, The Village, has been
' aware of various community mental health
problems for which little if any services were’
available. in response to these needs The
Village expanded its available funding-
resources through grants and contracts in
order to provide treatment services in addition
toits d'rtfg rehabilitation program.
The enclosed slip sheets briefly describe some
of the multi-modality treatment services that
are presently being offered by The Village.
The Village hag evolved into a significant part
of the health delivery system in Dade County
and through the continued commitment of the
Board of Directors, Officers and Staff of The
Village\the same high degree of quality care
afforded fo The Village residents will.be
maintained in the future. o
Please accept this as an open invitation
- to visit with us at our facilities and to see first -
hand what the concern, understanding and
support of a community can do for a
rehabilitation program. We sincerely hope that
this support will continue in the years to come.

Sincerely,
THE VILLAGE SOUTH, INC. -
Matthew Gissen, President

The initial funding for The Village was received A

operates one of the largést and most respected '

2
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(commonly known as THE VILLAGE) is a
non-profit, tax exempt Florida corporation
licensed by the State of Florida, Department of
Health and Rehabilitative Services.

THE VILLAGE serves as a referral source for
many private social service agencies and
mental health practitioners and has established
lines of communicatipns with such public
agencies as:

State of Florida:

" Bureau of Drug Abuse Prevention
Division of Corrections.

Division of Family Services

Division of Health

- Division of Mental Health

Division of Retardation

Division of Vocational Rehabilitation

Division of Youth Services

Parole and Probation Commission

United States:
Bureau of Prisons
Department ot Health, Education and Weltare
Department of Justice
Probation Office
. U.S. Marshall's Office
'Veterans Administration Hospitals

. Dade County:

Addiction Treatment Division

Board of Public Instruction

Circuit, Criminal and Juvenile Courts

~ Comprehensive Alcohol Program
Comprehensive Drug Abuse Program

Corrections and Rehabilitation Department

1 1 3 Department of Youth Services
Jackson Memorial Hospital
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v e the villoge

| Comprehensive Rehabilitation Prografns

Administrative Offices
5810 Biscayne Boulevard
Miami, Florida 33137
Telephone (305) 751-3856

Matthew Gissen, J.D., President

David M. Gersh, M.S., Program Director

Salvatore Feola, B.A.,Clinical Director

Robert R.J.Scanlon, M.S., Psychological Consultant

o
the village’s

This brochure courtesyof
Bennett's Automated Typesetting
Colonial Press of Miami, Inc.
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. VILLAGE SOUTH )
ORIENTATION PACKET

POLICIES AND § ROCEDURES

Ths Village South is s COIpl:lhlnllvla Tesidsntisl, rshabilitation program divided
into four dietinct phasea: Inductiena (3 weaks), Intensivs Residentisl Trsstment (4
monthe}, Re-entry (6 months) and Outpatisnt (9 to 12 months). Inductions and Intensive
7Trllt“pt Phass sre @ live-in/work-in twenty four hour s dsy residentisl therepsutic

situation, Re-entry le e live-in/work-ost sducstional, vocstional snd social thara-

peutic situation. We welcome the OPPOrtunity to sesaist you snd your family and hope
that our reletionship will be mutually rewsrding.

During tho Intensiva Trastment Phess rasidents ere rsquired to work in eome in-
houss Cepacity. It may be et our trsstment faciiity, re-entry fscility or one of our
"Cottags”™ Industries, but nvnryoy;n pitchss in end helps. At firet thars le little com-
sunication with the "outeide world.” Al}l privilages sre esrned including ths tir;c
lattar end f{iret phona call homs, This “guardnting” phsse .occure primarily in ths In-
ductlion Phass of the program in order to remove ell distrections and concentrete on /
client ascosemant testing end progrem readineas. ‘

We have occassionsl open housas end psrent meatings every other Thursdey st 8 pm,
You will be notified in advence, giving you sufficiant, time to make necessery errsnge-
ments. It is Importent to ths clients thet their familise partiocipste snd we encoursqge
you to 4o ao if you poesibly cen. )

Throughout the trastment process, residente perticipete in group therepy, individuel
counseling, recresticnel activities, aducetional clasesas, vocetional counseling snd

esssassment, psychologicel end peychletric appreieal, rep ssepicna, job functicne and .

receive individually negotiated trestment plane. Family members ere sn integrel pert

of client treatment end cen greatly h rasident by participating in twice

-aln;ly counseling sesaiona, ;wgn houssas end pPareant ®mestings. Those ssseicna ere under
' the supsrvieion of steff end ere designed to help the client re-intsgrete with thelr

tamily "support aysteme,” i
Rasidsnt wovement in ;:‘ur Trestment , Re-entry or Oufwtln;at Pheass depende on the

cliant's progresa. Our philosophy is: "In order to fecl sdagquete we must do eadeguste

%
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,
thinge.” Advencement from phess Yo phass depends upon completion of "behavioral as-
signmente” negotisted in the client's trestment plan and further detsrmined by the cur-
rent stegs 'til trestment and the ettendant criteris. We are ettempting to help individuale
become sdequats, prodictive human beinge by recosmending vericus beheviorsl, emotional '
and gttitudinel elternetives they heve previouely ignored. It ie therefors imperative

that et the same time they ere re-sstablishing reletionships with their parents. spouses

and 8iblings in order to mors repidly reorganize pricrities.
- Throughout the trestment process, the etaff of the Village South hae certain ex-
pectetions of family membare. They ere: '

» 1.. If e resident lesves the fecility without permiesion ("eplite”), we sek
the family to refuse him edmiesion lntoz the home end not give him/Ner eny money. In-
ateed, we gek You to enicoursge him/her to return to the program. Adjustment to s re-
sidentie]l trestment gituation ie quite demanding. Cllents do often feel like running

svey and sometimes will. If your eon left e TB eenitorium egeinet wedicel advice beceuse

e
he didn‘t like the curteine in hie room or wes feeling better. would you encourage his

to complate the prescribed course of trestmet? We dre desling with e problem eguelly
as lathal en TB,

1. nResidents ars not ellowed to receive any money from parents, gpouses,
friends, reletives, etc. Any monies delegeted to the client by family members cen be
sent to our Inteks Office whore they will be receipted into his/her eccounte by the In-
taks Otaff member. Our Bueinessc Office ie the only plece you mey leeve things for e
resident. Do not bring cesh. We ers open 9100 - 5:00 Mondey through rriday or you may
drop thinge off whcn you come to family meatinge.

‘ 3. Cammunicetion with the client depende upon etege plecement end indiecrim-
inete phone cells ere not ellowsd. When placed in Gtege One clionte, with oteff permission,
osn cell family mombere ssch day betwesn 4100 and 7100 pn. Family membere sseking to
rontect Gtage One clients by phone dv.ir;nq the week may do €0 during the ssma houre, ex-
cept in ceso of sn emergency whun celle cen bc made et eny time. 1In order to develop
proper cosmunicetion between youresilves end the reeident's eteff merber, YyOu MmAy went to

spesX to the councelor et lesst once veskly. Recommended Adaye ere ye end 2d }
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evary day.
4. Recidents are sncouraged not to buy very much clothing whlle in the first
.
stege of troatment. The amount of clothing each individuel hes will depand on their

treatmont lovel and nobdo. Additional clothing may be foquented from home as the need a-

rlees.
. ‘

§. Me will expect the family pembers to contact the staff il a problem de-
velops when the rosident ls home and to provide us with feedback on hia/her behavior.
sttitude, etc, Agein. using the Tubsrculor patient example, [ you saw your eon pouring
his medication 1n the #ink or coughing up blood, would you tell the hospital?

) 6. Cllenta are not allowsd Coneusption of any alccholic beverage or drug re-
gardless of the Tircumstance or sltuation.

7. DAlla on asrvicea that are not covered by our preaent grante will be for-
wardod directly home for payment unleaa of course you establish different arrangaments
with our Intake Lupervisor.

0. Rosldon* cowplaints as to improper trestment can be further lnvontigated
by simply éuhm ¢+ Troatment Project Diroctor, Louiasa Henlg, at 376-6040. Client ob=-
jectivity in those rircumstances should slwayn be conaldered.

A program such ee ours rannot achlevo ite Goal unlees it r-cu;-- the full ¢oopera~
tion of the client'a tamily unit, Wo are hore to help individuale, and in dolng eo de-~
pend an your support and complliance to program policlies, rules end l-qul-tlc;n-. Your
invnlvoment in the treatment Preocoss la senentlal and with that your knowledge of our
dlverce, and may | add, rathor succonoful program is of further necescity. We will al-
ways neod your smoticnal, charftablo end [lnenclel support.

1f you havo any further queotions do not hesitate to call. Wo cen bo reschod at
$76-6040 day or night.

Ao you road through thls brochure wa hape you get a plcture of the projoct we have
devolopod in ordor to provide our Clients with a treatmant exporiance that will enable

thes to lead productive and fulfllllng livea,
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The Village pouth was born in March of 1272 with & group nf approximately eight staff

®mambere and fifty reeidents bent on establishing e rehablilitation progran free of hoth
phillacphical and political conflict.
After d-p-i_tlnq in a lertz rontal truck from a rohablilitation center they had been
locatod at, they arrived at a church in Morth Miami without any idea af how to provide
. for the noeds of same fifty ox-addicts. 'E:omrov-rly was rampant due to the dramatic de-~ .
parture from the program they had “split” from, with tho madia edding a liollywood-like
atmosphere to it all. At that timse tha Village gSouth was without a name or a facility
and had no ldea of how or where to locate lta population. But they did have identity
through their determination, persistence, sndurance and unity.

After bnl;\q svicted from the church in North Miami, realdenta were herded into homea
and aparimonta of ptaff memtors. Ae our preelident, Matt Giaaen tried desporately to ee~
cure tha funde necoasary to purr:"llln a facility. rProm the homes of the otaff, thelr no-
madlic wandoringo rontinued. Thoy wore now located {n & cummsr carp faclility in Bomeetead,
Florida flnding, at lact, & place in which ta begin organiaing. And organlzo thoy 414,

In ordar te ocurvive {nod was nocessary. A team of rooldonts, hoeded by our current Pro-
Jeam Dirertar, Gavid Lavine, arquisitioned game. In order ta buy ng-v; toothpaate, etc,,
resldents wont to local farms volunteoring to plck peas, plant geeeds and harvest rorn for
a small sum Therapeutlc groupo end pep rallise ware hald, criteria wao implomonted and
& name wao precented. village South. sAn never bofors residents and etaff mambors became
dependent on one anuther, fuaod togethor by all that thie program wao founded on: love,
securlty and support, Hobody oplit and nobody complainod for ;hay wore doing it to~
gether TheY were dolng xomething i{mpossible - they ware a boginning when thoes about
them predl. tod afily an ond.

Finally; in July af 1972, wo moved inte our "new" facility at 5020 MK miaml Avenus.
Althrugh the facilities were not in the beet of shaps, although the grounde wore over-
run with weotts and litter, although the reaidents had bewn ueed to bettor accomodations
over ae addicts on tho stroer, thooa first clients and staff felt they had truly ro‘;nd

a htme Appostanco was not important. Refuge wee finally found.
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FIAGE ONE

The following privilegea are avallable to reaidanta who have demonstratad ‘comple-
tion of varioua taoks. They are not neceasarily in order and may be aelected at random
tfrom the llat provided:

Ph:)nn vall to‘pnnnt-, wife/huaband, 7\rlfrhnd/boytrl-nd, children.

Requoet to Five a seminar.

Shopping trip (three hours in length, muat not interfore vlu‘s mandated hculo' activity,

must bo takon with a roaldent from Gtage Four and above) .

VAN - maximum $3.00.

weckend T.Y.

waeknight, weokend atudy time, alane time (muat not interfere with mandsted houae ac-

tivivy).

Jaob : hange

Attendanre at one Re-sntry function (muat not interfera with mandated houao activityl.

1.¢ with a otall momber other than otago staft member.

Timé in the oun (muct not intorfore with mandated houae activity).

toftes at Lum's with the diractor. *

Store }rlpn {unlimited - muat have ataje atatt mambar's pormiasion at all timeel} .

Park trlp {throe houre - must not Intorfore with mandated houpe activity and muet be

taken with a residant from Stage Your and above) -

ERI!
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PEG IDENT PRIVILEGES

STAGE TWO

The lollovlnq privileges are avellable t reeidenta who have demonatrated cowpletion
of v;rlou- tasks. Those requasts are in order and muet be selected in that fashion from
the liar provided. All requests from Gtage One. although immedlately earned u?on place~
mant into Stage Two, -u-\t be written on ti requeat slips along with the Primary request.
a. Week one - W.A.M. privilegaas of $%.00 weekly.
D, Weak two ~ 4 hour paes with designated strength.

©. Week three ~ 8 hour pass with designated strength,

STAGE THREE
The rollcvlnq privile are evallable to residents who have demonatratod completion
of varioue tasks. Theee requesta are in order end muast be ‘nlncted in that fashion from

the list provided. All requests from Stages One and Two are immedistely earned upon en-

trBnce into Gtaje Three, nonetheless muct’ ba written on the request aheets along with the

primary requeet.
Week one - 12 hour pees with designated/eslected atrength.
Week ‘two ~ 16 hour pass with dooignated/pelected strength.

Week throe - 24 hour J- without resident ntrength.

W.A.M. priviloges of $10,00 weekly.

ETAGE_roux
The following privileges are available to residents who have domonstrated completion
Of varicus tasks. Thoee roquoats are in order end must be pelocted in that fashion from
the list provided,
a. Week one ~ 24 hour pasms without r-nld'-'n! strength,
Week two ~ )0 hour psas without reeident etrength.
Week throe -~ )0 hour pass with 6 hou;- epent with at least one member of peer.

W.AM. - Gtage Four can requeat 520.00 weekly.

o)
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(qhe Village Bouth, Inc.

Program Description and Hiatory

Vvillage gstaft Philosophy

Tha greoatoat force for making peopla biggar and bettex bhan
they are now is the beliof in your hasrt’ and mind that they

have infinite potential for growth. Even when they fail us,

we aro to contlnuec to carry and express the mental image of

what/who they may becomo.

To have somcono believe in you, to have someone to believe
in, oven whon You fail, io tho most bleasod and croative

»

force in the univoroo. "

village Troatmont, Ro-Entry Philoaophy

¢
In order to fepl adequata we must do adequate things. We

not goala that may neem unattalnabls but wo achieve through

completion of objectivoo. Through achievoment we claim suc-
coss, through succens wo feel adequata. Wo ask ©nly for

support for wo aro afraid, confrontation for wo avoid,
forg&vencuu,for'vn have failad, comfort for we hurt, in-
struction for wo must learn, comp-nlonlhlpvjor we arc alone,
gitts for we Qunt givo, love for wa need ecach other, The

Village, Our Hopeo.

N\

"
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Villede South

Proqrem Description

-~

Ths village South is e comprehensiyh, reeldential, reha-
bilitation program divided, into four distinct phesss; ~
Assessmente (2 weeks), Intensiye Residentiel Trestment

(4 monthe), Re-entry (6 monthf), and Outpatient (9 to }2
monthe) ., Asssssments and the¢ Intensive Tresatment Phasse
Ars a live-in/work-in, twenty-four hour s dsy, residantial
therapeutic situation. Re-entry i4s a live-in/wotk-out sd-
ucational, vocstionel, snd socisl therepeutic situation.
We welcome the opportunity to essiat you and hope that our
relationship will be mutuelly rewsrding,

During the Intensive Treetment Phase residents are re-
quirod to work in one of our facilities, whether it be at
our Troatment facility, Re-entry facility, or one of our
“Cottage™ IndMustries. At firet there lea little communica-
tion home. This "quarrentine” period occurs primarily dn
the Assenwment Phase of tho program *in erder to remove ell
dlatractions and concentrate on client testing and program
roadinoss. We have occaesionsl open bousee end rogualr,
twice monthly, perent meetings whieh Rftord the opportunity
for visits st the facility.

Throughout the Trestment process each resident participatos
i{in group thorapy, individual counseling, recreational
activitios, educational clasees, vocational counseling and
aosensment paychological and psychistric appraichl, rap
socsionn, open hounoe and parent meetingn. These sosnions
are under the supervison of staff and, as tholr goal, do-
sire intogration of the client bhack into tholr "oupport
nyatemo” or community based family unita,

Ronident movement {n our Treoatment, He-entry, or Outpationt
Phane dopends on adherohce to our philosophy of, “In urdor
to fecl adequate wo must do edequate thingn®. Advancement
from phane td phane depends upon cémplotion of “"bohavioral
asoignmentns " neqgotiated ‘in the client'a treatmont plan and
further dofincd by the stage criteria applicable to ocach
“llent, Thiao method of “"earning” your way through our pro-
9gram by behavioral assignment completion is an effort to
annoss the offectivences of reinforcement techniquens

i{n tho troatment of drug ebusers. Our application of thio
bohavior modificetion technique at Village South detesrminece
¢liont promotion and privileges throughout the week. A
rosident ecarns “points™ on s ecale of one to ten in propor-
tion to the amount and quality of hie participation in group
thorapPy and program acitivities, as well as the quality of
hin bohavior. This aystem permits the resident himself
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fesponnibility for determining whether or not he gets a” v
privilege request or stage promotion. It provides for a

more positive experigqnce which puts emphasis on present
achievements and successes and requires him to make his

own choices in deferment to, or-preferment of, gratifi-
cation. Thus our credit system is intended to encourage
resident behaviors dependent not on subjective, external,
alien ‘authority figures byt rather, dependent on an intern-
al control system:; the client. Residents can earn from one
to ten (with ten being the highest) points in the areas of
daily behavior and attitude, reaolition;and stage groups.
Single points can .be earned in the areas of weekly treat-
ment Plan goal completions, "box%} scores and group ratings.
At the same time incident pointa? (points accumulated for
irresponsible behavior) will be subtracted from the points
earned. Inevitably, our clients perceive their "points"”.
earned as their weekly "paycheck™ and prefer avoidance of

"withholding taxes"™ or incident points subtracted from their
gross earnings. ' ’

We are attempting to help individuals become adequate, prot

ductive human beings by recomménding various behavioral,

amotional, and attitudinal alternatives which they have pre-
viously ignored. The unique aspects ©of our program .include
the shortened Treatment Phase (4 months) and extended :
Re-entry/Out-patient Phase (18 months).. Where clients were
learning proper behaviors- and coping mechanisms for thera-
peutic community living, they were not learning proper be-
haviors and coping mechanisms for community living. By
shortening .the Treatment Phase of the program and intensi-
fying the therapeutic encounter with the client, we were
more rapidly transferring clients into the Re-entry Phase

of the program without creating a negative dependency on the
Treatment environment. ’

Prior to the transition of clients into Re-entry., an acutely
pertinant Transitional Phase has been developed where VO~
cational and educational specialists assess ind place clients
in situations ‘appraised as relevant to their career and scho~
lastic goals. Once successfully promoted into Re~entry,

the client is prepared to begin work and enroll in school
without the "cultural shock” of unassisted re-adjustment.

.*cultural shock” can best be defined as emotional reactions

to the loss of visible reinforcements -such as the intimate

setting of the Treatment facility to the new social surround-

ings a client is depqsited in upon transfer from Treatment to
Re-entry. It can trigger feelings of helplessness, loneliness, .
resentment, and fears of being forgotten and disregarded. The
tasks associated with such a transition include establishing

a new peer group, dealing with the loss of status held at the
Treatment facility, self regulation of behavior and unknown
expectations held by Re-entry staff and Re-entry criteria.
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To prevent cultural shock, we have the new Re~entry client
residing at the Treatment facility for the first thirty days
of his re-entry where he can retain the .intimacy of familiar
staff, friends and setting. Alcohol absitnance is mandatory
to éliminate potential alcohol dependence during a transiton
period filled with possibilities of setbacks educationally,
vocationally, emotionally and.socially.

After the thirty day period as a Re-entry resident living at
the Treatmeant center, the individual moves into the Re-entry
facility. Clients are usually eager to make both the geograph=
ical and emotional transition. The Re~entry facility is a
microcosm of the Treatment center with fewer residents (from
approximately seventy~five residents at Treatment to approxi-
mately thirty residents living in the Re-entry facility) 1less
stress and an eénvironment which allows more opportunity for
relaxation and recreation. By slowly indoctrinating clients
into the Re-entry process tWo months prior to actual transfer
to the Re-entry dwelling, grmdual adjustment is made and, =~ .
finally, harmony with the environment achieved. :

Upon completion of  the -six month Re-entry phase of our pro-
gram, clients are promoted into Outpatient if they have suc~
cessfully achieved in the areas of full time employment, re-
conciliation financially (debts paid, etc.] a savings account
of some $400.00, at least one 3 cdredit course educationally,
high school diploma, Florida driver's license, six months of
drug abstinence at a formal club weekly, a social support
system, behavioral and attitude rating of (7) and above (on
a scale of one to ten) for the eight weeks prior to transfer
into the live~out/work~out phase of our program.,e

With movement into Outpatient, clients were more or less dis-
missed from responsibility to any specific criteria. Suddenly
clients who had been limited by program rules and regulations
and had developed their own behavioral perimeters found them-
selves without obligation to any procedures’mandating positive
per formance. Their value systems dissipated upon a deluging
of freedoms enticing negative compromise. The village confront=
ed this sjtuation by constructing a twelve month Out-patient
Phase calling for weekly individual and group counseling ses=
sions, presentations to Treatment and Re-entry residents on
their accomplishments as well as their setbacks, random
urinalysis, employer contact, home visitations and a network
of community based agencies communicating client stability

or instability. Groups are held in the homes of Outpatient
clients generating a relaxed atmosphere within which to dis-.
cuss emotional and behavioral problems. Family and couples
counseling sessions are supervised by Outpatient staff to
continue the process of social support interpersonally. gach

month clients report, individually, to their peer as well as.

‘. the Re~entry residents about their progress vocationally,
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educationally, socially and g}npncially) standing before
‘their brothers and sisters reinforcing their success
through validation empirically. upon completion of the ’
twelve month OCutpatient Phase, clients are graduated from
the program. ' .

Graduation from Village South is a once yearly event and
jncludes celebraties and .Bignitaries from the community
professionally, politically, and regiously, parents,
relatives, spouses, staff and residents. Some three hundred
"griends of the Village™ are a part of the consummation
therapeutically of some twenty-two months of self exploration
and change resulting in the completion of a program thst never
ends; Village South. :

Along with graduation of the adult from Village South is the
journey that the adolescent travels through in order to com-
plete the program. Thus the village South saw the need for
an Adolescent Component which addresses the special problems
of individusls between the age of twelve and twenty-one.
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History of the village South

" The village South was born in ‘March of 1972 with a ;roup
of approximately eight staff members. and fifty residents
bent on astablishing a rehabilitation program removed of
both philosophical and pelitical conflict.

® After dsparting i{n a rsnted truck from a rshabilitation
‘center they had been located at, they arrived at a church
in North Miami without any idea of how to care physically
or anvironmentally for the needs of some fifty ax-drug
addicts., Con'troversy was rampant due to tha atorybook

a like exit from the drug rahabilitation program they had
"split” from, with the madia adding a Hollywood lika atmoa-
phsre to tha saja. At ths time, the Villaga South was
without a name, a facility and also had no {idea of how or
whsra to locata its population. Byt they did have an identity
through their determination, persistenca, ehdurance and
unity.

Aftsr being svicted from the church in North Miami, residents
were hsrded into the homes and apartments of staff members
as our presidant, Matthsw Gissen, tried to secure the funds
necessary to’ purchase a facility. From the Jhoma-of the staff
their nomadic wanderings continued as thsy were now located
- in a summer camp facility in Homsstead, Florida and then fina-

11y finding an environmsnt {n which to begin organizing.
In order to survive, food was nacessary and a team of raai-
dents, headed by our Program Dirsctor, David Levine, acquisi-

’ tioned adiblss. For hygeine itams, the residenta in the pro-+
gram went to local farms in groups and volunteered to pick
peas, plant seeds and harvest corn for -a small sum.

o .

Therapeutically,,groups and pep rallies were held, criteria
was implamented, and a nama was presented- village South.

As nevar before, rasidents and staff members became dependent
on one another, fused together by all that this program was
founded on- love, security, and support. Nobbdy "split",
nobody complained for they were doing. it together, they were
doing something impossible, they vo‘% a beginning when those
about them predicted only an end.

. &

In July of 1972, the Village South moved into a new facility

at 5828 N.E. Miami Avenue. Although the facilities were

not in the bast of shape, although the grounds were overrun
i = oo —With weeds and. litter, -although ths residents had been used

to bettar accomodations in tha past, those first clients and

staff falt they had “truly found a home. Appearanca was hot

. important for rafuge was finally available. .

From that incrsdibla baginning, village South has furéﬂnr
evolved {nto a comprahensivs rshabilitation agency with a
foundation unlike any thsrapeutic organization in this s

. . country. Trrom its incsptidn as a rigid, inflaexibla drug »

' rehabilitation program it {s now a pliant, adaptable, com-

prehensive rahabilitation program incorporating {nto its
therapeutic rapertoira the philosophies and concepts that
only eight yaars of change can alicit.

This pioqrnm ia preeantly writing its own story but it has
as its author a baginning and that beginning gava birth to
me. . . hopefully to you as well. -

“

-
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HERE'S HELP, INC.

15100 N.W. 27th A -
Miami, Fleridn 33034 . Drug Preventien, Rehabilitatien & Educatien

Febtuary 23, 1982

'

The Honorable Paula Hawkine
U.S. Senate o ; .
Room 1327 \ . [}
Dirkson Office Buildin, \
i 2

Washington, D.C. 2051 ) N

Dear Senator Hawkine,

are sure that you are well awsre of tha epidemic
proporfions which drug abuse has raached in south Florida.

The Dade county ares, which we immadiately serve, is
receiving international media coverage aa a place where all ’
kinds of illicit drugs are readily available to juveniles on

the street.

At a time when,Drug'rehabilitation centera are critically
in need of additional funding, we would res ctfully solicit
your support in behalf of our youth. In 195{, Administrative
cute in funding allocations took more than one third of the
over-all budgets allocated for drug rehabilitative. funding.

The services which we provide could not be duplicated or
replaced for twice the cost involved were the State or Federal
agencies to attempt to shoulder this burden.

We know that ’K:u share our concern for those many thousands
in need of drug rehabilitative treatment, and we tespectfully

request that you bolster our efforts to reach drug abusers with
a setrvice which has the minimal financial impact on the American

taxpayer. : °

b Won't Kou pléase help us in our fight to redeem the lives
of our youth for a medningful drug free purpose?

s'inc}xely .

2 : ) — £ N
C Ll f7 2 ‘
. JoHN KROSS
/ Program Director

JK/rmb

ERIC | : B
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423 Northeast 43rd Strest
Boca Raton, Florida 33431

February 19, 1932

The Honorable Paula Hawkins
United States Senate

Roam 1327, Dirksen Office Building
Washington, D.C. 20510

Dear Senator Hawkins:

Pleaee include my letter for the record on your hearing entitled" Drugs in the
American School Gystem” which was held on January 27, 1982.

1 am writing to you on behalf of countless parente and children, who like my
self and my son have a future to look forward to bacause of the halp we are receiving
from a fine drug program in Miami, the Village South, which will have to cut back
on its sérvices unlese you and your colleagues join in opposition to massive cute in
federal aid for this cause.

Florida's young people have become a prime target for drug pushers and more
-not fewer programs are needed here - not only in the high school, but especially in
middle schools, and even elementary schools where children need to become aware
of the dangers and learn how to cope with their problems without becoming victims

of druge.

We need more treatment centers which provide hope and return these youth
to productive lives. Surely that is less oxpensive than jails which harden them and
retum them to the streets to take up lives of crime in the need to feed their avil
habit.

Village South is one such treatment program. My son, Greg, now a controlled
drug addict, has been living there for one year.and through therapy, counseling and
support, is now on the way to becoming a responsible citizen again.

Through the Parents Group at the Village South, family members learn to
adjust and cope with the problem. Not only does the client learn to become a whole
person again, but his loved ones learn of their past mistakes in dealing with problems,

We need your support, because only through freatment centers such as the
Village South will it be possible for children and adults to come out of the world of
darkness into the light of hope and encouraged to become self-sustaining men and
women who can enter into society again.

Do not let tax cuts xob us of this opportunity.-

Sincerely,

Bdawsdn ot

Barbara M. Rich

cc: Senator Ggrdon J. Humphrey
Senator Edward M. Kennedy

128
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425 Northeast 43rd Street
Boca Raton, Florida 33431

: February 19, 1982

Mre. Ronald Reagan -
The Whote House

1600 Pennsylvania Avenue

Washington, D.C. 20510

Dear Mrs. Reagan:

7 Those of us who have had drug problems in our families are very hopeful
when we ses that a woman in your position is taking an interest in this problam.

1 have a son, Greg, who has besn at the Village South, a drug treatment
center in Miami, for almost a year. When ha entered the Village he was a
very sick, worthless, and addicted person. With the love, compassion and
understanding that he has received from the staff at the Village he is bscoming
_a responsible citizen again. This has not been an sasy year for Greg or any of
the clients at the Village. Thay are learning a complately new life style.
This is also trus of the parents, We are learning through the Parents Growp
of the mistakes we made with pur children. We are also learning "tough love”
* which has probably saved many lives and will save many mare.

The epidemic of drug abuse in our countxy is very frightening. We need
to acquaint our young children with the hazards of drugs and help them cope
with their problems without becoming victims of the drug pushers who abound
in our area. ’ '

Without continued help from fedsral funds, many young lives will be lost.
It is far mozre expansive to deal with crime than it is to deal with the
rehabilitation of young people. Criminals retwmn to the streets to spread
mare Violance. The money spent to treat or prevent drug addiction in our youth
returns to us many fold in the taxes paid by successful men and women.

/). Please help us by encouraging federal support for these programs.

( Sincerely,

y s S w»%’@ L

L . _ Barbara M. Rich

ERIC
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Second Genesis. Inc. : o .

residential therapeutic communities b

v ; Marland/Vigena/Wasiwogion D C
INFORMATION SHEET

1204 Pnnce Street

Alexandna, Vegine 22314

(703) 683-4610
’

SECOND GENESIS, INC., s private, nonprofit,
Board of Dwectors residential treatment program, aspecislizes in
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providing rehabilitation trestment services to
drug abusers, offanders, and others who hava
sstabliehed noncoping, irresponsible lifeatylss.
Founded in 1969, Second Genesis operstea four
residential therspeutic communitiss serving
Mashington, D.C., Maryland, and virginia.
Treatment in a therspeutic community consists
of s highly struggured, thoroughly supervised,
twenty-four-hour r-day, chemical-free
residentisl program.

The Second Genesis program has oftan bean
dsacribed ss s achool which educatss people

who have never learned how to liva and feel
worthy without hirting themeslves and othars.
Second Ganeais helps peopls who have tried sgsin
and sgsin to get what thay wanted from 1ifs and
have continually defeated themselvaa. The
principal combines the basic snd universsl human
valuss of knowledge, love, honesty, and work with
ths dynamic instrument of intense group pressurs
in order to recognize and help correct the
personality defects which pravant peopls from
1ivi by thass valuesa. Thas rasults sras
rehabilitstion so that the individual may
resnter his or her community ss sn independant
and productive person.

The program is staffed by s multidisciplinary
professional team directed by Sidney shankman,
'M.D., a paychiatrist, and Alan M. Rochlin, ph.D.,
a clinical psychologist, and includas maater's
degree mental health and vocational rshabilitstion
counselors, learning dissbilities specislistas,
family tharapists, sddiction specisliasts snd s
research. Analyst. The facilities ara staffed by
individuals, many of whom have complsted trestmant
communities like Second Genesis and have gone on
for further treining as msntal haslth professionals.
This diveraity of apecislized akills permita tha
,aslective application of group therapy snd
individusl counssling, educstional snd vocstionsl
services.
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Generslly applicants sccspted are 14 through 4% years old, mals

snd female, without regsrd for rsce, ethnic group, or socioeconomic
status all striving for the common goal of self-rsliance at the
same time dlscovering love and sslf-rsspect in s family~like
setting.

Second Gencsis is funded primarily through contractual arrangements
with state and local governments. Each funding source has its

uniqus eligibility criteria. Supplementary funding is received

in the form of cash snd in-kind contributions from community based
organizations, churches, and individuals. >
Second Genesis' cost effectiveness might best bs judged by ths
following current comparisons: -

Psychiatric hospitalization sversge per diem cost -~ $300.00
Incarcsration avsrsgs per diem cost -- $40.00
S8econd Gsnesis per diem cost -~ $21.00

At the present tims, drug sddiction has hit epidemic proportions
particularly in ths northeastern corridor of our nation. Punding
sourcss have not been sbls to supplement e number of treatmsnt
beds funded to meet this emergency. Second Genesis is providing
treatment currently for seventeen individuals even though funding
is not provided rathsr than have them on s waiting list.

It is sstimated that Second Genesis will need to rsiss from
community contributions $325,000.00 in order to compensate for
underpayment of clisnt trestment costs and to provide for payments
of clisnts in treatmsnt who ars not funded by contrsct sourcss.

N
Contributions may be sent or sdditional information may be obtained
by contacting Second Gonesis, Inc., ¢/o Ms. Ruth Cavanagh, Community
Relations Coordinator, 1204 Prince Street, Alexandria, Virginis,
22314, phone number - (703) 683-4610. :

Second Genesis means a now peginning, a second chance, often the
last chance for many e referred by the courta, agencies,
professionals, schools, or who contact Second Geneais diroctly.
Anyone can make referrals by contacting ths Intaks Counsslors
located at the following addresses: Second Genesis, Inc., 4720
Montgomery Lane, Bethesda, Maryland, 20814, (301) 656-1545,
Monday-Priday, 9-5; or Second Gonssis, Inc., 1204 Princs Streset,
Alexandria, Virginia, 22314, (703) 6@3-4610, Monday-Priday, 9-5.
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A Deadly Drug’s:
Bizarre Aftermath

By Helen Cordes
Journal Staft Writer

The lhrecg’oung men would
have blended perfectly with a
crowd of their peers at a high
school or shopping mall.

Rob, with a steady gaze and a

: qui(-k(frin, seemed the type who
would be everybody's friend.
Brad, a gamin-faced biond with
a ready answer for everything,
might have been the class cut-
up. And the handsome, broad-
shouldered k. ric looked the jock,
lucky with the women,

Today, though, Eric shakes
uncontrollably as he talks of his
past two years of heavy PCP
use. In the past two months,
Brad has had two selzurcs, His
counselors at the Sccond (enesis
drug rehabilitation center near
Upper Marlboro blame them on
five years of PCP use. Rob, after
almost a year at Second enesis,
is still trying to shake the stran-

é\gjvlmld of PCP, the drug that left
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Last in a series

him so depressed he couldn’t
leave his house for weeks at a
time.

PCP is now the Washington
metro atea’s most popular drug.
Developed for use as an animal
tranquilizer, the powerful drug
commonly causes bizarre, often
violent behavior in its users.

Moreover, users inherit a dan-
gerous legacy. Since PCP re-
mains stored in the fatty tissues
of the body and the braln, flash-
backs, sparked by emotional
upsets, can occur many years
after the drug is taken.

See PCP, Page A7
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sYou know fhe scary tlnng © muses
Jimmy flendslchs, an encrgetic ex-heroin
adidt t who cuor hingies e fise nulro area
Seeund Genesis cente s, o what Daonderif
these kids wit ever get rid of Ue drug

He sivhs as he refleets un the thrve Gene-
iy residents o hace Past told theie storfes
it # s washied roan the Upter Marlooroe
Genesis gonmer “These are the kids > he
sard quietly. “These ar e samoeKids in vur
schuuls and i purstreets.””

Yelonly a fraction of ¢ Lundveds nf coun-
ty yuutie Hradgies: estiinagt 4y e Serious
problems s G can be helovd at aoresi-
dendal conter, o tro e

effective. Rub, Brad. and Liric fuot their real

names) are amhng tis rewdsnts at the v
1y s paly reside ptalfrng sexrmient cener

It's ey a v ate st e Kb was the peroon
he bkes-to rnvmber Tiw svtable 29 -
old recais his carly vears at a Prince
Georg's higk scheal in sa even lone flavored
with 3 Manyiundaceent.

“tu-ed to bereally it o and involved
inalolnf sports * Sahd tubo whose wayvy
brawn hate wuches the collar of his piad
flannyishirt

At the tme, B
diif rent douis
I was enriius,
the older kids."

Saon, he <itrked PCP sprinkted on a niard
Juana juint Uil abaut e a week It
Was el teret s el hesad ofen
munk . LING . .

“Thee 1 1ot was kind of lixe nu-
where ftn w numb, where yoy tould
blaek tut reahity, and be in your own hitlle
werld, " Red sana.

White Rob enjovid sekaml, his home life
sormetimes nade eseape altraclie. “From
the thme | was filie o the tine Fwas< 10, 1

was in and out nf fuster humes,” he rcniem-

TS

Calnyreserse wavesing, Rob trunne “l've
never bren tou tlose w iy pareits 1 ihink
sume problems started when miy muther
divnreed my real father. Ske'd well me vot to
goaat, and T wouid am vy ' he said

After about twe yo.rs of wiecdy 1CP nse,
cuspled with other drigs. Bab “pot intn a bisg
depression. 1 really didn't care sbuot L 1s.
I fust ‘vanted tn stay arpund the house and
not v out.”

Hob hos spant e fast 1 n.onths of his L
at Secund Geneds.
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B#ad was 11 when he fiest started regular
use of PCP. It was in plentitul supply at his
Beltinwre junlor higit schnal, and school
ofaeat, Brad believid, didn't have & hards

tiitude toward the drug.

When [ gut busted at schuul, they just
made me go o an vatpatient cllaiv for 2 likle
i he said. 1 went for twa werkends,
tended it was duing e & ol ol good,
a¥, they ped making e go,”
tte continucd heavy use of PCE. B
time, 1 Just wanled (b dn more and mare,”
Brad recalled. The strenpth of the drug,
thaugh, wauld frighte; .

“One tivae, [ got re, hih. ¥ eame home,
and all of a sudden, I started swinglng at my
grandmother," he said.

1tis grandparents. who have raised Brad,
cunfused aud anguished, And Brad
tzien o guil PCP and the uther drugs he
used, includme put, acid, and cocalne. But
when he gave them up, he found, he'd start
thinking uf hls problems, and give in agsin to
the escape,

Wwhen Brod cume to Second Genosis last
November, he had lnged five years of PCP
use. Siace camizng, he has had twa cpiteptie-
type sciaures.

w

Sometimes afer Eric had durc 2 lot of -
PCP, he wirld try- to tear dy n teees and try
o chinth up them, he recalis, "L wo kbl gelso
numh from the PCET LT had tumoee
around real-fast and make contact with my
bady with sometling,” he explaloacd.

Erlc, whn just turned 20, has an casy smlle
and expressive brown éves, Aljhoneh the
roant s wurm and sunny, the ri it side of his.
body shakes markedly.

His sentences are rushed and japied as he
remiemiors passing out fur sevetal hours in
the wnuds near Bis schuo! nfter smoking
PCP. " Most ol my fricnds just feft e b

Y

cavse [ wouldn't wike up, The nestday, §
told me, *hey man, you just about dicd yose
terday. o

- He wiuld want o stop, but coulidn’l resist
the thale af the droe, **Fwanbed s o0 the
lisnttafl the time,” Lricrecaile
standin aut gn his furisead

Alate starter with drogs panong h, peers,
Erie stid he didn't use drugs witil he was o
hlgh sehonl s eior. £iraw b ap a0 comingt
able Prinre Gear! veighvochomal, he said

g his head v
y paiens haye
me. They really live

Mootk
“}'s strange,’
and forcing the wordg oul.
always beea behin

Erlc's cosnsclors at Genesis Suv he has
passed oul twice In bis figst vionth al the
CORtAT.

o T

E
i

P

Some former PCP users wno ara tryiag to break the hubi!t at

Szcond Gennis,
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isers ‘“Dut of Cont
Users ‘Out ol O
: By Helen Cordes S ed schedule, and disciplinary measures are “de-
Joursal Seaff Writer sifncd not just te punish, but to learn from
Even at the height 6f her addiction to heroin, mistakes,” said counselor 1an MaeAgy.

Mary Fine said she was always aware of her Hendricks said his treatment formula has
actions. But with the kids on PCP she sees as resulted in success in the county, and in clinics in
director of the Sveond Genesis drug treatment other states. But he also added that a lack of
center near Upper Marlboro<Finn senses that©  research has “left a lot of unknowns' about PCP
they are often “totally out of comrol,” treatment.

“1knew a girl with PCP problems who used to . Althougth the drug has been growing in popular-
say she saw penple coming ot her in hoods. One “i’ since 1975, the drug is still considered
day she walked off a roof.”" Finn said. “Was this  relatively "ﬁ,“’- The drug is too new, for example,
“kid in control? 1dun't think se." . to have prolluced ex.addicts who return as dru

Similarly, Jimmy Hendricks, who oversees the  counselors, as have Hendricks, MacAgy, an
five area Second Genesis eenters, remembers *a Finn. Ex-addicts, Fiun said, often inspire a cru-
E:y who was going to cut up his mother with a clal trust indrug users. )

ttle.because he thousht she way the devil.” The sane lack of knowledge trips up users, and
. PCP. a powerful street drug that is currently the parents and teachers who are in daily obser-
the most popular drug in the county, often causes vation, -

‘*a complete break with reality,* explained “Kids stilt don'i tealize how dangerous it is,”
Hendricks. The phenomenon makes treatment sald MacAgy. Users are often atiracted by a
for PCP users a confusing, frustrating, and tedi-  sense of power and control that PCP creates.

ous task. : But the odd, rebellious, and violent behavior

Hendricks, a stubby, enthusiastic man who has ~ that is a byproduct of the drug is typically misdi.
won national recognition for his work in PCP agnosed as “gencral acting out,"” Finn said. Adds
treatment, belieses that treatment at residential Hendricks, “‘when a kid exhibits that behavior,
centers may provide the only effective help. it'susually marked down as ‘disruptive hehav-
“*The outpatient clinics arc at.a real disadvan. for.””
tage,” he said. “There's just not near enough Finn cited some of the deceptive earmarks of a
contact with the patient.” PCP user. “*The user tends o be very hostile,
~_Hendrieks sadly puints out that the Upper very rehellinus; cursing at mother, not answer-
Mariboro facility is the enly residential eenter ing, that kind of thing. They might respond with a
for both Prinee George's and Montgomery coun:  blank stare. They don’t-give a damn. and they
ties. [ts 68 residents, he said.represent’only o say itopenly,” she ssid.
small number of area youngsters who abuse Second Genesis counselors respond to these

4 ) systems with an individualized program of coun-

“It's too bad, because we're still eheaper than seling and ygroup encounter, While the treatient
-Jail, or placement in a restitution program, for , is leng and difficuit, it’s usually met with suc-
drirg offenders: he said of Second Genesis, cess, -
which is supported by federal, state, and county Second Genesis provides GED high school
funds. , equivalency training, and other vocational train-

FCP treatmoent at Second Genesis combines  -ing. Hendricks said, aading that several Sccond
counseling and peer encounters with exercise GenesisTesidents are atiending college,
and a resylated diet that adds ascorbic acid Relativos of Qeennd Genesis residents have
“supplerients and cranberry juiev and restricts also fornfed-a suppurt group calivd *Friends of
caffeinated drinks. :

= Al Second Gengsis r(-sif!v-r:!s conperate in tak- cuss tae cheets of PCPs and otier drug on tieir
ing respuisibil (s Tor much of tho conter’s da v to- children aod family. She said <oncerned parents

day workings, nclizing the conking, cleaning, could fearn more by calling 3681622, or calling
and some udnyastration. They fu'low s regulat-. * the Second Genesis speaker’s bureau at 653-1610.

Seeond Genesis,”” Fino said, and ga¥her to dis.

) —
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The use of PCP 10 on the
rise in Prince George's Coun-

ly.

That is e bebe! af Thermss
M. Heowne, Jr , chairman of
the Caunty 3 Adictions Adwv-
sory Council and cemputer
acienist for  Planmng He-
search  Cerporalion,
Jareny Hendricks, vics
cheirman of the Advisory
Council and segrienal directar
of Secand Genens, Inc. R

Browiw neses Lhat thire has
been s rcent IKTEAW in the
nusmber of arTests of persons
chasged with manufactunng
the drug | the counly.

rcr tunes have been
tound in Temple Huls, Dimnict
Heights and Laure) he aad. .

**From Wns increascd man-
ufacturing of PCP, onc can
assume thel Lhere 18 nuw Kore
PCP on the streets,”” Jrowne

odded.

Infarmation " from s kel
sulpstiont ¢ceunseling pro-
grum in 1he County shews Lhat
almest 20 percend of its cases
are primary PCP users, e
emphasied. Statistics from &
large, resviential prigaam in
the Ceunty wndicates 79 per-
cont of the paticnts ers slse
primasy PCP uvers.

Jrowme mud’ Uny jncrasd
use of PCL comnes sftrg sever-
al yeurs uf what sppeared o
ba s tapenng; ol of use of the
drug in the County.

ile noted thul in 3G the
Federal Drug  Enforcement
Administeation cslled the
Wastungton ares “the ICP

copstal of the countsy ' By .

1979, it harl droppod W thrd

BBrowna beleves theru may
he an upswing in the use of
PCP during; the curenl reces-
2100 because ik 1y v ol Lhe
chespast drugs o manulec-
ture and buy. 1L aiso e sels-
tively easy to meka.”*

The reeccurrencs of POP 18

frghterung W Urowne and

Hondricks, That i because of
the leng-range offects of the
drug on users.

“hvidence owbicales that
{lus substupce 19 chemwslly,
pharmsacolngically snd bas-
haviorally distinet from uther
claswes of poychositne com-
emnwls mrad v mfanitdy wesy
Uian 15D, Hrowne says

Wih chromc use of PCP -
throe ar more tumes 3 week for
2 nuotmn of six manthy - 1t

[erorted

encang. In some studses it was

found PCP users were taking
heroun as 8 nicthod of reduc-
ing the withdruwal symjome
of PCP sbuse.

PCP romaina in the uscr’s
system conndorably lonjrer
than any other known drug,
Hendricks sud, sdding, ne
macication has totally re-
versed the clfvcts of PCP.

Anether fearful aspect of
PCP e ks shulity ts produce &
schoephrenx fonn of  pyy-
chosss fullowiiyg Wae whach can
tnst (rems four W sis weeks o

““The paychosis is charnc-
wriscd by the uppearance of
the cardinal e of schuzo-
phrerua and unprodictable ap-
grosave or withdrawal bohav-

0r. »
“PCP has no cqual ¥ ia
stulity te preduce briel pay-
chosis wearly indist
fram schisephrenia,
Hrowne stated
1rawne and }Hendricks have
Sound that ""YCP users display
depressien, srotalion, hostl-
uy and bellyvrence and sro
wiable to cope with 1hu de-
mands_and expecistions of
structured, intensive therapy
regimen

Uhin resolta 1n PCP patients

it buingg shle (o Lake part 0
standurd _rpbeinlitation  pro-

s ,
Dot Jendrks amt Rrowne

have found that such petients
*‘enn parterpate in thesupy 1f
special lrmniny iy conducied
fur stall and nther clients lo
nwnhu them swase uf (lic spes
cui nevds of PCP ehents
Hecreation and a sjuectad diet
10 meisholize I'CP oul of the
clent’s sysicin were fuund 0
be 8 heneficial therapeute
ool 1 e enaduivcd that »
peugram ol suppoet and ren-
forcement must he provided
witlun the trestnwnl setling.

Second Genesim foaml m
trentng PUP patiaits Lthat as
the cllects of the drug wore
off, patients bucame moro
awwe of the lrealment gro-
prom and lhe domends o
therm L participute. .

They found that during
rvaiment, chents often be-
comse inpatient for resulls and
upral when they thid nat ne
spond even though off the
drug

Hendricks emmphasued Lhat
W s Uwrapestee o help e
chvnl understand that any

134
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sral yoarw unll the peren
aoun  feely normal’’ after
discoatinuing use of the drur,
Tirowne saul

During this perid Lhe per-
sen may ewhibit speech prob-
_lema, mémory loss, Lhinking
dixerders, puorsonality chane
£ou, anxicly, severe depres-
non, swedd and bonnonkal
tendencice, sccording Lo Hen-

_dncks,

He sud PCP pmuniy sf.
ficty the “hepinr” or “uile
grstion™ seniers in the braun
and has been d dto

spwch problimi sy nust ikely
2 PCPrelatest enent and watt
usually reverse aisell et
Inawe

“Loved ones of 3 pauent
cither find 1t hard 10 accept o
sre unawrre »f Wne fact 1k
a patient 19 off
elfecta e amd
ab emth b
soveral years Wllowing Cia-
comtinued use fof * thie sub.
stance,”’ they adited The v
bst eight steps Lhal can In
taken to sid PCP pationts:

increase scnsilivily o sensa-
Lone such as lighl snd sound,
1 udne affexts the conters that
cuntrol emulinal cxpression,
mﬂ‘*“ ‘i‘h‘-
and meter mavement,

“ Browns and  llendncks
found that the sverage sbuser
{n their populutn siudy used
PCP aimost dully for five or
six years. It is an sccepred
fact that » lypical ‘strect
dose’" s estimatrd st § mulli-

1L Allp should have
a referral Dile; a ranpe of
servieen tst o e Ine ksl
Cop 3 within the comuniinity
which can provide aasistance
te° service warkérs  having
problers with PUI ahuars
2. Tiwre ss a msd for
sstabhstung an exclusive pro-
gram fur Lhe Lreatment of I'CP
sbusers 10 more adouately
addreny their umege s,
3, There shauld b cxpers.
tiom and ceordination belween

grame, ding to Hend-

Ho said that "we are al
romdy familiar with the im-
mediate effects of PCP caused
by such desage.

“{lis 8 proven Iact that ever
scveral manitha of chronic 1FCP
use, the uscr's intake w-
cresses s 200 mx. or more
per day. The aficr-cffcets as-
seciated with llus - lype of
consuaption is nand-boy-
gling.™ '

Nondricks said “perhaps
one 1of the most remarkahle
differences belwenn Lhose
who have used 'UP and those
who have never used it is the
grester involvement of PCP

agenaies and pn-
vale cilwens »o thal evervone
may bearn sbout the probilenis
of I'CY sbuse.

“4, All mentad health, drug
abuse treatment, enmmal jus-
lice, proychiatng, nuthical amd
alucationad agenews  slruhl
be provided Wrwmngz in tne
latest PCP technn
cemingg treatnent, dht
detaaiwation, vie

5. Al bram hees of the imedin
should be providasl wath uje
to-date information on ICP
and relaled serices  Anoane
formed public is the buost
weapon wwan wesdhng nff an
epdemic

6. 11 » prevention effort is 1o

wn,

'« trews which they are experi-

~

3

wners in poly-drug alwse. ' wirk belee the onat nf 8

This 1a bocause PCP usern  problem with PCP. lowhes,

. niay bo b g other drugs ly g . sn

in an offort 10 reduce the chevis must be educated on
peychic and emotional dis- the problens of PC)* sbuse

7 Bamg medical, phycho-

¢ e ) .
* logieal, and treatment infoe-
mation sboul PCP should Lo

included dunngt

vy

wsrvie |

ainmyg for Lreutimwnl pursons

»el.
The Addictions
Counctd of Pome

County shoulil etn
Ju dhswny

Spectal Tusk Yorce

wnate the latest e
concesned.

L o all

Advisory
Ginirpee’s
wh »

wnforma-

THE ENquikes- GAzeTle /-JI:’_:‘

hits buowts oy ot That 1L inay
require seural weeks tn sove

sxisting memcry loss er
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Sg Profits Lure
~ Makers of Dru

By Stephen Deene
Journsl Seatt writer

‘mellled‘al drug PCP is easlly
preduced and tremendously
profitable. There's always the
danger of arrest, but that's a
risk wmany unscrupulous en
lrerr.-neur\ Inthe area appar-
ently are willing to take.

In 1978, the lederal Drug En.
forcement Adminiatration
labeled the Washington metro-

litan aren the PCP capital of

he country. Today, sald DEA
wokumln David Hoover, the
ashington area atill ranks
among the loﬁ three cities {n
production of the mood-aitering
drug, along with Detroit and Los
Angeles. -
ithin the Washington area,

. Sccond Inaseries

"tremendous, tremendous profit
marging,” Leo aaid.in a rccem
interview. A chemist, fer in.
stance, can convert $500 worth of

- raw malerials into 30 pounds of

the finished PCP 5gm‘lucl. with a
street vafue of $150,000.

PCP, moreover, Is eaay to
make. All it takes, say Leo and
other law enfercement officials,
13 a high schosl knowledge of

Prince George's County heads
the Jist of places where PCP |y
made and consumed.

"Prince George's seems to
have more‘rreon (PCP) than
other jurisdictions” guch as
Montgomery Counl( and loca-
tions tn northern Virginla, ac.
cording to L1 Anthony A. Leo,
head of the County Pollce vice
squad

PCF Is big business, involving

istry and "a few bottles
and a few buckets.” The gimple
formula has beea pnbllle tn
several altornative newspapers,
Hoover sald.

The chemicals needed te pro-
duce PCP, such as ether, are
fairly cheap. And they are
plentiful in the Washington area,
since a farge number of legiti.
mate chemical compenics are
lncated here, In fact, said Hoov-

Sea PCP, Page A

Je roy

oo Wen e
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PCP: Simple Formula

Frem Page Al
er, ample supplics may account
for the prevalence of PCP in the

area.
Plperidine, the fmmediate
precursor of the dru{. is the
most expensive ingredient, sell-
ing on the blach market for
$1,500 lrlnl, The same ingredi-
ent I« sold by iegitimate pharma.
ceutical companies for only $60 a
t

nt.

But PCP manufacturers
prefer to pay the black market
price because arccent law re-
stricts legitimate sales of piperi
dine an ro(l‘ulru coinpanics lo
supply the DEA with iists of cus-
tomers

The lucrstive business of
making PCP has its danders —
dangers which can prove fatal
Drug ripoffs and fig£hts smnng
dealers over turl muke vivicnce
an ever-present risk. And the
manufacture of the drug — sl
though within the reach of a high
school cheniist — can jead to
explovion and death.

That is what happened last
July 2, when two brothers died In
an explosion at their mother's |
Cheverly.home. The mothor was
out of town when her two sons —
Ronnie D. Sprouse, 24, of Riva
and Ray W. Sprouse Jr , 38, of
Kentiand — were "cooking," or
preparing PCP. As they added
ether to the mixture, the volatile
chemical ignited, causing an
explosion that killed the brothers
instantly and did $30,000 damage
to the dwelling.

PCP producers alsa face the
danger of getting cmgm. Last

ear County Police raided seven

CP labs throughout the caunty,
arreating 42 persons and seizing
smounts of PCP with an estimat.
ed street value of $391.000. All 42
suspects are still awaiting trial.

he Phantom moiorcycle
fln:. most of whose membery
ive in the county, were a major
target of the County Police vice
aquad. A four-month investiga-
tlon Involving the uve of a wire-

. tap culminated fast Aux. 27 at 7

p.m. when rollce raided 10 ad-
dresses, Including the Phantem
clubhouse at 1113 Clovis Ave In
Bradbury Helghts. Raw ingredl-
ent§iised tu make PCI’, along
with the finished product. other
illegal drugs and a large number
of rifles, shotguns lnd‘.hnnduunn
werc seized In the raids. Twenty
persons were taken Into custody,
and fater arrests that vear
brought the-total of arrested
Phantoms to 30.

Last year's biggest |ab raid
took place Nov. 10 at a residence
at 3707 Tuckerman St. in River-
dale. Police selzed lart(e
amounts of PCP, from its initial
stages of production to the fin-
Ished product, worth a strect-
value of $175,000. Quantities of
cocalne and more than $1,5)9 in
cash were also confiscated. Five
persohs werc arrested.

Police and drug counselors
say il is impossible t, estimate
the total number of PCI* produc-
©rs oF users .

Thursday The Users
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County Council

Information: Don Eirsel Phona: $32-3718

FOR INMEDIATE RELEASE: January 18, 19382

The uss of PCP {s on tha rise in Princa Gsorgs's
County.

That iz the belief of Thomac M. Prowne, Jr., chelrzan
of tha County's Addictions Advisory Council snd computar
scientist for Planning Research Corbornfion. and Jamas B,
Handricks, vics chairman of the Advi;ory Council and regionsl
director of Sscond Gsnasis, Inc.

Browna notes that there has been a racant increase in
the numbar of arrests of persons charged with msnufacturing
the drug in the county.

pCp laboratorias have been found in Laurel, Tample Hills
and District Heights, he says.

"From this increassd msnufacturing of PCP, one can assume
rhat there is now more PCP oﬁ ;he struu:s;'ncc3rding to Browne.

Information from s local outpatisnt counseling program
in thacounty shows that slmost 20 percant of the clients are
now primary PCP usars, hs emphasizes. Statistics from s

“ylarge, residentisl program in th§ County indicates 29 percent
of the clients are slso primary PCP users.

Browne says this increased u;u of PCP comes after
several vears of what nppunrc& to be a tapering off of use
of the drug in the Countv.

He notes that in 1976 the Federal Drug Enforcemen:
\dministration called the Washinyton area "the PCP cap:tol
of the ceuntrv.” Bv 1973, it had dropped to third place.

irowne believes :there mav be an unswiny in the use of

> P Jurind the -urrant recsysion because it is one of the

nmQROoOmQ mMOZ=0Y

Cqeapr¢- Iruse to manufacture and buv. It aleo i3 relativelv
s ¢y aake ) e ~1‘|
te e uprer e F£ 007 gy friphrening 19 3rowne and
R Ao fL e S3th o ten .rorelT WOrL naio
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Page 2
News Relemse
PCcP

Januery 18, 1982

"Evidence indicates that this substence is chemically, phsrme.

cologicelly and behaviorally distinct from other clesses of

’ psychoactive compounds and {s infinitely worse than LSO,” Browne

- says.

With chronic use of PCP .- three or more times a week for a
minimum of six months - it has been reported that lg nay rcquir;
severel weeks to severel years until the person again feels
‘normal’ efter discontinuing use of the drug,” Browne Yays.

During -this period the person may exhibit speech problems,
memoTY loss, thinking disorders, psrsonality changes, anxiety,
severs dopros:lon. suicidal and homicidal tendencies end periods
of smnesis, according to Hendricks.

He says PCP primarily affects the "higher" or “integrationt
centers in the brain and has been demonstrated to incrieass

“sensitivity to sensations such as light and sound. It elso

affects the centets thet control emotional expression, aggression,
vision, hearing and motor movement.

Brown and Hendricks lounq that the average ;bulor‘ln thelr
populstion study used PCP almost dally fo} five or six years. [t
is an accepted fact that a typical “"street dose” i3 estimated st
S miligrsms, sccording to Hendricks.

He says that "we are elready fsmilier wlt@ the {mmediete
effects of PCP caused by such dosage.

"It is a proven fsct that ovo; ‘several months of chronic PCP
use, tho user’'s intske incresses to 200 mg or more per day. The
T efter offects assoclieted with this type of consumption is mind-

bolalxﬂg," according to Hendricks and Browne.

v ’ Hendricks says "perheps one of the most remarkable differences

between those who have used PCP end those who have no;or used it is

the greater involvement of PCP users in polydrug abuse.”

- This 1is because PCP users may be ingesting other drugs in en
effort to reduce the psychic and emotional distress which they are
experiencing. In some studies it was found PCP users were taking
heroin 3s a nethod of reducing the withdrawal symptoms of PCP abuse.

The long term affects of PCP are frightening, savs Hendricks.

(more) °
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News Release
rcp

January 18, 1982

PCP remeins in the user‘s systes considerable longer than
any other known drug, he says, adding, no medication has totally
reversed the effects of ,PCP.

Another fearful aspect of PCP is its ability to produce s
achizophreniforms psychosia following use which can reafat from
four to six weeks or longer. '

»This paychosia i3 charscterized %y the sppearance of the cardinal
signs of schizophrenia and unpredictabls aggressive or withdrawal
behavior.

»PCP. has no equal in its ability to produce drief psychosis nearly
{ndistinguishable fros schizophrenia according to noted PCP authorities,
Browne says.

Yo date the treatment of PCP clienta in drug programs “has
received limited attention,” Hendricks notes.

Browne 8nd Hendricks have found that “PCP users d‘lplly
depression, agitation, hontlll:yilnd belligerence and are unable to
cope with the desmands and expectations of structered, fntensive
therapy regimen.” . ‘

This results in $CP patients not being able to take part in
standard rehabilitation programs.

But Hendricks and Browne have found that such patients “can
participate in therapy if special training s coﬁduct.d for

staff and other clients to make thes aware of the special needs of

.PCP clients. Recreation and a ;poclll diet to metabolize PCP out

of the client’'s systea were found to be s beneficial therapeutic _
tool.” It is emphasized that a progras of support and reinforcesent
most be provided within the treatsent setting.

Second Genesis found\in treating PCP patients that as the
effects of the drug wore off, petients became more aware of the
treatment progren end the demands on fhes to participate.

Thev found that during treataent clients often become impatient
for results anu -Pret when thev did not respond even though off the
drug.

o
(more)
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Page 4

News Release

[ 4% 4

Janusry 18, 1982 : -

‘Hendricks tlphtflzt;'!hlz it is therapeutic to help & client
understand that any existing memory lose or speech problem is
most likely ¢ PCP related -;:pz and will usually reverse itself
over time. - .

"Loved ones of a patlent either find it hard ¢o accept or are,
unaware of the faict that even though a patient is off PCP ’!h-
sfter-effects can and do last from !:vtrll sonths to several years
following discontinued use of this |ubl!an..ﬁ they note.

The two list eight steps that can be taken to aid PCP patients:
1. All programs should have a referral file; a range of services.
exist or cen be developed within the community which can provide
assistence to service workers having problems with PCP abusers.

I, There i3 a need for establishing an exclusive program for the
treatment of PCP abusers to more adequately address their unique

needs.

3. There should be cooperation and coordinatipon between community

‘altncl'l and private citizens so that sveryone may learn asbout the

problems of PCP abuse,

4. All mental health, drug abuse treatment, criminal justice,
psychistric, medicel and educational agencies should be provided
training in the latest PCP z-chnlqu-i concerning treatment, d-zeczlon:f
detoxification, setc.

S All branches of the media should be provided with up-to-date
inforpation on PCP and ‘related services. 4An informed public is our
best weapon towards warding off an spidemic.

6. 1f a prevention effort is to work before the onset of a probles
with PCP, families, community agencies., and |chools must be educated

on the problems of PCP abuss.

o Basic medical, phychological. and treatment information about PCP
should be included during eny inservice :ttlnlnz for treatment
péruonnel,

8. The addictions \dvisorv Council of Prince George’s Countv should
establish a Gp-c;al Task Force to disseminete the latest PCP

intoraation to all concorned.
(<]
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‘System’ conducted on January 2

Wnited Dlates Denate

COMMITTER ON LABSR ANS'
AN

WABHINGTEN, 9.0, W81

* January 29, 1982
I'd

o

The Honorabla Pauls Hawkins
Chairman
Subcommittaa on Invastigations
and Genaral Oversight
Room %230, Dirksen Senste Offica Bldg.
Washington, D.C. 20510 .

Desar Madame Chairman:

Thenk you for including my stetement in the racord of the
Subcommittea's hearing on "Dru; Abg;;'In The American School
, 1982

In eddition to my statement, I would very much appraciata
the inclusiol of thras additional documents in tha hearing
racord. They are: (1) e rago t by the National Institute on
Dru% Abuse on the Decembar 951 Community Correspondents Group
Conferenca hald in Atlanta, Ga.: (2) & facent report: praparad
by the Detroit, Michigan, Buraau of Substance Abusa; and (3) & -
report to Subcommittae Minority aeteff from tha Division of
Substence Abuse Sarvices of the New York State Office of Alco-
holism and Substance Abusa. .

Thank you for yobr assistance in this matter.

with bast regards,

Edward M. Kennduy

Enclosures: three
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A Report From The Nations! Institute On Drug Abusa

Mmﬁqmnwmmmu'wmmmummml
Community Cmqmcrmp Conferenoe held in Atlanta, Georgla.

Heroln continues to be the le ' New -
[ nynndm:dﬂ va?r&ugnbmprobmmorudby oW

Ts_and sbuse continues in Chioago, St. Louls, Buffalo, New
!m__%nmwm. Indicators in Minnespolis, end
Dallss polmt to T Blues: sbuse emerging in  gitles.

Miami andSesttle repart Inoressing problems with cooaine.

dugps are eausing problems in Chioago, 8t. Louls,
Phoenix, and Beattls, particularly among youth.

of 18D a3 ereated public conoern in Ghicago, Seattle,

when parents ciroulated letters warning

wmuimmmmmmuwmn. These rumors
turned out to be without substance, however. :

%mmmmhwmmm.m

meﬂudonzggmnomaatommhvmdkm
support to programs to blook grants.

”
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1. HEROIN ABUSK CONTINUES TO BE A MAJOR PROBLEM IN NEW YORK
» D.C.

Pive indicators (heroln relsted overdose deaths, haroin emergency
treatment admissiors for primery heroin abuse, heroin price and
treatment population profiles) reflected the level of heroin abuse

CCQG cities, with New York City and Washington, D.C. reporting dramatic changes
in each category.

(1)  Heroin Overdose Dclthl Increased In Six Clti!

New York City experienced a 13 perasnt increass in overdose deaths due to
Intravenous nareoctism between 1830 and 1881, while heroin overdoss deaths
olimbed from €2 in all of 1380 to $4 es of September 1981 in W

: %‘a‘m o reparted tires heroln overdoss deaths. Boston our

Jd desths in 1830 and two the fiest six months of 1981,

mgg-m-ummamm eategary during the last two
x month periods. Sen reported a dight continuing incresss aring
1930 and the first (173 and 80 respectively) after a decline in
1979 to 143 deaths. St. Louis, New Miami, and Seattle repocted
only one hercin related death in
remained stable st two or thwee.
related deaths seeompanied by an inersase

(D  Heroln Emergensy Room Mentions Flugtwsted From City Ta City

WMM[’A“WHMMMHM!&
wi eases reported (18 perosnt of all emergency room csses in
the city), representing sm §3 percent inerease over 1980 figures. New York
(o rxctda»pmthmhh«dnmmﬂmbomm 9

, with an 18 perosnt increase between 1880 and 1981. San Diego heroin
mentiors deersased through the first half of 1880, nave slightly
{noressed Aring the sscond half of that yesar and continue to incresss into
the first six months of 1881. Los e reported a 67 percent Increase
aring the last two half year nmpnucmnrolu

Boston heroln emergenay room mentlons Inaressed sharply from 200
gmoﬁamdmmml.wm-uwnwumm
City Hospital (the piblie facflity) over 1880 figures. Buffalo reported a rise
in emergensy room heroln mentions during 1980 and the lirst quarter of
l!ll.butmndoutnndomaﬂmthonomdqmwof 1981, Con-
v-:o , Philadeiphia, San Prancisco, and Phoenix reported declines during
early .

(3)  Treatment Admisslons For Primary Heroln Abuse Are Impacted By
uts B

7
New Yotk City reported that 97 percent of the city’s treatment siots are
/ utllized and suburban treatment facilities are at 100 percent capacity. The
28

,000 methadone maintenance slots are filled and currently thare are 1,000
people on the waiting list. The prison detoxification population for primary,

hercin has decreased to 12 parcent in 1981 from 34 percent in 1980.

.
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1‘_'%%_D.%'i'nmuuaawilth'. Ust for the flest time in August of
. ng summer the police departmment conduated major raids Ia
the eopping sress in an effort to disrupt the heroln trade. This may have

s o mmmmw,mormumwummmm
now total 79 peroent of the treatment admissions.

funding rolibasks. As of July, treatment funde had desrsased by 28 peroent,
mmnmbummhnwm

The 1961 mmmmwﬂﬁumhn J
confounded by the system’s being % sapasity, -“ ':

wmm. an [nevesss in heroin prrity (from 3.9 -peresnt In’
peresnt l'll)wlhudquondn.grlmlnpﬂoopcmnn-

(from $3.00 n 1971 to between $1.47 and $1.87 in 1881). Mew York
[of purity levels varied from 3 peresnt pure in Herlera to as high as [
on the Lower Rast Side. The St. Mexiean brown purity level
peroent ng past year. Other cities
wmmql«.hm-mxm-ﬂtmﬂtmmMm
ranging from $1.43 to $5.29 per pure mlligram.

.

@) t ) Refl e C

In Wesh D.C., New Orjears, Boston, and Mew York City black males
wmﬁ"n_ﬁi’ m%ﬁa population. r averags age was Iy

the late 208 or early 30w. Wuhg% D.C. and New York City are admit-
ting more females to treatment. eities saw more males in

i
i
2
:

and choose snorting as an | amrwumwodtoﬂn.!mcu«m.n
percent of whom inject n up to thres times daily.
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2. 'PSAAND‘ BLUES PROBLEMS CONTINUED IN THE CENTRAL UNITED

13
~

New Orleahs, Chicago, and St. Louis contimued to report that T's and Blues present

mejor problems In their cities. During this reporting period, Minneapolis, Detrolt,
and Dallts mentioned the smergence of the drug combination for the irst time.
s and Blues were also reported as abuse problems in Buffalo, New Jersey, and

. Philadelphia.

()  Composition Of The Combinetion Varies From Region To Reglon
T's and Blues sre comprised of pentazocine (Talwin) and pyribenzamine

(tripelermamine) in Chie St. Lg% New Orleans, and Dailas. The "Blues"”
(pyribenzamine) in St. Lou% are 50 mililgram ‘tablets, although purple tablets

containing 100 millfgrams are also availsble. St. Louis also reports that 3ee

syrlngc- containing the pre-mixed combination are being sold on the streets
for $3 to $12. : . ' o

In Minneapolis, the Talwin is being mixed with seconal, stelazine, Preludin or
amy alo, New J%, and Phila users prefer to mix their
Talwin with benadry me Philad users prefer Talwin combined with
benadryl and methylphenidate (Ritalin), or use a combination of Ritalin and
pentazocine, called "Rits and T's.”

2) Two Cities Reported T's And Blues Related Deaths

Deaths in St. Louis in which the presence of T's and Blues was detected have
been incressing steadily since 1977 from four to six in 1976 to 18 in 1979 to
22 in 1980. Dwring the first six months of 1981, 14 deaths have occurred, six
of which involved injections of T's and Blues. The remainder were homi-
cides. Of the 64 deaths reported during the five period, Talwin alone
was reparted as being responsible for five deaths, however, it has been s

gested that this may be because pyribenzamine is very difficult to detect),
tripelennamine alone was responsible for one deeth, and the two drugs in
combination were found in the rest of the cases. Eight of the toxicology
reports also contained Valium and 29 reported ethancl present. Only one of

the 84 deaths was reported in St. Louis County. All of the others were from -

the inner city.

Detroit reported three T's and Blues deaths in 1981, and 17 overdoses, and
nine homicides with T's and Blues present during 1980. Two of the 1980
deaths were due to Talwin alone. :

(3) T's And Blues Appear To Be Lieitly Manufactured And Stolen From
) Pharmacies i ]

Louisiana has recently rescheduled Talwin from Schedule IV to Schedule I
over mamufacturer objections. "Sets" (one of each tablet) are sold in New
Orleans for between $10 and $20.

R
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The DEA reported that St. Louis may be a major distribution center for T's
and Blues in the midwest. In 1980, 400,460 Talwin and 453,000 pyribenz~
amine tablets were missing from pharmacies. Detroit pharmacy audits
revealed that 100,545 Talwin tablets were unaccounted for. .

(4)  St. Louis And Chicago Treatment Populations Are Preédominantly
Black '

An llincis treatment policy change now allow T's and Blues sbusers to enter
methadone treatment. The population is evenly divided among males and
females, 87 percent black, younger and less well educated than heroln-
abusers, and primarily Medicaid reimbursed. )

The St. Louis treatment population is comprised of inner city blacks with an
¢

aversge age of 28 yaars.
COCAINE IS EMERGING AS A MAJOR DRUG ABUSE PROBLEM .

Mismi and Seattis reported that cocaina is the major drug problem“'fln ‘v.heir

cities. Sev other cities reported increases in cocaine related deaths, em

gency room mentions, treatment admissions, and price and purity data. :

() Five Cities Reported Increased Cocaine Related Deaths

Cocaine related overdose desths rose from ona in 1980 to three during the
first six months of 1981 in Minnespolis. ttle noted an increase from two
deaths due to cocaine in 1980 to 1i the first ten months of 1981.
Four of the five were from injections and two also contained methadone in
the toxicology reports. In Miami, cocaine was present in 78 percant of
homicide victims, and the cocaine related death rate for 1981 Is féur times . -
highee than the previous five year average. Eight cocaine overdoss deaths
were reported in A_-%, Colorado In 1980. New York City medical examiner
reports for cocaine in 1950 climbed by 197 percent over 1979 figures (from
34 to 101 deaths). This statistic is supported by a 55 percent increase in’
cocaine arrests in New York City. :

(2 Emergency Room Mentions Are Increasing

Detroit reported a significant rise in emergency room mentions and Ssn
Diego's mentions continued & foyr year steady upward trend. Although the
numbers are small, Buffalo emergency room mentions have doubled between
1980 and 1981. Phoenix emergency room mentions climbed from 13 during
the second half of 1980 to 33 during the first half of 1981, Seattle's cocaine
mentions averaged 20 per quarter, nearly dowle the heroin reports. Wash-
ton, D.C. cocaine mentions incressed by 24 percent between 1980 and
981. Boston reported increases from 41 mentions in the first half of 1980
to 81 in the second half of that year to 84 during the first half of 1981.

(3)  Cocaine I Increasingly Listed As The Reason For Entering Treatment

Minneapolis and Dallas reported steady increases in proportions of clients
entering treatment. During the last six months, one of five clients entering:
treatment in Colorado listed cocaine as their primary drug of abuse, and

*
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cocaine is responsible for 10 percent of the total treatment population. Sim-
flarly, cocaine was responsible for nearly 20 percent of all treatment admis-
sions in San Diego, where the proportion of cocaine clients in treatment
dowbled between 1979 and IOBO.Q%M? reported that 45 peccent of
treatment admissions for "other were for cocaine. In San Francisco

the proportion of cocaine sbusers In the trutmcntpoptnndmmdmﬁ.d
from 5.5 percent In 1930 to 12 percent in 1981. Ssattie cocaine treatment
admissions rose to 91 during the first 10 months of 1981 from 90 for ell of
1980. Half of the clients entering treatment in Washington, D.C. report

use.
\

(4) Cocaine Prics And Pirity Levels Vary

Retail eocnln.:.ﬂ‘lc- range from $100 to $150 per gram across the country,
but purity 1 vary from 132 percent to 40 percent. Confiscations have
been made of 75 percent to 88.8 percent pure cocaine in Buffalo and
pﬂ'%ﬂh_ respectivaly. The most common diluents are ine,

: , and amphetamines. - .

4 OTHER DRUGS OF ABUSE WERE REPORTED

Although heroin, T's and Blues, and cocaine dominated the reports, several other
drugs were highlighted. ‘ .

()" Look Alike Drugs Are Attracting More Attention

These drugs, which contain mostly caffeine, ephedrine, and phenylpro-
panolamine, are widaly available throughout the country either over the
counter or via mafl order. They become dangerous when they are sold as
“speed” on the strests. The Illinols legislature is conducting hearings on Jook
allkes. Use in St. %h is wiquitous. In Minneapolis look alike seizures by
law snforcement in 1991 outnumbered amphetamines by a margin of two to
one., In three shops opanly sell only look alike drugs. In Seattle,
police are 100k alilces are baing s0ld as amphetamines. -

() Pour Cities Indications Of Incressed Amp'naumine Use

Emergency room mentions and treatment admissions rose in Phoenix; San
Diexo reported a 50 percent increase in treatment admissions; San Francfsco

an incresse from 5 percent of the total treatment population In
1980 to 7.5 percent of the same category In 1981; and Philadelphia reported
that 25 percent of all treatment admissions were for miﬁeﬁmﬁu with &
large incresse in the 17 to 21 age group.

(3)  Dilaudid Continues To Be A Popular Heroin Substitute

Dilaudid is the narcotic of choice in St. Louis Coumty. Tsblets sell for $40 to
$50 eagh. New Orl reports that Dilaudid is often mixed with heroin and
the price is $40 to E% per tablet. Atlanta ranks fourth in DAWN mentions
for Dilaudid. Newark addicts pay $10 for a 4 milligram tablet, and treat-
ment agencies and street people report the appearance .of 8 milligram
tablets manmufactured overseas. Dilaudid’s use as a heroin substitute in
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Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




ERIC

PR A v et Provided by ERic

b 149

o

) %ﬂﬂnﬁ {8 deolining, but 1981 emergancy room mentions incressed
percent

over 1980. Detroit also saw incressing Dilaudid esmergency
room mentions.

(4)  Methagualone Mentions Continue In CCG Cities

s:.bmhuportodmtnncnmamquﬂomhmotmomatrndnynnn-
abie and popular drugs in the metropolitan ares. Methagualond is the fourth
most often conflseated drug by law enforcement sgenciss in New Orleans.
Miami reported 13 automobile sccident deaths dus to the drug.

TEn second nationally in DAWN methaqualone emergency room mentions,
and 1981 mpﬁ._imcmroom mentions for "ludes” increased
by 30 percent over 1¥suU ievels. ’

) PCP Abuse To Be Di
Most citles reported indlcators for PCP are decrsssing or leveling off.

- Washing D.C., however had a 13 pecrcent incresss in emergency room
mentions %ﬁ‘ 'i“l. .

8)  Several Cities Reported A "LSD Transfe” Scare

Seattle, Denvar, and Miami all reported that in October
parem groups u%m:{m Jescribing cartoon transfer tattoos’
whieh allegedly contained LSD. Investigation by ssveral of the city pro- -
grams dld not disoover 18D in any of the samples. Apparently, the parents
mmumuumufcutm'lmmwuwmmw-popuhrh

(7)  Several Unusual Merit Attention
Dwing the discussion, isclated incidents with prescription drugs or unusual

___tse patterns were mentioned by ssveral CCG members.

e  New Orleans reported that since Talwin was rescheduled, phy-
siciars are Inoreasingly receiving late night and weskend
requests for prescription refills of Preludin.

e  Denver and New Orleans reported increased use of Tussionex .
Thydrocodone and phenyl-toloxamine resin).

. Cartoon acid is avallable in Phoenix, although it is not as
potent es the 1960's version.

. A report from TERROS crisis intervention lh Phoenix involved
YOHIMBINE, a derivative of the bark of an African tree said
to curs impotence. : .

° In San Pramdisco), some amy! and butyl nitrite users are dipping
the flter ends of cigarettes into the bottles, and then smoking
thi‘ough the soaked filters.
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e In Billingham, Washington, police discovered a room full of
- ghltlc bags packed wlth hnlluclnogenic mushrooms reedy for

. Buffalo and Philadelphia emergency rooms both reported use of -
* Stadol, a non narcotic analgesic with addiction properties simi-
lar to Talwin. .

e  Dilantin emergency room mentions In Detyéit showed a signifi-" <y
ocant increass.

{8) Two Citles Reported On School And Strest Use Surveys -

In Kew Orlesns, 155 studentd were referred to VASAU (Volunfedrs Against o

S ochol Use) during the first half of the 1981 sthoal year. of . v ]
these referrals, 44 were for marijuana, 37 for ‘alcohol, 32 for dmctu - ¥

. smoking, and 2 for disruptive behavior. P ‘

New York C wnmmedmmmmmwmsnut.lnmcanmcntbb-

-]

schools. The findings includeds 2 i
° Hcolnwubcingloldlndmofmolsbundlmuhetodln
the Wall Street ares.
e Heroln was be noldoudxofmomblocknuhctodlnm
Garment Distri . o

. Heroin and needles were svailsble for sale in 11 of the. 38
schools surveyed during the Fall term compared to. filne of 36 N
schools mrveyed in the Spring. Thu"wuthonutuponof ’
needies being sold in the schools. “

) Street word Is that pinkhor bolp cocaine is of* hlghcr quanty
than white.

. coamowmpnul-"muugmpomuorm.mn

. thodoalmuopcmlndmmom«tubowmcrln
status than heroin dealers becauss thcykoeprogtﬂnrhounmd ‘
take special orders which are often deliverad to clients' homes.

A household telephone survey revesled that:

. Households with incomes of $50,000 or over reported the
highest recreational drug use.

] 16 ptrcent of those surveyed reported that they had used drugs .
nonmedically at least once in the six months preceding the sur-

vey.

[} 78 percent of the housshold drug users used marijuana in com- |
bination with alcohol. v

e 88 percent of the housshold drug users used cocaine in combi-
nation with marijuana,

] 53 trnrmnt of the houuhold d-ug users used cocaine in combi-
with aleohol.
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PROGRAVMATIC TMPLICATIONS OF RECENT SUBSTANCE
o ABUSE BUDGET CUTS ON SERVICE TO CLIINTS
- IN DETROIT

> (Prepared by the Bureau of Substance Abuse, Detroit, Mich.)

Between fiscal 1979-1980 and the end of fisgal 1980-1981 there were budget
cuts from the State Office of Substance Abuse Services and from the City
of Detroit to substance abuse progrmns in the Detroit area totalling three
million dollars. (sec Appendix

Of tho three million dollar service reduction approximately 24 million comes
from the State and another half mmion from the City of Dotroit.

Substance abuse programs in Detroit experienced an average minimm loss of
18.5% in their fiscal allocations. Since the bulk of the decreases occurred
during the past six months, the rate of reductions, from the State and the
City, when annualized, is approximately six million dollars per year.

As a direct Tesult of these budget contractions, (14) fourteen treatment '
programs have been or are being closed. They are:

Alexandrine House , " Lafayette Clinic (plus the elimination
Alexandrine House - West of a $350,000 research grant)
Robeson/Tubman-Douglass- Truth Allied Health Drug Abuse
League of Goodwill Allied Health Operation Cope
End-Dependence _ Community Alcsholism - Area II
NSO Alcohol Highway Safety Community Alcoholism - Area IV
Wayne County Jail S.H.A.R. - Huron Valley

: Project: Headline - Townsend House

Residential (Alcchol)

The closing down of these programs thus far have:y

- Wiped out 95 residential drug free treatment slots.

Blocked 1,000 young people, per month, from prevention and educational
efforts.

o

Eliminated 675 outpatient methadone slots from being available to
that portion of the substance abuser population that needs this type
of treatment.

Prevented 600 problem drivers, each month, from attending alcohol
highway safety classes.

Removed 90 daycare/drug-frece treatment opportunities, and

Erased 20 badly nceded. alcoholism residential beds and 10 detox units.

ERIC
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Clients were not the only oncs to suffer from the rcductions in funding.
Approximately 105 trained and experienced substance abuse staff persons
lost their jobs. : .

The loss of funding comc not only from the State and Federal agencies but,
also, from allied rtments as well, including but not limited to the
Department of Social Services, Department of Mental Health and Menpower’s
C.E.T.A. employces project. Loss of trainces or staff and of these auxi-
liary funds have hurt and disrupted those programs still functioning.

Overall, these programmatic budgc't cuts résulted in approximately 2,600

fewer clients per month receiving substance abuse care and treatsent than
did a year ago. )

As a reflection of the currcnt situation, methadone programs are averaging
109% of matrix on May 1, 1081; residential programs 94%. At various times,
methadone programs arc accumulating a slzeagle vaiting 1ist (although an

program having over 1008 matrix, technically, should have a waiting 1ist).

The closing of Townsend House was a particularly bitter blow because their
client population was, primarily, indigent alcoholics who need residential
care and this kind of quality facility is very smuch needed in Detroit.

In summary, the cutback in funding is beginning to be reflected in service
reductions and program closin&su.l However, the full ct on services has
yet not materialized because budget and service reductions have not been
completed. The most recent budget reductions have not been implemented
fully, and several progrms scheduled to close are in process of phasing-
out by September 30, 1981.

" Finally, additional cuts in Pederal, State, and/or Tity funding can be '~~~

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

anticipated depending upon such factors as the 25% decrease planned when
formula and categorical grant funds are converted into block grants, by an.
sdditional reduction in State budget appropriations, or by fiscal reductions
from the City, 1f new general revenue sources are not found. -

cl
6/10/81
BSA
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. APPEND] X A

The following programs are under a direct contract for funds from
the Office of Substance Abuse Services until October 1, 1981:

-Fiscal

Program

' Acute Alcoholism

Alexandrine House

Catholic Social Services

Catholic Youth Organization

Elmhurst Home

End Dependence

Highland Park

Hutzel Hospital *

LaCasa

League Goodwill

Hariners' Inn

Metro East

Metropolitan Hospital (alcoholism)

Hardin Park

Neighborhood Service
Organization

Project: Headline

Recorders Court

Rubicon/Odyssey

Sacred Heart Rehabilitation
Center

Salvation Army

SHAR :

Sobriety House

WOMAN Center

MAPP

KCA - Babes

Sacred Heart Women

SOC .

Wayne County Adminiatration

1979-80

Fiscal

- 1980-81

37,193
278,448
34,986

274,495

302,429
iny, 838
133,908
628,274

643,613

543,072

512,154

103,300

248,456

142,836
0

96,589

19,975
235,215

34,219
117,018
38,986
87,885
74,600
53,933

167,707

261,393
156,070
112,274
9,841
558,240
64,349

275,083

302,829
832,996
133,908
628,274

552,613
287,098
512,154
102,180
208,856
200,000

21,000
188,094

19,975
. 0

Final
Piscal

1980-81

38,219
0

30,417

81,631
70,497

0
- 161,837

2N7,016
152,383

0
9,881

239,160

224,068
493,181
116,820
586,221

480,441
237,533
436,135

95,036
197,200
181,000

19,320
188,094
18,622

0

$6.513,000 $5.596.775 . $4,686,290

Totals:

1979-80 $6,

513,000

1980-81 4,688,290

Decrease in OSAS funding
through FY 1980-81

The following programé administered by the Detroit Health
Department have been reduced by 0SAS during FY 1980-81:

Statewilde Services Alcoholism Demonstration Project

Detroit City Coordinating Agency

Detroit Drug Abuse Trecatment Program

41,824,710
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Robegon/Tubman Drug Profram
lieighborhood Services Department Drug Profram
Legislative Intent Punds for various programs

Total OSAS reductions - FY 1980-81: $681,075
Totals:

OSAS Direct Contracta 41,824,710

pDetroit Adminiatered Contracta 681,075

Total OSAS fund reductiona PFY 1979-80 and FY 1930-81 $2,505,785
in Detroit R .

Finally, the City of Detroit has been forced to reduce

appropriationa to aubatance abuse by $410,000 during

PY 1980-81 410,000

Total reduction of public aubatance abuae funda-PY 1980-81 $2,915,785
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STATE OF jtw vOAK
DIVISION OF SUSSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES
Qffica of Aloohotism snd Substance Abuss
SRECUTIVE FARE MOUTW
ALBANY mEw YORE 17J0)

RO A MARTWES

[

January 25, 1982

Mr. Walter Sheridan
Minority Staff
Committee on Labor & Human Resources
Room 4222

Dirksen Senate 0ffice Building
Washington, DC 20510

Dear Mr. Sheridan:

As requested by Mr, James Michie, I am writing to provide you with
information on the {mpact of Federal drug treatment and prevention bud-
get cuts in Mew York State in preparation for Sanator Kennedy's remarks
before the Committes on Wednesday, January 27.

While Mew York State's support for drug treatsent and prevention
services has always been extensive. the Federa) commitment to combat the

drug problem has been nadequate. In fact, Federal support for drug treat-
ment has declined since FFY 1979, with the most devastating budget cuts
occurring during the current fiscal year. ’

Under the Omaibus Reconciliation Act of 1981's formula for allocating
Alcohol, Drug Abuse and Mental Health (ADM) Block Grant funds to the states.
1t s estimated that New York Stata will receive 8.504% of the total FFY 1982
ABM Approprietion. The Resgan Admintstration hes proposed, and the current
Continuing Resolution includes, & total ADM appropriation of only $432 mi1-
lion. :

Although several fssuss must still be resolved at both the Federal
and State levels, MNew York State's tota) ADM award will probably be about $36
miiTion in FY 1982, Of this amount, approximately $19.1 mi)1lon will be a)-
located for the State's drug treatment and prevention services, representing
a decroase of $9.2 mi)lion, or over 323, from Federal funds received In FY 196).

New York State has requested and received ADM Block Grant funding as
of October 1, 1981. By opting for early implementation of the block grant,
New York will be able to utftfze FY 1981 categorical funding which remains in
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place through March, 1982, as well as new block grant funds, and grad-
ually phase-in reductions in treatment services over a gne to two year
period. However, the net result of Federal budget cuts will be the loss
of well over 3,000 community treatment siots statewide, as well as the
serfous curtaiiment of state drug prevention, training and other special
gmph:s1s activities currently conducted by the Division of Substance Abuse
ervices.

The impact of these budget cutbacks is felt even more severely fin
states such as New York which-have been experiencing an increasing drug
pqoblen gver the past several years. Recent studies by the Oivision in-
dicate that:

. the: number of heroin-related emergency room episodes reported for the
first half of 1981 in the New York City area (1,811) 1s 19 percent
higher than the comparable perfod in 1980 (1,523) and 138 percent
higher than in 1979 (762);

. deaths attributed to narcotic drugs in New York City increased
from 246 in 1978 to 534 {n 1980 - an increase of 117 percent;

. since 1971, the use of marijuana, cocaine and the non-medical use
of tranquilizers have at least doubled among MNew York State's
secondary school students;

. more than two million New York State household residents have used
at least one 111icit drug and/or prescription drug nonmedically
in the six months prior to & spring, 1981 survey. :

Furthermore, the proffered justification for such cuts - that of re-
turning responsibility for services programs to the states - is grossly
misleading in the drug treatment area, since states have been assuming most
of the burden for these services for many years.

For example, for services and programs in the drug abuse prevention
area, espoused as an Administration priority, New York State will spend over
$156 mi11fon from state revenues this year. In FFY 1981, the Federal govern-
ment made available only about $16 miilion for the entire country, with
New York receiving siightly more than $500,000 of this amount.

It is clear that the Federal government has not fully accepted its
share of responsibility for dealing with the nation's drug problem, and the
Reagan Administration proposes to further minimize the Federal role. Maxi-
mum appropriations for drug treatment and prevention, and for drug enforcement
programs, are needed {f we are to maintain even existing service levels.

I will be glad to provide you with any additional information you
may require concerning the impact of cuts on drug treatment services In
New York. Please feel free to contact me or Joan Waite of my staff at
(518) 457-7629.

S1ncerg1y.
PhrS 6“%‘/3 P

John S. Gustafson
‘Assistant Ofirector

JSG: kmen
cc: Julio Martinez

JuuTSrM1chie
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March 23, 1982

The Honorable Paula Hawkina
Chairman . !
Senate Subcommittee on Investigationa
and Gensral Oversight '
Washington, D. C. 20510

Dear Madam Chairman:

1 am writing to requeat your asaistance regarding the
record of the Subcommittee's recent hearing on “Drug Abuse
" In The American School Syatem." :

In recent weeks, hundreds of young residents and admin-
istrators of drug abuse treatment programs have written to
me expressing their appreciation for the Subcommittee's
recognition of the zrowinq aubatance abuse problem and their
concerns over cuts in Federal funding of their programs.

As many of these individuals have requested that their
letters be made a part of the hearing record, I have chosen
a representative sampling of thesc letters and would very
much appreciate your including them in the published hearing
record.

Thank you for your cooperation in this matter.

With best regards,

cerely,

Taward M.'Konnody
Ranking Minority

EMK: jme

Enclosurea

Q ¥

EMC 92-241 0 - 2 - 10
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Ineip from the people here hedped me

U ICE OF )
EONARS 1 KENNEDY
WACHINGTON, 5‘.? :

. B2 FEB 26 MM 1l 52
Horcronle Edward M Kcnnedg . mﬁ |
VS, Senote ; , L R |
j09 Ru=sel Senate Cfeice Bidg. R ”‘i

Washington D¢, 20601 -

Dear Senator Kennedy, oo o

T am wrihng fnis ieter in concern of the

bvdget owits that are in _progress o€ affectg

Therapvhe Comminites_ adl  aver_Amunco- .. -
I om eonteen 9mm.mo\ and o 3 month

resident o{gom vistude foc ity in Nawv.

Yor k. Bargm:\ecl in . te lower tast side

Han T bDtcame tomfxienle in

he viciws ycle of anime and drvgs.

No mattr naw many hmes T was arrested

and dhe numaous accassions thot people

ed to nelp me were 4o no vee. Dve 10

forturate circumstances tht carts plocec

me N s program - AT firet L wads

o Dit relve funt, vt & Lt le time and

realize what T had done 10 my ocke and
the people. arovnd me. ) S
Ifmcof/ budgets will cowse damege to the
peope ws wellas e condihen of o cowntry
f Mty are set. T am Neping gov will conmider: |

my worde a5 well.as my life in " sfups ngmem-c.dsg.r,
7 " Sincertly, Jose Martin Brobecks 4
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w0 LS SEMnE
o 104 Rroel SenaTs Omce Bivs.

BR2FEB 1§ vy, 3o WASANGTOR B.C. 20510

,“.Fﬂm lar AE _ SAY_. I wouLd MKE THIS LEITER IMCUDE UN
Sen, HARRING . HGARING . o8 " DRUG B THE. _BRSMEN scmm.&vmn\

BELD. on SasudAY 37 Pares T 1T, ThG_QucorDd, . . 4
— e T _pm_weln AWME 0B THE . MASIIVG_ i’mm OF _
I wAS cace PART_ QP THIA PRoMam. L Am now w0 TRRATMENT AT _,
Garecnr fore Toan A WHILE we HGRE BPRGUBTE YOIR AggK-.

e 9T0_THE DAVG PROBLEM. LuTH_ _QONGRASS , (oG __taotLD ALNQ A HE oo
To MFRM YOU _THAT_THE MTRRNATVGS PRssEnTEd BY SGRNIOR . ..
BAWERS ML NG LonGOR _ AUNUBLE To_ THo GaneRAL DPubLc_felh_
AT CAIRWAY LAST YRAR Wa HWAD TQ QoW OME OF Oul STWRE". . .
E RenT  OPRAATIONS KuD mL_quamamLJs NOW _OVGR, 70 BE-
TwgEA  OVR PMson, BTy, AND MAZs HoLDMG PATIERN PROGAANMS. ... _
___Dup__Rpoeemm. wopks , BY_CTHRRS AP YtelF CAS ATIEST.
To, Bl WTH Con TIowNG Sut BACHS MANY wio hsed THis TYPE. .
LF HELP Sy (0 N6 wAY AEenG  TT,

FUmbiNGS  FoR QR TIYPE ofF DRUG ABUSL PRooRAMS
WORE_ VT By OVER 307 LAST_YRAR md we ARE_Toud T
GKPECT MORG THIS YEAR. WE HGRG AT GMGWA AMD my FAM- '
it ad I PefsonnnacY mANT _To  ASK YouR SUVEORI MM WTMXe
AcAET MoY FUTWER QUTBACKS THAT MIGHT B CALLED ..
fof. o THE UPComine YwAR, T would .ALSe Ak FOR Yook . .
UCTE FOR THE RLSUMPTION oOF FulDsS QuT 4LAST YEAR,

RemEMBLR , PLeme, THE LIVES oF YouR CHIDREN
D GRAICHIDRERN  MAY ONG DAY B HAGD PeCASE
op e  Founa . THAT L. saru._You -buu_«:..sa-_fn 1 J
boit  nre Drve TrasamienT Proofams b L

v

gmcs.u ew .
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’[ R Miss Ruth O, Jones
) : 804 Tanner St.

: i Rockford, IL 61103

‘The Honorable Edward M. Kennedy
U.3, Senate

109 Russell Senate Office Bldg.
Washington, DC 20510

My: Dear Senator Kennedy

Please include this letter for the record on your hurlixs entitled
"Rrugs In The American School System™, which was held on January 27th.

[ As a parent, concernal neighber and dedicated 'coungolor, 1 work

| closely with youth and adults who have alcohol and drug probleas. I also

- work with run-a-ways and young prostitutes. I've learnéd about drug atuse
trcatnent bocause "Drugs hit hone”. I have a 14 year old God Sister who
started getting high with friends from school. She became addicted to
speed ard other hammful drugs.. She was informed by the guy she brought
her drugs from that iri order to keep up her expensive hablt, she would -,
have te work at this housc. She ran away from home with a pimp and a
drug habit and went through hell for 14 ycars. My sister knew she had a

| . drug hablt so she came to me and asked if I could help her get into a, *

| drug center. I enrolled her in Cateway House, 512 Cedar Crest Lane, Lake

| Villa, IL 60046. As a big sister, a concerned neighbor and counselor, I
have through the agency I work for (Martin House), referred many clients
to the Catavay House Drug Free Prograa. : ’

¥y plea with you, 'Semn.or, 15 to please vote against the President’s
additional budget cutback in the Drug Abuse Treatnment Progran. Also nay
I tnforn you that I an'a proud dedicated Black voter and [ believe that -
1f sone of tho things like drugs, alcbhol abuse, or crime "Hit home", .
you would be more concernod about people. :

%y rain interest and concern is to continue working with adults and youth
with drug and alcohol problems. This way I would be able to help someone
when' they cry for help to get away from the pain of drugs. ’ u

Will the Drug treatment Centers be open? Will there be enough money
to continue to run the Drug Treatment Prograns? Will the dream of Dr.
Martin Luther King and other Americans who have passed on, “Be Jjust a R
Drean™? - - -

Very truly yours

Ruth O, Jones '
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68 South 6 th East Street, Salt Lake City;
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Pebruary 11, 1982

The Honorable Edward M, Kennedy

United States Senate

Utah 84102 (801) 322-1001

109 Russell Senate Office Building

Washington, D.C., 20510, .

Dear Senstor Kennady, "

T waa vary ple;ned that Senator
share her

should ba effected. This

grave concarn sbout this
also agree with her that legal reme:

Hawkins haeld .‘ hearing on drugs
in the American school system on Jsnuary 27th of this Year. 1

very aerious problem and
dies and treatment alternatives
problem is more serious than ever and

cartainly can ba aeen in the schools in Salt Lake City. Thia
problem has grave implications upon the futura. ~

Unfortunataly, while averyona seems to acknowledga thia pl;oblen,

Congrsss last year pasaed

optiona for our achool population subatanca abusars.
subatance sbuss traatment slots afa full
Tha prediction is for a reduction of
1 encourags your support o help us

increasa in the problenm,

an enormous cut- in lagal and treatment

In Utah, .
snd waiting liats exiat.
services, despita the

fight this problem and help thosa who have baen affected. . -

smce‘uly,

Glen R. Lambert, M.S.V,, C,$%.W., L.C.S.W.

State Director, Utah Odyssey Housa

GRL:dc -

Evelyn Cunsinghem
John P McGeff

Bentrice. Donses, Esq.
Gny New McLendon

* Charles Tount Esq.

Nichalos I Coatidge
Robert Liskownls
Rabert S, Toft. Esgq

Hon. Psicielgh F Dickinsen
Elenner McGevera
Heon, Peul Thempran

R

Muriel 8. Frencie 1. Snery Hutchine, F.C.A:

RoNert Reid, Eoq. . Man. Visginle K Shehee
R
Hen. Christine Durhem Clinten Fuller, S¢
Goorge 8. Prilt . 1, Fintan Spetler, M.D.
Atsn V. Titynan
E
»
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Herorable €DwarD M. kendelDy
Ubisencde .
\CA Qusse] senale ol BLDG
Washngter DiC. 20501

vveaa ‘Horeralde €DearD M.J_(cnne,oc(

This leblec 16 in Coneeen of e drug 'Dréarams :
i Hhe UnideD Slates, Drug: progamd are o big
Yelp in Hhe UrHeD States, Pecause T wons a drug
aowser, T wse 4o, steal frem my Porrets and- peorle
cud in he Sheeet, And undi( T e irdo hee T -
weudd bt have siop what L coas doing unless:
T came over here and made a Yumr aroand
on My ide. Prd newmy porendts feel %ood about
me and whad Tam dong dor my self Sirce’ T been
here L hace ceme o deros dhat whatIgot hgh
Lor (oas € No Reasor Twould Just hite o say
Yo dhérs a lok of people. ext there Yot nead dhis
kind of help- a0d learn Yo aacomplish somelhing
o IHe. So Tam wr#dng%.s’ leter o, Keep dms .
Programs open. S0 would yoee please Jate
g leHer o cwa‘dera:hm,‘imanb\[w/ a

; RC&QCC‘LFUNLF)
- R kuph

Q ] 15»7




163

oh '..u
w.y‘-; .v »aw.;,u»
R S

1832 FE5 26

Honerable. Fduad M l)ﬁnned\f
U-S semre .
(09 Russel Serte Office BJIH/IB
wWochigion DC Qosol. :

Horable Edard 4 Keonedy |

My name 15 William Aee Bryart Tam

presently resding 10 Swmartan Village talfway Seciety
which 15 adrg pregraum i apper/(/ea) Jbrtjfafe
Imwrtty *7‘7‘)/& feter yoursuppoty
1N Keephng dru ams +/m ouj H open 1ot
aky Samar cm CAUSE are md// commum‘/ejj
rich and peorali ke, _Lmv‘ﬁrijjb ht earbo ae
ard rt coud be saud 4hat T /w/c many ymm
£t Ths would be Frue rf T ard otpers (arﬂ‘ ;
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Senator HAwKINS. That concludes this hearing. I would like to
invite those members of the panel that have stayed and thoee from
Second Genesis to be my guests for lunch. I know you have waited
d long time. [Applause.]

[Whereupon, at 2:17 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]
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